
 

 

 

 
Saltash Town Council 

Konsel An Dre Essa  
The Guildhall 

12 Lower Fore Street 
Saltash 

PL12 6JX 
Telephone: 01752 844846 

www.saltash.gov.uk 
 

25 February 2022 
Dear Councillor 
 

I write to summon you to the Meeting of Saltash Town Council to be held at the 
Guildhall on Thursday 3rd March 2022 at 7.00 pm. 
 

All persons must wear a face covering unless medically exempt when entering the 
Guildhall building and in communal areas. Councillors can remove face covering 
once seated, members of the public and press are to continue wearing a face 
covering. We ask everyone to respect each other’s space and to consider their own 
unique circumstances before attending Town Council meetings.  Please do not 
attend if you feel unwell or tested positive for Covid-19. 
 

Prior to attending Town Council meetings please review the Guildhall Covid-19 
Physical Face to Face Council Meetings Risk Assessment here: 
https://modern.saltash.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD247&ID=247&RPID=23
9772. 
 

The meeting is open to members of the public and press.  Any member of the public 
requiring to put a question to the Town Council must do so 24 hours prior to the 
meeting by email enquiries@saltash.gov.uk 
 

Planning applications can be viewed by Members of the Council prior to the meeting 
on the Cornwall Council’s website www.cornwall.gov.uk.  Members of the public may 
view planning applications during normal working hours of 9:30 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
online at Saltash Library.  
 

Yours sincerely, 

 
S Burrows 
Acting Town Clerk 
To: 

Essa Tamar Trematon 

R Bickford (Vice-Chairman) 
R Bullock 
G Challen 
J Foster 
M Griffiths 
S Lennox-Boyd 

L Challen 
J Dent 
S Gillies 
S Martin 
J Peggs 
P Samuels (Chairman)  

S Miller 
B Samuels 
B Stoyel 
D Yates 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.saltash.gov.uk/
https://modern.saltash.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD247&ID=247&RPID=239772
https://modern.saltash.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD247&ID=247&RPID=239772
mailto:enquiries@saltash.gov.uk
http://www.cornwall.gov.uk/


 

 

Agenda 
 
1.   Health and Safety Announcements   

 
2.   Prayers.   

 
3.   Apologies.   

 
4.   Declarations of Interest   

a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of the 
Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in matters to be 
considered at this meeting. 

 
b. Acting Town Clerk to receive written requests for dispensations prior to the 

start of the meeting for consideration. 
 

5.   Chairman's Report  (Page 6) 
 

6.   Monthly Crime Figures  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

7.   Report by Community Enterprises PL12  (Pages 9 - 10) 
 

8.   Cornwall Gateway Community report for noting or matters arising - No Report   
 

9.   Cornwall Gateway Community Action Points for Reports - No Actions   
 

10.   To receive a report on behalf of Safer Saltash   
 

11.   To receive a report from Saltash Chamber of Commerce  (Page 11) 
 

12.   To receive a report from the Climate Change and Environmental Working Party  
(Pages 12 - 13) 
 

13.   To receive a report from Cornwall Councillors   
 

14.   To consider Risk Management reports as may be received   
 

15.   Questions - A 15-minute period when members of the public may ask questions 
of Members of the Council   
 
Please note:  Any member of the public requiring to put a question to the 
Council must do so 24 hours prior to the meeting by writing or email. 
 

16.   To receive and approve the Minutes of the Full Town Council Meeting held on 
3rd February 2022 and the Extraordinary Full Town Council meeting held on 
10th February 2022 as a true and correct record  (Pages 14 - 32) 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

17.   Finance:   
 a.   To advise the following receipts in:  (Page 33) 

i. January 2022 
 

 b.   To advise the following payments in:  (Pages 34 - 36) 
ii. January 2022 
 

 c.   Urgent and essential works actioned by the Acting Town Clerk under 
Financial Regulations.   
 
 

 d.   To note that bank reconciliations up to 31st January 2022 were reviewed 
as correct by the Chairman of Policy & Finance Committee and the Acting 
Town Clerk.   
 

 e.   To note that an audit on recent supplier payments was conducted by the 
Chairman of Policy & Finance in line with the Councils Financial 
Regulations. It was noted that there are no discrepancies to report.   
 

18.   To receive and approve a Notice between Saltash Town Council and First 
Greater Western Ltd confirming the lease will be excluded from the security of 
tenure provisions of the Landlord & Tenant Act 1954.  (Pages 37 - 38) 
 

19.   The Mayor to announce the call for written nominations for the Office of Mayor 
and Deputy Mayor for the year 2022/23.  An Extraordinary meeting of the Town 
Council, to elect the Mayor elect and Deputy Mayor elect, is set for Thursday 
15th March 2022 at 6.00 p.m.  (Pages 39 - 46) 
 

20.   Correspondence.   
 a.   Saltash Baptist Church - Letter of thanks.  (Page 47) 

 
 b.   Regatta Committee - Civic Parade to be held on Saturday 3rd September 

2022.  (Page 48) 
 

21.   To receive a verbal update on Saltash Leisure Centre.   
 

22.   To receive a verbal update from the Queens Jubilee Working Group and 
consider any actions and associated expenditure   
 

23.   To receive and consider approving funding applications.   
 

24.   To receive and consider approving the draft design Town Council Annual 
Report.  (Pages 49 - 66) 
 

25.   To appoint a Member to the Property Maintenance Sub Committee.   
Composition: Eight Members 
Appointed Members: Cllrs Bickford, Bullock, Dent, Miller, Peggs, P Samuels & 
Yates 
Vacancies: One 

 

Page 3



 

 

 
 

26.   To appoint a Member to the Waterfront Management Working Group.   
Composition:  Seven Members 
Appointed Members: Cllrs Bickford, Bullock, G Challen, Martin, Miller & 

Yates  
Vacancy:   One 

 
27.   To receive and note the minutes of the following Committees and consider any 

recommendations:   
 a.   Joint Burial Board held on Tuesday 8th February 2022  (Pages 67 - 70) 

 
 b.   Services held on Wednesday 9th February 2022  (Pages 71 - 77) 

 
 c.   Extraordinary Policy and Finance held on Tuesday 22nd February 2022  

(Pages 78 - 205) 
 

28.   To receive and note the minutes of the Library Sub Committee held on 
Wednesday 23rd February 2022 and consider any recommendations.  (Pages 
206 - 210) 
 

29.   Meet your Councillors: The next scheduled meeting date Saturday 12th March 
2022 outside Bloom Hearing, Fore Street.   
 

30.   Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960   
To resolve that pursuant to Section 1(2) of the Public Bodies (Admission to 
meetings) Act 1960 the public and press leave the meeting because of the 
confidential nature of the business to be transacted. 
 

31.   To consider any items referred from the main part of the agenda.   
 

32.   Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960   
To resolve that the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting.  
 

33.   To consider urgent non-financial items at the discretion of the Chairman.   
 

34.   To confirm any press and social media releases associated with any agreed 
actions and expenditure of the meeting.   
 

35.   Date of next meeting:    An Extraordinary Meeting of Full Town Council to be 
held on 15th March 2022 at 6:00 p.m.   
 

36.   Common Seal:   
To Order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all Deeds and      
Documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing Acts and Proceedings. 
 

Page 4



 

 

Since the last meeting, the Mayor has attended the following: 

 
Wednesday 12th January Saltash Leisure Centre internal meeting  
 (Mayor and Deputy Mayor attended) 
 
Wednesday 19th January   Mayors of Cornwall meeting 
 
Thursday 10th February   Do you mind if I sing? Dementia support  
      group. 
 
Friday 11th February   Virtual meeting re homelessness in Saltash, 
      led by Saltash Baptist Church 
 
Thursday 17th February   Mayors of Cornwall virtual meeting 
 
Thursday 3rd March     Visit to residents for 60th wedding 
 
 

MAYOR’S REPORT TO SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
THURSDAY 3RD MARCH 2022 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Devon & Cornwall Police

Building safer communities together

Crimes Recorded - 01/01/2022 to 09/02/2022 - Saltash Town

8 9 -11.1%
17 10 70.0%
7 12 -41.7%
0 6 -100.0%
1 3 -66.7%
1 2 -50.0%
2 0 -
0 1 -100.0%
2 2 0.0%
3 4 -25.0%
0 1 -100.0%
10 10 0.0%
1 2 -50.0%
0 1 -100.0%
0 1 -100.0%
2 3 -33.3%
2 2 0.0%

Violence with Injury
Violence without Injury
Stalking and Harassment
Rape
Other Sexual Offences
Burglary Dwelling
Burglary Non-Dwelling
Vehicle Offences
Shoplifting
All Other Theft Offences
Arson
Criminal Damage
Public Order Offences
Possession of Weapons
Trafficking of Drugs
Possession of Drugs
Other Offences

Offence

Total

Recorded
Crime

01/01/2022 to
09/02/2022

56

Recorded
Crime

01/01/2021 to
09/02/2021

69

Recorded
Crime %

Difference

-18.8%

7 6 16.7%Non Notifiable Offences

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 6



Devon & Cornwall Police

Building safer communities together

23 35 -34.3%
2 2 0.0%

28 28 0.0%
79 89 -11.2%
30 29 3.4%

Anti Social Behaviour
Crime Not Recorded
Crime Recorded
Public Safety
Transport

Incident Closing Category

Total

Incidents -
01/01/2022 to

09/02/2022

162

Incidents -
01/01/2021 to

09/02/2021

183

Incidents %
Difference

-11.5%

Incidents Recorded - 01/01/2022 to 09/02/2022 - Saltash Town

P
age 7



Community Enterprises PL12 

Chairs Report 

February 2022 

 

This report marks the end of my second 12-months as Chair. Thank you to Directors 

and volunteers for their support & dedication to CEPL12, in what has been a very 

difficult and sometimes chaotic year. We have coped well,, and most enterprises are 

operating in profit, with others striving towards break-even. I am confident that we 

will weather the storm well over the coming months. As a not-for-profit organisation, 

any funds we make help support our enterprises.  

Election of Chair & Vice Chair. I have put my name forward for re-election by the 

Board. David Bremner has put his name forward as Vice Chair. No other 

nominations have been received. 

Town Team; the committee has met to discuss ongoing projects. The speaker 

system is fully operational & will be used for the Jubilee celebrations. Members have 

formed a Jubilee Committee with members of Saltash Town Council, to deliver 

community events to mark the Jubilee. 

Jubilee celebrations; The Hub will be used as a pick up point for community to 

collect jubilee seeds, straw hats & bean bags for the celebrations. 300 packets of 

Jubilee wildflower seeds, in red white & blue, are available for people to collect 

FREE from the Hub. 

Publicity; A new volunteer, Matthew, is helping to co-ordinate publicity & write copy 
with a personal touch about our volunteers. 
Students from Saltash Community School will be making a promotional film for us. 
 
Funding applications; We have made several funding applications which are 
pending, these will enable our enterprises to become fully operational, post-covid. 
 
CIO application; The Charities Commission requested some clarification on 2 items 
on our website, these were rectified at the end of January & we are awaiting a 
response to our application. 
 
Hub; Cathy Roberts has now taken on all responsibilities for running the Community 
Shop. 
 
No 8; We anticipate a soft opening at the beginning of March, being able to use the 
café area for our planned activities from 3rd March. A full list of activities will be 
available on our website cepl12.co.uk  
Volunteers are currently being inducted & trained, 

Page 8

Agenda Item 7



An official opening will be arranged once all “finishing” jobs are complete. 

Volunteer meeting; We are holding a Volunteer meeting Sunday 6th March, 2pm, at 

Saltash Social Club, to give all potential volunteers & existing volunteers an 

opportunity to explore the volunteering roles available within CEPL12. It will be a 

great opportunity for anyone interested in volunteering with us, learning about 

opportunities available and chatting to Directors and volunteers. 

Gardening Group; Seed Swap & Share are distributing around 400 packets of 

donated seeds, with a caveat of donating some of the produce grown to the 

Community Fridge. They are growing veg & flower plants at the school plot, & these 

will be available at a Plant Share at May Fair and on Friday 20th May. 

Community Fridge & Larder; This continues to re-distribute around 500kg of 

rescued food every week. It will be based at the Community Kitchen once 

refurbishment work has been completed. 

Mobile Larder; This operates every Monday, following alternate routes around 

Saltash. We will revise the routes at the end of March. 

Community Transport; We are going through a transition period with Community 

Transport. Our day trips for January and February have not been well supported & 

we have a team of volunteers organising trips which will appeal to a wider 

demographic. Our small bus is used regularly to collect rescue food, as it has a large 

boot space. 

Tresorys Kernow; we are hopeful that our enterprises can apply for a share of the 

funding for activities, which will need to take place in April May & June. A working 

party is working on the proposals. 

Saltash Town Council are inviting nominations for Citizen of the Year Awards. I 
would like to make a recommendation that we nominate our Volunteers as a group 
for the Community Award for their hard work & dedication to their community. 
 
Jo Baskott 
Chair 

Page 9



STC Chamber of Commerce Update - February 2022

Car Parking on Fore Street 
Parking on Fore Street changed from half an hour to one hour during Covid to accommodate the 
changes in guidance from the Government. Now those changes are being reversed, parking spots 
on Fore Street itself will revert to just a half an hour waiting time. Our car parking redemption 
scheme will help mitigate those changes offering two hours free of charge in the four fee-paying 
car parks in Saltash. Just need to take your parking ticket (up to £1.60) to any participating 
independent retailer on Fore Street and spend £5 to redeem the cost of the ticket. Then 
independent shops have signed up so far and we are looking to expand this over time.


Public Consultation to raise Bridge tolls  
Valentine’s Day was the last day to send back thoughts on the proposed changes to the Tamar 
Bridge tolls. Chamber’s position on this was clear. We wrote to joint Chair of the Tamar Crossings 
committee Cllr Martin Worth the following: We feel that, if there is to be an increase in the toll then 
that increase should be wholesale and across the board including tag users and cash tolls on the 
bridge and ferry equally. To lower the discount for tag users only not only places the burden on 
the funding at the feet of the local user and resident but also all those businesses in the Saltash 
area who use the bridge daily - and on numerous occasions per day. 


Hauliers, taxi companies, white van services to name but a few rely on the bridge. Choosing to 
lower the discount on the tag and thereby increasing the cost just to the tag user alone who are 
essentially the captive audience is unjust, and penalises locals who already endured a painful (to 
say the very least!) six months last year as the bridge was resurfaced.  
 
Our letter addressed to Cllr Martin Worth, also asked him to lobby for the wholesale revision of the 
Act of Parliament which burdens SE Cornwall as a region going forward indefinitely with 
shouldering the costs of maintaining a bridge that connects the strategic network from Devon to 
Cornwall. This has always been unsatisfactory and unfair but in these times of inflation and rising 
energy and food costs it’s a complete travesty. 


And on a happier note… 

The Fiver Fest is back! 
March 12th - 26th brings the return of the great national shop local event, the Totally Locally Fiver 
Fest. Independent retailers nationwide put on special £5 offers to show the diversity and value of 
what they sell and encourage people to shop locally. It comes from the Totally Locally £5 message 
that if every adult in Saltash spent just £5 per week in their local independent shops and 
businesses it would mean £3.2 million per year going directly into our local economy. Saltash took 
part in two Fiver Fest campaigns last year, and they proved to be such a success that retailers will 
be offering £5 deals again this March. Participating shops will display Fiver Fest posters in their 
windows, the Totally Locally Saltash team will be uploading the offers on the Totally Locally 
Saltash Facebook page and there will be a dedicated page on the aforementioned Carbon Pixel 
Shop Saltash website. So keep an eye out and remember that when you shop locally you make 
our town an even better place.


Sarah Martin


Page 10

Agenda Item 11



Climate Change Working Group – Meeting 17 February 2022 

 

Community Engagement & Communication – 

Further to the meeting of STC when it was agreed we could request an editable version of the Rame 

Green Guide to assist with our own plans for community engagement and communication, the 

Acting Town Clerk made a formal request to Rame Parish Council, who responded with two requests  

 To acknowledge and publish the contribution of Rame Parish council in the development of 

our Guide 

 Make a £125.00 donation to Rame Parish Council for the use of their Green Guide 

Following discussion by the group it was decided that the amount of work required to adjust the 

Rame Green Guide to make it Saltash relevant would be considerable, and we therefore agreed to 

respectfully decline the Rame Parish Council’s offer. 

Instead, we have decided to use the time and resource to work towards our own bespoke projects. 

The team have agreed to work on the following areas over the next few weeks – 

 Trees & Wildlife (AW) 

 Energy (DY) 

 Transport (SG) 

 Food  

Sarah Martin will work on the copy writing, layout and social media. 

Workshops & Events 

Re-Fashion event provisionally booked for 29 April 2022,  

Cllr Julia Peggs to liase with Cllr Bickford around the logistics and use of Isambard House. 

Volunteers are requested for models please let Cllr Peggs know if you are interested in 

helping out. 

Final arrangements will be confirmed during our next meeting. 

Enquiries are being made to arrange a cycle maintenance and repair workshop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 12



Community Tree Planting 

Adrian confirmed that all the preliminary enquiries, checks and surveys have been 

completed and the first areas for planting have been agreed with Cornwall Council & Forest 

for Cornwall. 

The sites identified are in the following locations – 

 Brooking Way 

 Warraton Close 

 Yellow Tor Road / Gallaghers Way 

 Spencer Gardens  

 Broad Walk - Hedging 

All trees will be suitable for urban planting and the right tree for the right location, for 

example where trees are planted near houses these will not grow too tall or overhang 

Thank you to Cllr Bickford for your input at the meeting. 

Next meeting 23 March 2022.  

Page 12



4976 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of Saltash Town Council held at the Guildhall on 
Thursday 3rd February 2022 at 7.00 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: R Bickford (Chairman), R Bullock, G Challen, 

L Challen, J Dent, J Foster, S Gillies, M Griffiths, S Martin, 
S Miller, J Peggs and D Yates. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: 3 Members of the Public, S Mason (County Executive Officer 

from CALC), T Parkman (Mayor's Chaplin), H Frank (Cornwall 
Council), M Worth (Cornwall Council), S Burrows (Acting Town 
Clerk), D Joyce (Administration Officer) and L Peters (Mayor’s 
Secretary / Receptionist) 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors: S Lennox-Boyd, B Samuels and P Samuels 

(Chairman). 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 

In the absence of the Mayor Councillor Bickford presided the meeting. 
 
The Chairman announced the first item of business would be agenda 
item 2 – Prayers. 

 
 
346/21/22 PRAYERS. 

 
Reverend Tim Parkman led prayers. 
 
 

347/21/22 HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
The Chairman informed those present of the actions required in the 
event of a fire or emergency. 
 
 

348/21/22 TO ELECT A VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Dent 
and RESOLVED to appoint Councillor G Challen as the Vice Chairman 
for this meeting only. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Sarah Mason County Executive Officer from 
Cornwall Association of Local Councils to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 16



4977 

349/21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A 

of the Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in 
matters to be considered at this meeting. 
 
None. 

 
The Acting Town Clerk informed Members she would be leaving the 
meeting for agenda item 5, 5a and 5b. 

 
b. Acting Town Clerk to receive written requests for dispensations prior 

to the start of the meeting for consideration. 
 
None. 
 
The Acting Town Clerk left the meeting for the next agenda item. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



4978 

350/21/22 ASSESSMENT DECISION NOTICE CCN0007/21/22 - CLLR B 
SAMUELS: 
 
a. To receive a statement by the Chairman of the Personnel 

Committee.  
 
Cllr Martin, Chairman of the Personnel Committee made a statement 
to the meeting.  She advised that in accordance with provisions of 
the  Assessment Decision Notice, a Member Panel of the Personnel 
Committee had resolved to remove Cllr Mrs B Samuels from the 
Personnel Committee and limit her contact with staff to email only.   
 
Cllr Martin advised that the Monitoring Officer had confirmed that the 
actions are in keeping with the Decision Notice and within the 
powers of the Council and that the restrictions would be reviewed 
after 12 months: 

 

It was RESOLVED to note without any discussion.  
 
b. To consider recommendations relating to the governance of the 

Personnel Committee.   
 
The Member Panel made two further recommendations to the 
Personnel Committee which were adopted at a meeting held on 
January 25th, 2022. The recommendations were:  

 
i. That there are no ex officio members of the Personnel Committee  

 
ii. That the Council does not fill the new vacancy on the Personnel 

Committee at this time, and that the Committee membership 
remains at 5 seats until the Annual Meeting in May.   

 
It was proposed by Councillor Martin, seconded by Councillor Miller 
and unanimously RESOLVED to adopt the recommendations relating 
to the governance of the Personnel Committee. 

 
 
The Acting Town Clerk was invited and returned to the meeting.   
 
 

351/21/22 CHAIRMAN'S REPORT - NO REPORT 
 
No Report. 
 
 

352/21/22 MONTHLY CRIME FIGURES - FULL COUNCIL RECEIVED THE 
LATEST FIGURES LAST MONTH. 
 
No Report. 
 

Page 15



4979 

353/21/22 REPORT BY COMMUNITY ENTERPRISES PL12 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

354/21/22 CORNWALL GATEWAY COMMUNITY REPORT FOR NOTING OR 
MATTERS ARISING - NO REPORT. 
 
No Report. 
 
 

355/21/22 CORNWALL GATEWAY COMMUNITY ACTION POINTS FOR 
REPORTS - NO ACTIONS. 
 
No Actions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



4980 

356/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT ON BEHALF OF SAFER SALTASH 
 
Councillor Peggs provided a verbal report to Members from a meeting 
attended this morning. 
 
Councillor Peggs spoke of the issues being experienced by children 
and young adults due to the national lockdowns and after effects of the 
pandemic. These included parental difficulties as well as mental health 
concerns, with many external services provided by local government 
experiencing an increase of referrals for additional support. 
 
Councillor Peggs went on to speak of the increased demand for the 
community fridge and larder services provided by Community 
Enterprises – PL12. 
 
Many of those utilising the community fridge are young adults and 
children visiting after school to obtain free food prior to it going to 
landfill. Other children and young adult support organisations such as 
The Core and Livewire have also confirmed a high demand for food 
resources. 
 
At the recent Safer Saltash meeting the discussion of CCTV provisions 
was warmly welcomed and supported. With a recent incident on Fore 
Street showing the necessity of CCTV to be installed in the centre of 
Saltash to support the reduction and prevention of violent crime.  
 
Councillor Peggs spoke of the financial impact families with children 
are experiencing. One of the most prevalent demands being the 
requirement for cheaper alternatives or second-hand options for school 
uniform.  
 
Members discussed ideas to assist with families struggling financially. 
Councillor Dent advised Members of the community organisation - The 
Mabbot Trust. Members were informed that the organisation may have 
a small amount of funding available to assist with contributions towards 
the purchase of school uniform and school trips for families in need of 
additional support during these financially difficult times. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

357/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM SALTASH CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



4981 

358/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM THE CLIMATE CHANGE AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKING PARTY 
 
Rame Green Guide 
 
Councillor Gillies informed Members that an editable version of the 
Rame Green Guide document is available for Town Council use, with 
authorisation to use the generic content contained within the editable 
document should the Town Council wish to utilise. 
 
Green Hearts for February  
 
Councillor Gillies updated Members on the free national campaign to 
display a Green Heart showing Town Council and community support 
of their love for the environment and recognition of the climate and 
nature crisis. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Gillies, seconded by Councillor Foster 
and RESOLVED to note the report and: 
 
1. For the Town Council to obtain the editable version of the Rame 

Green Guide for Town Council adoption 
 

2. Join the Green Hearts for February Campaign promoting via the 
Town Council Social Media channels 

 
3. Hold activities at Saltash Library Hub to promote the Town Council’s 

support and love for the environment and recognition of the climate 
crisis.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



4982 

359/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM CORNWALL COUNCILLORS 
 
The Chairman thanked Cornwall Councillors for their reports and 
requested that Cornwall Council consider the Town Council should any 
state assets be devolved for community use.  
 
Councillor Griffiths thanked Cornwall Councillor Frank for the update 
provided in the report regarding the future of St Barnabas Hospital. 
Councillor Griffiths urged Cornwall Councillors to obtain specific 
information in relation to the future of the hospital services provided as 
soon as possible, as this had been identified as a major concern for the 
residents of Saltash. Councillor Frank agreed the necessity for 
additional information is a top priority. However, due to the health 
service primarily focussing on COVID provisions it has proven difficult 
to obtain any information on the future of this vital NHS service. 
 
Cornwall Councillor Worth spoke of the recent Levelling Up White 
Paper and future meetings with Cornwall Councillors and the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer to discuss proposals and how they can be 
taken forward as quickly as possible. Councillor Worth confirmed he 
would provide further information relating to the town of Saltash as 
soon as possible upon the meeting taking place. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

360/21/22 TO CONSIDER RISK MANAGEMENT REPORTS AS MAY BE 
RECEIVED 
 
None. 
 
 

361/21/22 QUESTIONS - A 15-MINUTE PERIOD WHEN MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
None. 
 
 

362/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE FULL TOWN 
COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY 13TH JANUARY 2022 
AS A TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD 
 
Please see a copy of the minutes on the STC website or request to see 
a copy at the Guildhall. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Peggs 
and RESOLVED that the minutes of the Full Town Council Meeting 
held on Thursday 13th January 2022 were confirmed as a true and 
correct record. 
 

Page 19



4983 

363/21/22 FINANCE: 
 
a. To advise the following receipts in: 

 
i. December 2021 

 
It was RESOLVED to note. 

 
b. To advise the following payments in: 

 
ii. December 2021 

 
It was RESOLVED to note. 

 
c. Urgent and essential works actioned by the Acting Town Clerk under 

Financial Regulations. 
 
None. 

 
d. To note that bank reconciliations up to 31st December 2021 were 

reviewed as correct by the Chairman of Policy & Finance Committee 
and the Acting Town Clerk. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 

 
e. To note that an audit on recent supplier payments was conducted by 

the Chairman of Policy & Finance in line with the Councils Financial 
Regulations. It was noted that there are no discrepancies to report. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



4984 

364/21/22 CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
a. To receive a letter from the Rotary Club of Saltash 

 
The Chairman informed Members of recent correspondence 
between the Mayor and the Rotary Club of Saltash. 
 
The Chairman informed Members that there had been a 
miscommunication regarding the Civic Award Policy, and that the 
Rotary Club of Saltash appear to have reacted to this, resulting in 
the correspondence received. 
 
The Chairman confirmed there is no change to the Town Council 
Civic Award Policy nor any intent by either party to change the 
relationship between the Town Council or the Rotary Club of 
Saltash. 
 
Councillor G Challen asked if a formal response would be required 
to offer clarification to discrepancies contained within the Rotary 
Club of Saltash letter.  Councillor G Challen added that the letter had 
been made available to the public on the Town Council’s website 
and could be misleading.  
 
The Chairman confirmed that a formal response was not required as 
the Rotary Club of Saltash had been advised of the procedures and 
policy in place and confirmed they were content that the 
miscommunication led to a misunderstanding that has been 
resolved satisfactorily. 

 
It was RESOLVED to note. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



4985 

 
365/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE FOLLOWING 

COMMITTEES AND CONSIDER ANY RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
a. Planning and Licensing held on Tuesday 18th January 2022.   

 
It was RESOLVED to note. There were no recommendations. 

 
b. Personnel Committee held on Tuesday 25th January 2022. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 1: 
 
122/21/22 STAFFING: 
 
b. To consider the Christmas shutdown period for the year 2022.   
 
It was proposed by Councillor Miller, seconded by Councillor Martin 
and RECOMMENDED to Full Council that the Christmas shutdown 
period commences on Friday 23rd December 2022 at 5pm 
reopening on Tuesday 3rd January 2023 at 9am.  This will not apply 
to operational staff who are required to remain on duty during this 
period. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Martin, seconded by Councillor Peggs 
and RESOLVED to note the minutes and approve the above 
recommendation. 

 
 

366/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND CONSIDER SUPPORTING SALTASH TOWN 
COUNCIL'S S106 APPLICATION. 
 
Councillor Peggs briefed Members on the content of the draft 
application. 
 
Councillor G Challen asked if the budget code EMF 6270 Crime 
Reduction with an available budget of £36,950 had been considered in 
the draft application. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that under item 7 of the application the listed 
capital costs were for the five cameras to be situated in the Town 
Centre area and not for the additional three cameras outlined in the 
CCTV provision proposal. This is due to the S106 application 
conditions of use which states that money will only be awarded to 
benefit Town Centre projects and footfall. 
 
The Chairman confirmed the available EMF budget would be utilised 
for the procurement and ongoing maintenance and operating costs of 
the proposed additional three cameras to be situated on Old Ferry 
Road, the Union Inn and the Leisure Centre. 
 

Page 22



4986 

 
The Chairman reiterated that the total project cost is £98,390.37 
including procurement of the equipment, ongoing maintenance and 
operational costs, including a 10% contingency of the overall capital 
project costs which would allow for unidentified inflation rate increases 
since the quote was received in September 2022. 
 
Therefore, the total cost requested from s106 Funding is £64,351.48 to 
cover the five cameras sited in the Town Centre. 
 
Members discussed the monitoring costs of the CCTV, Councillor 
Yates confirmed the CCTV would be recorded 24 hours per day at a 
central location in Camborne and the total monitoring costs included 44 
hours per week of live monitoring. 
 
Councillor Peggs confirmed letters of support have been offered from 
various organisations such as Saltash Chamber of Commerce and 
Safer Saltash. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor 
Griffiths and RESOLVED:  
 
1. To delegate to the Acting Town Clerk to update the final s106 

application to include the monitoring hours of 44hrs per week, 
recordings 24hrs per day 7 days a week, and letters of support 
liaising with Cllrs Bickford and Peggs prior to submission 
 

2. To support STC draft application to the s106 panel for further 
consideration in granting the requested funds of £64,351.48 

 
Members wished to formally thank Lucy Allison of Safer Saltash for her 
hard work and commitment on the first draft of the CCTV proposal 
submitted last year. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Martin 
and RESOLVED to send a letter of thanks to Lucy Allison. 
 
Councillor Foster left the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



4987 

367/21/22 TO CONSIDER THE SENIOR POLICY AND DATA COMPLIANCE 
MONITORING OFFICER ATTENDING THE TOWN COUNCIL CIVIC 
EVENT IN THE ABSENCE OF THE ACTING TOWN CLERK. 
 
Councillor Foster returned to the meeting.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor G 
Challen and RESOLVED to approve the Senior Policy and Data 
Compliance Monitoring Officer to attend the Town Council Civic Event 
to be held on Sunday 3rd April 2022 in the absence of the Acting Town 
Clerk. 
 

368/21/22 TO RECEIVE, APPROVE AND ADOPT SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS CALENDAR FOR THE YEAR 
2022/2023. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Foster 
and RESOLVED to approve and adopt Saltash Town Council schedule 
of meetings calendar for the year 2022/2023 and update relevant 
Committee’s Terms of Reference to reflect any changes to the 
scheduled meetings. 
 
 

369/21/22 CORNWALL COUNCIL - COMMUNITY NETWORK HIGHWAYS 
SCHEME RELAUNCH EXPRESSIONS OF INTEREST. 
 
The Chairman briefed Members on the relaunched highways scheme 
expression of interest. The Chairman requested Members to revisit the 
Town Council’s ideas and suggestions previously submitted and 
consider if there are any changes to be made. 
 
The Acting Town Clerk advised Members that the deadline date is 
Friday 25th February 2022. 
 
Councillor Peggs informed Members of the scheduled Saltash Area 
Road Safety Committee meeting to be held on Monday 7th February 
2022 and would correlate and submit any feedback to the Acting Town 
Clerk following discussions held by the Committee. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor G 
Challen and RESOLVED to delegate authority to the Acting Town Clerk 
to correlate Members ideas and suggestions of any changes to the 
Town Council’s previous response to the Community Network 
Highways Scheme to be submitted to the Community Link Officer by 
Friday 25th February 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



4988 

370/21/22 CORNWALL TRANSPORT PLAN - TO RECEIVE A VERBAL 
UPDATE FROM THE WORKING PARTY. 
 
Councillor Yates briefed Members on the questions and responses 
submitted by the Working Group. Councillor Yates added that the 
Working Group did not object to any of the proposals provided in the 
Cornwall Transport Plan but were concerned that sufficient funds may 
not be available to achieve all that was suggested within the plan. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Gillies 
and RESOLVED to note the verbal update and for the office to work up 
a register of real world items for future Town Council reference.  
 
 

371/21/22 CORNWALL COUNCIL - PUBLIC CONSULTATION ON 
COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW DEFERRED PROPOSALS. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

372/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT AND CONSIDER THE ACTIONS OF THE 
ESTABLISHED WORKING GROUPS. 
 
Members agreed the operations of the Council Working Groups require 
further consideration to avoid delay in the progression of resolutions 
relating to the Working Group task at hand. 
 
Councillor G Challen reminded Members that two residents attended a 
Services Committee meeting held in September 2021 to specifically 
ask a question to Council relating to the poor display of the A38 
roundabout and how important it is that the resolution of the Council is 
carried out and the residents kept up to date. 
 
Councillor Griffiths suggested various other ways to work more 
efficiently and achieve more from the enthusiasm of Members apart of 
various Working Groups. Members agreed this would require further 
thought and consideration prior to a proposal being made. 
 
Members of the existing Working Groups thanked the Acting Town 
Clerk for the reminder of the work they have committed to, with the 
Working Groups to contact the Acting Clerk to further progress the work 
assigned. 
  
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



4989 

373/21/22 TO RECEIVE AN UPDATE FROM THE PLATINUM JUBILEE 
WORKING GROUP. 
 
The Chairman updated Members on the Platinum Jubilee Working 
Groups progress. The Chairman informed Members that the original 
beacon had been located and could be reinstalled ready to use for the 
celebrations.  
 
Councillor Griffiths welcomed consideration for the Working Group to 
provide an opportunity to incorporate the Saltash Team for Youth 
Working Group to entice the younger generation to take an active role 
in the Queens Platinum Jubilee Celebrations. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

374/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT AND CONSIDER SUPPORTING THE 
FIREFIGHTERS GRAVES AT ST STEPHENS CHURCH. 
 
At the request of the Chairman, and with permission from the Town 
Council, a member of the public in attendance spoke on the report 
received and the request for the Town Council’s blessing of the project 
to memorialise and restore the graves of six brave firefighters who lost 
their lives in WW2 during the Blitz. With an educational story board to 
be installed on site, subject to the blessing of the Town Council and 
permission from the dioceses for St Stephens Churchyard. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dent, seconded by Councillor G Challen 
and RESOLVED that the Town Council give their blessing to the notion 
subject to the approval of the Joint Burial Board Committee and 
appropriate permissions from dioceses for St Stephens Churchyard. 
 
 

375/21/22 PLANNING: 
 
a. To note that Councillor Lennox-Boyd will vote upon the information 

before her at the meeting but in the light of subsequent information 
received at Cornwall Council, Councillor Lennox-Boyd may vote 
differently at that meeting. 

 
b. To note that if Councillor Lennox-Boyd wishes to recommend 

opposite to the Town Council’s view she will contact the Town 
Council by email. Considering time constraints, the Town Council 
will then hold an online poll of Councillors to determine whether to 
accept the Officer’s view or to ask for the application to be called into 
committee. The results of these polls will be read into the record at 
the next Town Council meeting. Members of the public may request, 
via the Clerk, to be copied into any correspondence. 

 
 

Page 26



4990 

c. Consideration of License Applications: 
 

Premises Name and Address GHP Hospitality Ltd., Unit 24 
Prideaux Close, Tamar View 
Industrial Estate, Saltash, PL12 
6LD. 

Applicant GHP Hospitality Ltd. 

Application Accepted 17.01.2022 

Application Type Grant 

Licensable Activities Sale by retail of alcohol 

Reference LI22_000147 

Representations Deadline 14.02.2022 

Licensing Officer Terianne Findlay 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Dent, seconded by Councillor L Challen 
and resolved to RECOMMEND to approval. 
 
 

376/21/22 MEET YOUR COUNCILLORS:  THE NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 
DATE IS SATURDAY 12TH FEBRUARY 2022 OUTSIDE BLOOM 
HEARING, FORE STREET. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Martin 
and RESOLVED for Councillors Bullock, Gillies, Martin and Peggs to 
attend. 
 
 

377/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960 
 
To resolve that pursuant to Section 1(2) of the Public Bodies 
(Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 the public and press leave the 
meeting because of the confidential nature of the business to be 
transacted. 
 
 

378/21/22 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE MAIN PART OF 
THE AGENDA. 
 
None. 
 
 

379/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960 
 
To resolve that the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



4991 

380/21/22 TO CONSIDER URGENT NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN. 
 
The Chairman wished to thank the Acting Town Clerk for all her support 
and hard work leading up to this evening’s meeting and recent months. 
 
 

381/21/22 TO CONFIRM ANY PRESS AND SOCIAL MEDIA RELEASES 
ASSOCIATED WITH ANY AGREED ACTIONS AND EXPENDITURE 
OF THE MEETING. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Foster 
and RESOLVED to issue the following Press and Social Media 
releases: 
 
1. Green Heart for February Campaign and activities at Saltash Library 

Hub 
 

2. Schedule of Meetings Calendar for the year 2022-2023 
 
3. Meet Your Councillors. 
 
 

382/21/22 DATE OF NEXT MEETING:   
 
Extraordinary Full Town Council meeting to be held on Thursday 10th 
February 2022 at 6:30 p.m.   
 

383/21/22 COMMON SEAL: 
 
It was RESOLVED that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to 
all Deeds and Documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing Acts 
and Proceedings. 
 
 

 Rising at: 8.30 pm 
 
 

Signed:  

 Chairman 
 

Dated: 
 
 

Page 28



 

4992 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of the Saltash Town Council held at the 
Guildhall on Thursday 10th February 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: R Bickford (Vice-Chairman), J Dent, J Foster, 

S Gillies, M Griffiths, S Martin, S Miller, J Peggs, B Samuels, 
P Samuels (Chairman) and D Yates. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: 1 Member of the Public, M Thomas (Senior Policy and Data 

Compliance Officer). 
 
APOLOGIES: R Bullock, G Challen, L Challen and S Lennox-Boyd. 

 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
384/21/22 HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
The Chairman informed those present of the actions required in the 
event of a fire or emergency. 
 
 

385/21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of 

the Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in 
matters to be considered at this meeting. 
 
None. 

 
b. The Senior Policy and Data Compliance Officer to receive written 

requests for dispensations prior to the start of the meeting for 
consideration. 
 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

4993 

386/21/22 TO RECEIVE APPLICATIONS FOR THE OFFICE OF TOWN 
COUNCILLOR AND TO CO-OPT A CANDIDATE TO FILL THE 
EXISTING VACANCY IN TREMATON WARD. 
 
Following an interview with the candidate a recorded vote took place. 
 

Bickford For 

Dent For 

Foster For 

Gillies For 

Griffiths For 

Martin For 

Miller For 

Peggs For 

Samuels B For 

Samuels P For 

Yates For 

 
It was unanimously RESOLVED that Brian Stoyel was co-opted as a 
Councillor for the Trematon Ward and the Chairman welcomed him to 
the council. 
 
The co-opted candidate signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office. 
 
 

387/21/22 TO CONFIRM ANY PRESS AND SOCIAL MEDIA RELEASES 
ASSOCIATED WITH ANY AGREED ACTIONS AND EXPENDITURE 
OF THE MEETING. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor P Samuels, seconded by Councillor 
Bickford and RESOLVED to issue the following Press and Social Media 
releases: 
 
1. Co-option of Brian Stoyel for the vacant seat in Trematon Ward, 

Saltash. 
 
 

388/21/22 DATE OF NEXT MEETING:  
 
The Annual Meeting with Parishioners of Saltash to be held on 
Thursday 3rd March 2022 at 6:30p.m., followed by the meeting of 
Saltash Town Council at 7:00 p.m.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

4994 

389/21/22 COMMON SEAL: 
 
It was RESOLVED that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to 
all Deeds and Documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing Acts 
and Proceedings. 

  
Rising at: 6.50 pm 

 
 

Signed:  

 Chairman 
 

Dated: 
 
 

Page 31



Saltash Town Council
Receipts January 2022

Description NET VAT GROSS
Allotment Rental Fees 124.65       -        124.65       
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Expenditure - 04/01/22 6,000.00    -        6,000.00    
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Expenditure - 07/01/22 14,000.00  -        14,000.00  
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Expenditure - 12/01/22 7,000.00    -        7,000.00    
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Expenditure - 13/01/22 10,000.00  -        10,000.00  
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Expenditure - 26/01/22 21,000.00  -        21,000.00  
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Expenditure - 28/01/22 6,000.00    -        6,000.00    
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Expenditure - 31/01/22 11,000.00  -        11,000.00  
Bank Transfer from Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Business Current Account - January Salaries - 25/01/22 49,000.00  -        49,000.00  
Barclays Loyalty Rewards 0.62           -        0.62           
Churchtown Cemetery Fees 2,466.00    -        2,466.00    
Cornwall Council - S106 Claim Town Speakers 9,050.00    -        9,050.00    
DAC Beachcroft - Festoon Lights Insurance Claim - 02/06/21 250.00       -        250.00       
Guildhall Bookings 105.00       2.50      107.50       
Isambard House Bookings 40.00         8.00      48.00         
Library Income - Fees & Charges  December 2021 57.54         11.51    69.05         
Library Income - Book Sales 74.30         -        74.30         
Library VAT Refund From Cornwall Council -             8.39      8.39           
Opayo (Previously Sage) - Non Compliance Fee Charges Refunded 65.00         -        65.00         
Public Sector Deposit Fund Interest 15.27         -        15.27         
Save The Children Christmas Jumper Day - Staff Donations 24.00         -        24.00         
Service Delivery Income - Seagull Bags 67.08         13.42    80.50         
Service Delivery Income - Trusted Boat Scheme 15.63         3.12      18.75         
St Stephen Parish Church - Cemetery Fees 1,337.00    -        1,337.00    
Water & Sewerage Charges - Saltash Bowling Club - November 2021 17.26         1.40      18.66         

Page 32

Agenda Item 17a



Saltash Town Council
Payments January 2022

Description NET VAT GROSS
1st Office Equipment - Photocopier Rental Charge 147.37       29.47       176.84       
Alexandra - Staff Uniforms 85.62         17.12       102.74       
All Seasons Window Cleaning - Isambard House - December 2021 35.00         -           35.00         
Amazon - Covid 19 H&S Materials & Equipment 369.10       73.83       442.93       
Amazon - Health & Safety Equipment 258.30       -           258.30       
Amazon - Library Activities 8.29           1.66         9.95           
Amazon - Office & IT Equipment P&F 36.82         7.36         44.18         
Amazon - Stationery Library 29.99         6.00         35.99         
Amazon - Stationery P&F 6.33           1.27         7.60           
Aquastorage System Cleaning Ltd - Monthly Legionella Monitoring - December 2021 140.00       28.00       168.00       
ASG Security - Annual Maintenance Fee - Security Alarm - Cemetery 158.22       31.64       189.86       
ASG Security - Annual Maintenance Fee - Security Alarm - Longstone 149.97       29.99       179.96       
ASG Security - Annual Maintenance Fee - Security Alarm - Maurice Huggins 160.31       32.06       192.37       
Atlantis Tanks Group - Pontoon Accommodation Maintenance 84.95         16.99       101.94       
Bank Transfer from Barclays Business Current Account to Lloyds Current - To Cover Bank Charges 50.00         -           50.00         
Barclays Bank Charges 10.56         -           10.56         
BBB Printing - ID Cards Councillors 9.29           1.60         10.89         
Brandon Hire - General Repairs & Maintenance - Longstone 75.97         15.19       91.16         
ICCM via Callington Town Council - Staff Training 133.33       26.67       160.00       
CF Corporate - Lease Rental 01/01/22 500.00       100.00     600.00       
Chubb Fire Ltd -  Fire Extinguishers Annual Service Fee - Guildhall 184.08       36.82       220.89       
Chubb Fire Ltd -  Fire Extinguishers Annual Service Fee - Library 127.44       25.49       152.93       
Chubb Fire Ltd -  Fire Extinguishers Annual Service Fee - Longstone 113.28       22.66       135.94       

 Chubb Fire Ltd - Fire Extinguisher Replacement Part - Maurice Huggins Room 63.57         12.71       76.28         
 Chubb Fire Ltd - Fire Extinguisher Service Charge - Maurice Huggins Room 61.15         12.23       73.38         

Chubb Fire Ltd - Fire Extinguisher Service Charge - Cemetery 61.15         12.23       73.38         
Chubb Fire Ltd - Fire Extinguisher Service Charge - Pontoon 61.15         12.23       73.38         
Cornwall Council - Essa Ward - Election 09/09/21 9,738.76    -           9,738.76    
Cornwall Council - Longstone Depot Monthly Rent - January 2022 375.00       -           375.00       
Cornwall Council - May 2021 Election Recharges 3,120.39    -           3,120.39    
Cornwall Council - Staff Recruitment Costs 255.00       11.00       266.00       
Cornwall Council Rates - 2021/22 Monthly Instalment - Guildhall 861.00       -           861.00       
Cornwall Council Rates - 2021/22 Monthly Instalment - Library 1,347.00    -           1,347.00    
Cornwall Council Rates - 2021/22 Monthly Instalment - Maurice Huggins Room 52.00         -           52.00         
Cornwall Council Rates - 2021/22 Monthly Instalment - Station Building 354.00       -           354.00       
Cornwall Pensions Fund Payment - January 2022 9,327.82    -           9,327.82    
Dainton Group Services - Portacabin Hire For Waterfront - January 2022 332.13       66.43       398.56       
DB Autos Ltd - Vehicle Maintenance 957.93       191.59     1,149.52    
Denmans - Electrical Parts - Maintenance 1,796.00    359.20     2,155.20    
Devon Contract Waste Ltd - Recycling Disposal 21.90         4.38         26.28         
Discount Displays Ltd - COVID-19 Portable Hygiene Protection Screen's Guildhall 1,748.65    349.73     2,098.38    
EE - Grounds Mobile Phones & Waterfront Broadband - January 2022 275.95       55.19       331.14       
Efficient Comms Ltd - Telephone Call Charges - December 2022 109.33       21.87       131.20       
Envico - Staff Training 1,000.00    200.00     1,200.00    
Ergo Desks - Office Equipment - P&F 645.00       129.00     774.00       
Flexibitions Ltd - Library Equipment & Furniture 782.00       156.40     938.40       
Forder Conservation & Community Association - Community Chest Grant 1,000.00    -           1,000.00    
Furniture@Work - Office Furniture P&F 158.00       31.60       189.60       
Garden4Less - Memorial Benches Churchtown Cemetery 1,995.00    399.00     2,394.00    
GLS Education - Library Activities 12.34         2.47         14.81         
HMRC NIC Payment - January 2022 8,653.72    -           8,653.72    
IRQ Systems Ltd - Monthly IT Maintenance & Broadband Fee 309.00       61.80       370.80       
IRQ Systems Ltd - Replacement IT Equipment Guildhall 270.00       54.00       324.00       
Junkyard Skate Park CIC - Commissioning Youth Work 4,333.33    -           4,333.33    
Kernow Installations Limited - Speaker System & Installation 6,510.50    1,302.10  7,812.60    
Laser - Christmas Light Electric Supply Point 2 - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 46.26         2.31         48.57         
Laser - Christmas Light Electric Supply Point 3 - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 39.66         1.98         41.64         
Laser - Christmas Light Electric Supply Point 4 - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 39.66         1.98         41.64         
Laser - Christmas Light Electric Supply Point 5 -  01/09/2021to 30/11/2021 46.05         2.30         48.35         
Laser - Christmas Light Electric Supply Point 6 - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 49.67         2.48         52.15         

Page 1 of 3

Page 33

Agenda Item 17b



Description NET VAT GROSS
Laser - Christmas Light Supply Point 1 - 01/09/21 to 30/11/21 40.07         2.00         42.07         
Laser - Guildhall Electric - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 892.76       178.55     1,071.31    
Laser - Guildhall Gas - 30/11/2021 to 31/12/2021 240.00       48.00       288.00       
Laser - Guildhall Gas - 31/10/2021 to 30/11/2021 209.59       41.92       251.51       
Laser - Library Electric - 02/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 547.85       109.57     657.42       
Laser - Library Gas - 30/09/2021to 31/10/2021 114.02       5.70         119.72       
Laser - Library Gas - 31/10/2021 to 30/11/2021 178.30       35.66       213.96       
Laser - Longstone Park Depot Electric - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 163.25       8.16         171.41       
Laser - Longstone Park Depot Electric- 01/06/21 to 31/08/2021 550.54       110.11     660.65       
Laser - The Maurice Huggins Room Electric - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 94.19         4.71         98.90         
Laser - Unmetered Electric Supply - 01/11/2021 to 30/11/2021 9.03           0.45         9.48           
Laser - Unmetered Electric Supply - 01/12/2021 to 31/12/2021 9.45           0.47         9.92           
Laser- Belle Vue Toilets - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 52.17         2.61         54.78         
Laser- Haldo Pillar Park light - 01/09/2021 to 30/11/2021 50.71         2.54         53.25         
Livewire Youth Music Project - Library Activities Music Workshop 50.00         -           50.00         
Medland Sanders and Twose - Machinery Maintenance 503.54       100.71     604.25       
Monthly IT Maintenance & Broadband Fee - January 2022 757.05       151.41     908.46       
Moorepay - Health & Safety And Employment Law - 09/01/22 to 08/02/22 262.83       52.57       315.40       
Moorepay - HR / Employment Law Consultancy - 20/01/22 to 19/02/22 318.75       63.75       382.50       
Moorepay - HR / Employment law Consultancy - 22/01/22 to 21/02/22 70.83         14.17       85.00         
Moorepay - Payroll & HR Software Services - December 2021 158.11       31.62       189.73       
Opayo (previously Sage) - Card Machine Rental Charges - January 2022 13.00         2.60         15.60         
Opayo (previously Sage) - December Charges and Non Compliance Fee - Refunded 40.02         -           40.02         
Opayo (previously Sage) - Elavon EMS - Bank Charges 1.78           1.78           
Origin Designed - Burial Authority Memorials 24.99         5.00         29.99         
Parish Online - Neighbourhood Plan - Annual Subscription 28/12/21 to 28/12/22 525.00       105.00     630.00       
Pertemps Recruitment - Service Delivery Temp Fees - December 2021 2,013.52    402.70     2,416.22    
Pertemps Recruitment - Service Delivery Temp Fees - January 2022 587.34       117.47     704.81       
Pontoon Annual Mooring Refund 329.02       65.80       394.82       
Protective Wear Supplies - Health & Safety Equipment - Items Returned - Refunded 241.48-       48.30-       289.78-       
Public Works Loan Board - Burial Authority Loan Repayment & Interest 10,692.33  -           10,692.33  
Pyramid Electrical Services - Repairs To Festive Lights Supply Point 6 335.00       67.00       402.00       
RBLI - Civic Occasions - Queen's Green Canopy 2022 79.17         15.83       95.00         
Saltash & District Observer Town Messenger - December 2021 300.00       -           300.00       
Saltash & District Observer Town Messenger - January 2022 300.00       -           300.00       
Saltash & District Observer Town Messenger - November 2021 300.00       -           300.00       
Saltash & District Observer Town Messenger - October 2021 300.00       -           300.00       
Saltash Town Band - Library Activities 50.00         -           50.00         
Save The Children Christmas Jumper Day - Staff Donations 24.00         -           24.00         
South West Hygiene - Alexandra Sq Toilets - 07/01/22 to 06/01/23 144.04       28.81       172.85       
South West Hygiene - Belle Vue Public Toilets - 07/01/22 to 06/01/23 194.69       38.94       233.63       
South West Hygiene - Longstone Public Toilets - 07/01/22 to 06/01/23 183.24       36.65       219.89       
South West Hygiene - Waterside Public Toilets - 07/01/22 to 06/01/23 194.69       38.94       233.63       
South West Water - Belle Vue Toilets - 30/09/21 to 21/12/21 210.41       -           210.41       
South West Water - Bowling Pavilions Longstone - 03/12/21 to 08/01/22 55.71         4.40         60.11         
South West Water - Bowling Pavilions Longstone - 03/12/21 to 08/01/22 90.10         7.05         97.15         
South West Water - Maurice Huggins Room - 03/09/2021 to 02/09/2021 44.29         3.85         48.14         
Sovereign Fire and Security Ltd - Fire Alarm Maintenance - Isambard House 40.14         8.02         48.16         
Spot-On-Supplies - Cleaning & PPE Supplies 346.39       69.28       415.67       
St John Ambulance - Staff Training 2,310.00    462.00     2,772.00    
Staff Mileage Expenses - December 2021 30.15         -           30.15         
Staff Mileage Expenses - November 2021 39.60         -           39.60         
Staff Mileage Expenses - October 2021 31.05         -           31.05         
Staff Salaries - January 2022 31,066.69  -           31,066.69  
Sumup - Bank Charges 0.32           -           0.32           
Test Meter - CO2 Monitors - Covid 19 H&S Equipment 648.45       129.69     778.14       
The Christmas Decorators - Install, Take Down & Storage of Christmas Lights Fore Street 7,032.00    1,406.40  8,438.40    
Thirsty Work - Bottled Water & Water Dispensers Hire For 6 Sites - December 2022 42.50         8.50         51.00         
Thirsty Work - Bottled Water & Water Dispensers Hire For 6 Sites - November 2022 42.50         8.50         51.00         
Thirsty Work - Bottled Water & Water Dispensers Hire For 6 Sites - October 2022 15.00         3.00         18.00         
Thirsty Work - Bottled Water & Water Dispensers Hire For 6 Sites - September 2022 42.50         8.50         51.00         
Tool Station - Library Activities 40.80         8.16         48.96         
Trade UK Account - Tools & Equipment 912.02       182.40     1,094.42    

Page 2 of 3

Page 34



Description NET VAT GROSS
Travis Perkins Trading Company Ltd - General Repairs & Maintenance 64.84         12.97       77.81         
UK Fuels Ltd - Vehicle & Machinery Fuel - January 2022 314.92       62.98       377.90       
Vortex Designs - Staff Uniforms Library 55.50         11.10       66.60         
Westcare Supply Zone - Stationery Library 39.90         7.98         47.88         
Westcare Supply Zone - Stationery P&F 82.14         16.43       98.57         
Westcare Supply Zone - Stationery Service Delivery 21.51         4.30         25.81         
Westcountry Skip Hire - Green Waste Disposal 24.58         4.92         29.50         
Westcountry Skip Hire - Skip Removal 270.00       54.00       324.00       
Wild Flower Lawns - Yellow Rattle Seeds - Grounds Maintenance 63.75         12.75       76.50         
Xero Accounting Software Monthly Subscription 09/12/21 to 08/01/22 26.00         5.20         31.20         
Zahara Systems - Annual Subscription - 14/01/22 to 13/01/23 1,521.50    304.30     1,825.80    
Zurich Municipal - Festoon lighting Claim VAT -             2.52         2.52           

Page 3 of 3

Page 35



 

 

   1 

 

I, ___________________________________________________________________________ 

(name of declarant) of 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

(address) declare that - 

1. SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL (name of tenant) propose(s) to enter into a tenancy of premises at 

Saltash Station, Albert Road, Saltash, Cornwall PL12 4EB (address of premises) for a term 

commencing on a date set out in the lease.  

2. The tenant propose(s) to enter into an agreement with FIRST GREATER WESTERN LIMITED 

(name of landlord) that the provisions of sections 24 to 28 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954 

(security of tenure) shall be excluded in relation to the tenancy. 

3. The landlord has, not less than 14 days before the tenant enter(s) into the tenancy, or (if earlier) 

become(s) contractually bound to do so served on the tenant a notice in the form, or substantially in 

the form, set out in Schedule 1 to the Regulatory Reform (Business Tenancies) (England and Wales) 

Order 2003. The form of notice set out in that Schedule is reproduced below. 

4. The tenant has read the notice referred to in paragraph 3 above and accept(s) the consequences of 

entering into the agreement referred to in paragraph 2 above. 

5. I am duly authorised by the tenant to make this declaration. 

DECLARED this _____________day of _________________________   2022. 

 

Signature: …………………………………………….. 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 18



 

 

   2 

 

To: SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL of The Guildhall, Lower Fore Street, Saltash, Cornwall  PL12 6JX 

[Name and address of tenant] 

From: FIRST GREATER WESTERN LIMITED incorporated and registered in England and Wales with 

company number 05113733 whose registered office is at Milford House, 1 Milford Street, 

Swindon, Wiltshire, SN1 1HL 

[Name and address of landlord] 

 

IMPORTANT NOTICE 

You are being offered a lease without security of tenure. Do not commit yourself to the 

lease unless you have read this message carefully and have discussed it with a 

professional adviser.  

Business tenants normally have security of tenure – the right to stay in their business premises 

when the lease ends.   

If you commit yourself to the lease you will be giving up these important legal rights. 

• You will have no right to stay in the premises when the lease ends. 

• Unless the landlord chooses to offer you another lease, you will need to leave the 

premises. 

• You will be unable to claim compensation for the loss of your business premises, unless 

the lease specifically gives you this right. 

• If the landlord offers you another lease, you will have no right to ask the court to fix the 

rent. 

It is therefore important to get professional advice – from a qualified surveyor, lawyer or 

accountant – before agreeing to give up these rights.  

If you want to ensure that you can stay in the same business premises when the lease ends, 

you should consult your adviser about another form of lease that does not exclude the 

protection of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954. 

If you receive this notice at least 14 days before committing yourself to the lease, you will 

need to sign a simple declaration that you have received this notice and have accepted its 

consequences, before signing the lease. 

But if you do not receive at least 14 days notice, you will need to sign a “statutory” 

declaration. To do so, you will need to visit an independent solicitor (or someone else 

empowered to administer oaths).  

Unless there is a special reason for committing yourself to the lease sooner, you may want to 

ask the landlord to let you have at least 14 days to consider whether you wish to give up your 

statutory rights. If you then decided to go ahead with the agreement to exclude the protection 

of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954, you would only need to make a simple declaration, 

and so you would not need to make a separate visit to an independent solicitor. 

 

Page 37



 

1 

Readopted 052021 

Saltash Town Council  

  

  

Policy/Procedure:        

    

Date of Adoption:  

    

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by both 

Councillors and employees.  

Current Status 

Version 2/2021 Approved by  ATM 

Date April 2021 Date of approval 20.05.2021 

Responsible Officer AJT Minute reference 46/21/22f(iii) 

Responsible 

Committee 

P&F Review date As required 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

01.12.2016  1  AK  Min 351/16/17 

April 2017  2  AJT    

    

 

Review Record  

Date Type of Review Minute number Summary of 

actions 

Completed by 

Feb 2017  Revision  April 2017  Ref P&R   

Min 134/16/17  

RL/AJT 

 April 

2021 

Reviewed for 

reapproval – 

new council 

   AJT 

     

 

Election of Mayor and Deputy Mayor  

 May 2021 

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Page 38

Agenda Item 19



 

2 

Readopted 052021 

Saltash Town Council 

Policy For The Election Of Mayor And Deputy Mayor  

Background   

The 1972 Local Government Act s 15 (2) requires that the first item of business at the 

Annual Meeting of the Council is to elect a Chairman for the municipal year.    

The current custom and practice at the Town Council is to pre-select the Mayor and 

Deputy Mayor at the full Council meeting held in February.  The election and installation 

takes places at the Annual Meeting.      

This policy sets out a revised process for the nomination of a Mayor Elect and Deputy 

Mayor Elect, and subsequent installation in both election and non-election years.  

1. NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF MAYOR  

  

a. In a non-election year  

  
i. At the meeting of full council held in March the outgoing Mayor will call 

for written nominations for the offices of Mayor.    

 

ii. Nomination will be by written submission, proposed and seconded by two 

members of the Council and counter signed by the nominee. The Town 

Clerk will make a standard nomination form available, although its use is 

not compulsory provided the requisite information is supplied. Electronic 

signatures will be accepted.  

 

iii. Completed nominations must be submitted to the Town Clerk within 7 

days of the issue of the call for nominations.  

 

iv. A special meeting of the Council will be held within 28 days of the issue 

of the call for nomination where the only items of business are to elect 

the Mayor Elect and Deputy Mayor-Elect.  

 

v. At least 48 hours prior to the special meeting of the Council the Clerk 

shall circulate the names of the nominated candidates to all councillors.  

 

vi. Prior to the vote for each election:  

i. The proposer of each candidate shall be allowed to speak for up to 

three minutes, in alphabetical order of candidate surname.  

ii. Each candidate shall be allowed to speak for up to three minutes, 

in alphabetical order of candidate surname.  

  

Page 39



 

3 

Readopted 052021 

vii. Where there is only one candidate for a post, a recorded vote shall be 

taken which will be by a show of hands as to whether to elect or not elect 

the nominated candidate.   

 

viii. If the nominated candidate is not elected then the council will agree 

arrangements for a re-opening of nominations, allowing at least 48 hours 

for candidates to be nominated in accordance with point 1a(ii) above.  

 

ix. Where there is more than one candidate for the post, the election will be 

carried out by recorded vote which will be by a show of hands.  

 

x. Where there are more than two candidates, the successful candidate 

must achieve a clear majority* (excluding abstentions).  Where there is 

no clear majority, the candidate achieving the lowest number of votes will 

withdraw and a second ballot held.  This process will continue until there 

is a clear majority.  

 

xi. The candidate achieving the clear majority will be nominated as Mayor at 

the Annual Meeting of the Council held in May.    

 

xii. A tie in votes may be settled by the casting vote of the Chairman of the 

meeting.  

 

xiii. The election of the Mayor shall be the first item of business at the Annual 

Meeting of Saltash Town Council in May by a recorded vote.         

  

 The successful candidate will immediately sign a Declaration of Acceptance 

of Office and take the chair for the remainder of the meeting.  

  

Advisory note:   

All councillors present are permitted to vote for the election of Mayor or Deputy 

Mayor, including the chair of the meeting and those standing for office. It is advised 

that candidates exercise their right to vote once unless they have agreed not to do 

so in advance with the other candidates.   

________________________________________________________________  

  

* The definition of a majority vote is more than half of the votes cast. 

Abstentions are excluded in calculating a majority vote.  

  

  

Page 40



 

4 

Readopted 052021 

b.  In an election year (where the Annual Meeting must be held within 14 

 days of the election)  

  

i. As soon as possible, and in any case by the end of the fourth day after 

the elections, the Clerk will issue a call for written nominations for the 

office of Mayor to all councillors to allow sufficient time for the Annual 

Meeting of the Council to be held within 14 days.  

 

ii. Nomination will be by written submission, proposed and seconded by two 

members of the Council and counter signed by the nominee. The Town 

Clerk will make a standard nomination form available, although its use is 

not compulsory provided the requisite information is supplied. Electronic 

signatures will be accepted.  

 

iii. Completed nominations must be submitted to the Town Clerk by the end 

of the sixth day after the election.  

 

iv. As soon as possible, and in any case at least 24 hours prior to the Annual 

Meeting of the Council the Clerk shall circulate the names of the 

nominated candidates to all councillors.  

 

v. The Annual Meeting of the Council will be held no later than fourteen days 

after the election where the first item of business will be the election of 

the Mayor by a recorded vote.   

 

vi. Prior to the vote for each election:  

i. The proposer of each candidate shall be allowed to speak for up to 

three minutes, in alphabetical order of candidate surname.  

ii. Each candidate shall be allowed to speak for up to three minutes, 

in alphabetical order of candidate surname.  

 

vii. Where there is only one candidate for a post, a recorded vote shall be 

taken which will be by a show of hands as to whether to elect or not elect 

the nominated candidate.   

 

viii. If the nominated candidate is not elected then the council will agree 

arrangements for a re-opening of nominations, allowing at least 48 hours 

for candidates to be nominated in accordance with point 1b(ii) above but 

still allowing for the Annual Meeting of the Council to be held within 14 

days of the election.  

 

ix. Where there is more than one candidate for the post, the election will be 

carried out by recorded vote which will be by a show of hands.   

  

Page 41



 

5 

Readopted 052021 

x. Where there are more than two candidates, the successful candidate 

must achieve a clear majority (excluding abstentions).  Where there is no 

clear majority, the candidate achieving the lowest number of votes will 

withdraw and a second ballot will be held.  This process will continue until 

there is a clear majority.  

 

xi. A tie in votes will be settled by the casting vote of the Chairman of the 

meeting.  

 

xii. The successful candidate will immediately sign a Declaration of 

Acceptance of Office and take the chair for the remainder of the meeting.  

  

Advisory notes:   

  

A. If the retiring chairman is present in the council chamber, then they must take 

the chair at the start of the Annual Meeting of the Council.   

  

 If they have been elected as a councillor for the new council, then in the 

election of the new chairman:  

• They have an original vote but are not under a duty to cast it  

• If there is an equality of votes the chairman has a casting vote which 

they must use to break the deadlock; and  

• There is no legal requirement that a chairman should use either their 

original or casting vote in any particular way. There is no legal prohibition 

against a chairman using either their original or casting vote in their own 

favour.  

If the retiring councillor has not been elected as a councillor for the new council 

then they must preside the meeting until the election of the new chairman is 

completed, and their successor appointed. The retiring chairman’s duties 

include noting the members present/absent, receiving nominations and 

counting votes in the election of the new chairman but  

• They do not have an original vote; and  

• If there is an equality of votes then they have a casting vote which they 

must use in order to break the deadlock.  

  

B. If the retiring chairman is not present the retiring Deputy Mayor will take the 

chair for the election of the chairman. If neither is present those councillors in 

attendance will vote for the councillor to take the chair for the election of the 

chairman.  

 

C. All councillors present are permitted to vote for the election of Mayor or Deputy 

Mayor, including the chair of the meeting (see advisory note 1 above) and 

Page 42



 

6 

Readopted 052021 

those standing for office. It is advised that candidates exercise their right to 

vote for themselves unless they have agreed not to do so in advance with the 

other candidates.  

 

D. In an election year there will be a Ceremonial Installation of the Mayor at a 

date to be arranged following the Annual Meeting of the Town Council.  

  

2 NOMINATION OF DEPUTY MAYOR  

  

a. The election of the Deputy Mayor will take place as the second item of business 

at the Annual Meeting of Saltash Town Council.  

 

b. The process for the nomination of the Deputy Mayor will follow the same 

timetable and procedure as that for the Mayor.  

 

c. All nominations must be received in accordance with this policy.  

  

3 NOMINATION OF MAYOR DURING THE MUNCIPAL YEAR  

  

a. Where a vacancy for the office of Mayor occurs during the municipal year, the 

process for the election of a new Mayor will be in accordance with 1b of this 

policy excepting that the timetable shall run from the date of the vacancy rather 

than of the election.  

 

b. The Deputy Mayor will assume the responsibilities of the role of Mayor and 

chair the election of the Mayor which will take place as the first item of business 

at the next meeting of Saltash Town Council.   

 

4 NOMINATION OF DEPUTY MAYOR DURING THE MUNICIPAL YEAR  

  

a.  Where a vacancy for the office of Deputy Mayor occurs during the municipal 

year, the process for the election of a new Deputy Mayor will be in accordance 

with 1b of this policy excepting that the timetable shall run from the date of the 

vacancy rather than of the election.  

  

  

  

Page 43



Nomination form for the Office of Mayor of Saltash 

Town Council 

ALL NOMINATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY 4.00PM ON THURSDAY 10TH MARCH 

2022 

Candidate’s Details 

Surname:  

Forenames:  

 

 Print name Signature 

Proposer:   

Seconder:   

Candidate:   

 

Date: 

 

Nominations may be posted to the Acting Town Clerk at the Guildhall or sent by 

email to sinead.burrows@saltash.gov.uk   

Office use only: 

Received by:  

Date:  

Time:  

Nomination checked & circulated:  

 

Page 44

mailto:sinead.burrows@saltash.gov.uk


Nomination form for the Office of 

Deputy Mayor of Saltash Town Council 
 

ALL NOMINATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY 4.00PM ON THURSDAY 10TH MARCH 

2022 

 

Candidate’s Details 

Surname:  

Forenames:  

 

 Print name Signature 

Proposer:   

Seconder:   

Candidate:   

 

Date:  

 

Nominations may be posted to the Acting Town Clerk at the Guildhall or sent by 

email to sinead.burrows@saltash.gov.uk  

Office use only: 

Received by:  

Date:  

Time:  

Nomination checked & circulated:  

 Page 45

mailto:sinead.burrows@saltash.gov.uk


 
 

 
 

Minister 
Rev. Tim Parkman  

Secretary 
Mrs. Michelle Heighway

  

Treasurer 
Mr. Graham Boles  

 

Church Administrator 
Mrs. Brenda Bonner 

Youth Worker 
Mrs Amy O’ Meakin 

 
Culver Road, Saltash, Cornwall, PL12 4DR 

01752 849948 - @SaltashBaptist 
www.saltashbaptist.co.uk  -  info@saltashbaptist.co.uk 

Saltash Baptist Church (CIO) is a registered Charity 

 

 

 

 

11th February 2022 

Dear Mayor, 

Firstly, may I apologise for the time it has taken for me to write this letter. 

We were very kindly given money to help start a Homeless Response project in the town. This has taken far 
longer than expected, however with ongoing discussions happening I am pleased that this money will be 
used to set up a phone line in which residents of Saltash can report concerns of people who are sleeping 
rough, or struggling in some way. This means that there will be a central contact point for all of the town 
and we can respond in an appropriate and swift way. 

 

Many thanks for this money once again 

 

 

Tim Parkman 

Page 46

Agenda Item 20a



Good Afternoon Saltash Town Council, 

Please may we ask, on behalf of Saltash Regatta, for a civic parade on Saturday 3rd 

September 2022, meeting at Victoria Gardens from 10.00 am, in preparation for the 

parade which will leave at 10.30 am. We intend to travel down Fore Street, past the 

Guildhall and finish at the Waterfront, where we will request that the Mayor hands out 

an award to the best-dressed organisation please, giving a small speech to open the 

Regatta. 

We will invite other organisations and issue a plan to ensure the order of the parade 

is in keeping with the requirements. 

Please may we ask that this is brought to the attention of the council at the next 

meeting. 

Kind Regards, 

Chair, Saltash Regatta 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 20b



Tresorys Kernow Application Form 

Creative Kernow  Ltd                                                 Krowji, West Park, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3AJ 

Registered in England                                                              Tel 01209 312502 | feast@creativekernow.org.uk 

Charity No 292138, company no 1727731                          www.feastcornwall.org 

 
 

 

Title of project: Gorsav Tren Festival (Train Station!) 
 

 

Applicant: Sinead Burrows 

 
 
 
 

 

Organisation:  
Saltash Town Council 
 
Job title:  Acting Town Clerk 
 

 

Email: 
sinead.burrows@saltash.go.uk 
 

 

 
Telephone:01752 844846 

 

 
Address: 
Saltash Town Council 
The Guildhall 
12 Lower Fore Street 
Postcode: 
PL12 6JX 
 

 

 
Tresorys Kernow (Cornish Treasure) is a pilot project between Cornwall Museums 
Partnership and Creative Kernow to test new ways to commission and deliver sustainable 
cultural activity in town centres.      
In line with data protection legislation we need you to confirm that you wish to be part of our 
network to receive updates and news of opportunities.  

Please tick here to be added to our mailing list:   

 

Please tick all that apply: 

 
 A professional artist/ arts organisation 
 
X A representative of a community group 
 
 Someone who has previously received FEAST funding 
 
 Someone who has never received any form of arts funding before 
 
 
(This information will not affect the success of your application) 
 
 
 

 

Page 48

Agenda Item 23

mailto:feast@creativekernow.org.uk
mailto:sinead.burrows@saltash.go.uk


Tresorys Kernow Application Form 

Creative Kernow  Ltd                                                 Krowji, West Park, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3AJ 

Registered in England                                                              Tel 01209 312502 | feast@creativekernow.org.uk 

Charity No 292138, company no 1727731                          www.feastcornwall.org 

 
 

 

Q1 Please describe your project and its links.  
 

To host a series of art and cultural activities within Isambard House (former Saltash 
Station building) during May and June 2022. Events will be aimed to encourage all 
sections of the Saltash community by ensuring a wide variety of activities. 
 
Beyond hosting our own events we aim to work with other organisations bidding into 
the Tresorys Kernow fund and provide them with a high quality venue. 
 

 

 
Q2 Who do you want to get involved with your project?  
How will you include people who might not usually take part in cultural 
activities? 
 

We would hope to engage with many people by using all forms of communication, 
from Social Media, local papers, support networks and local community 
organisations. Saltash Town Council participate in and fund the Saltash Youth 
Council. 
 

 
Q3 How many people do you anticipate will join in as audiences or 
participants?  
 
We hope that 1000’s will engage across the 3-4 week period.  

 

 
Q4 What connections have you made with local groups, businesses or 
organisations? 

 
Saltash Town Council has many connections throughout the community. This project 
has so far connected with Saltash Heritage, Community Enterprises PL12, Saltash 
Library (run by STC). SEA (Saltash Environmental Action). Locally Led Learning.  
 

 

 
Q5 We are bringing together professional artists and citizens to enhance the 
town.  
Which artist(s) do you plan to work with?  
Please provide evidence of their experience or links to their work if possible. 
 
We are not specifically working with any artists yet, but can and will support anyone 
locally. If our bid is successful we will try to engage with as many local artists as 
possible. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49

mailto:feast@creativekernow.org.uk


Tresorys Kernow Application Form 

Creative Kernow  Ltd                                                 Krowji, West Park, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3AJ 

Registered in England                                                              Tel 01209 312502 | feast@creativekernow.org.uk 

Charity No 292138, company no 1727731                          www.feastcornwall.org 

 
 

Q6 Why will your project bring people into the town centre?  
How will you market it and the whole Tresorys Kernow programme? 
 
We intend to provide a wide range of events, and play host to many more. Isambard 
House is very close to the town centre and we hope we can draw people down 
through the town. We would also hope to uniquely attract people from nearby towns 
to come by train (a banner at the station will be used to advertise the festival). 
 
The town council can utilise is usual methods for media releases through Social 
Media channels. We would work with other events to promote the wider programme 
of events being staged under the Tresorys Kernow scheme. 

 

 
Q7 Will there be an impact beyond the life of the project?  
For example, could any activity continue once your project is over? 

 
We hope that we can demonstrate that our venue is a great location for a wide 
variety of cultural events, as well as a determining that there is good local demand for 
them. 
 
It would be wonderful if this year was the first of an annual cultural festival hosted at 
Isambard House and wider town. 
 

 
 
Q8 You are legally responsible for your project.  
How will you ensure that young people and the general public are safe? 
 

Saltash Town Council have a clear set of policies and are used to running publicly 
accessible buildings in a safe and secure manner. 
 
Safeguarding Policy 
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/edit/stuploads/8189_222406622.pdf 
 
Evacuation Policy 
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/edit/stuploads/5308_1365624381.pdf 
 
Health and Safety Manual 
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/edit/stuploads/8218_35918584.pdf 
 
 

 

 
Q9 Which locations do you plan to use and when will it happen? 

 
Isambard House at Saltash Station, although we may consider use of our historic 
Guildhall for some events if appropriate. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 50

mailto:feast@creativekernow.org.uk
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/edit/stuploads/8189_222406622.pdf
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/edit/stuploads/5308_1365624381.pdf
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/edit/stuploads/8218_35918584.pdf


Tresorys Kernow Application Form 

Creative Kernow  Ltd                                                 Krowji, West Park, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3AJ 

Registered in England                                                              Tel 01209 312502 | feast@creativekernow.org.uk 

Charity No 292138, company no 1727731                          www.feastcornwall.org 

 
 

Q10 How will you ensure your project has a positive environmental impact? 

 
Saltash Town Councill continue to pursue working practices and methods that 
positively impact our environment. We continue to avoid the use of single use 
plastics and are a key partner to the campaign for Plastic Free Saltash. Isambard 
House is newly renovated and is therefore well insulated. We will encourage people 
to walk or cycle where they can as well as coming by train or bus. 

 

 
Q11 Having read all the Tresorys Kernow criteria (available on our website) is 
there anything else you want to tell is about your project? (It is not essential 

for you to add anything more) 
 
 

 

Q12 How will you know if your project has been a success?  
Please tell us how you will evaluate your project. 
 
We will maintain a good record of attendance at activities as well as providing the 
opportunity to feedback on both paper at events or electronically online. 
 

 
 

Q13 How much are you asking us for? 
 
£2,500 
 
 

 

Please complete your application with the following one page budget for your project. 
 
 

Please note that the income and expenditure totals should balance 
 
 
Expenditure 

Item or activity Cost 

Flag making workshop £500 

2 x Craft workshops £400 

Climate change workshop £200 

Green Fashion show £100 

Activities for young people £400 

Murder Mystery night £250 

4 x Heritage Talks £200 

Art exhibition for local artists £0 

Quiz night £0 

Film night £50 

Event to bring artists together £0 

Venue hire £1500 

Promotion £100 

Total 3700 

 

Page 51

mailto:feast@creativekernow.org.uk


Tresorys Kernow Application Form 

Creative Kernow  Ltd                                                 Krowji, West Park, Redruth, Cornwall TR15 3AJ 

Registered in England                                                              Tel 01209 312502 | feast@creativekernow.org.uk 

Charity No 292138, company no 1727731                          www.feastcornwall.org 

 
 

 
Income (under ‘Awaiting confirmation’ or ‘successful’, please tick one box) 

Other sources Amount Awaiting 
confirmation 
 

Successful 

STC contribution to Venue hire £500  Y 

Ticket sales for some events £700 approx  

    

    

    

    

    

Requested from Tresorys 
Kernow 

£2500 

TOTAL 3700 

 

Page 52

mailto:feast@creativekernow.org.uk


Tresorys Kernow 

Saltash Town Council bid to run a mini cultural festival from Isambard House 

Report and draft funding bid by Cllr Richard Bickford 2nd March 2022 

The Tresorys Kernow fund has been setup to develop new cultural initiatives in a 

number of town centres across Cornwall. The idea is for STC to run a series of 

events that would appeal to a wide range of public, utilising Isambard House as a 

high quality flexible venue for many different events. The funding bid asks for £2500 

which STC can use to predominantly offset hire charges that would be waived or 

reduced as well as put on some specific events. We should also look to work with 

other bidders who may be looking for a venue for their own proposals. 

The events are likely to take place in May, but could overlap into June and the 

Queens Platinum Jubilee celebrations. To ensure this is successfully delivered I 

would suggest a Working Group be established of interested councillors who would 

be prepared to oversee the successful delivery of some of the events. 

The attached draft funding bid outlines the above in more detail, showing potential 

partners and some events of a potential programme of events. Below is more detail 

regarding the fund and its overall aims. 

I would hope that if we can deliver this successfully that a programmed series of 

cultural events at Isambard House could become an annual occurrence. 

Cllr Richard Bickford 

 

Tresorys Kernow: Saltash 

Criteria against which proposals will be judged 

Tresorys Kernow (Cornish Treasures) is a pilot project to test new ways to 

commission and deliver sustainable cultural activity in town centres. We want to 

show that town centres can be reinvigorated through an imaginative and locally 

relevant programme of cultural events. Tresorys Kernow is also about exploring how 

communities can and should adapt to the very real challenges of climate change and 

respond to the benefits that nature provides.  

We are looking for high quality projects that take an innovative and considered 

approach to developing new Saltash audiences and involving as wide a range of 

people of all ages and backgrounds as possible. Projects must be for and with the 

community and you must show how your project will include plans to include and 

empower young people and people often excluded for social, health or economic 

reasons.  

You can apply for up to £2,500. Match funding is not essential but obviously other 

financial or in kind contributions to your project, will help make the case for it.  

The application process will close on the 16th of March. 

We expect decisions to be announced in the week of the 27th March 

Page 53



Core criteria 

ALL projects need to meet the following core criteria: 

1. Quality and the ability to excite.   
We are looking only for work of a high standard that is fresh and inspiring  
 

2. A considered approach to developing Saltash audiences and involving as 
wide a range of people of all ages and backgrounds as possible.  
Projects must be for and with the community and you must show how your project 
will include efforts to include young people and people often excluded for social, 
health or economic reasons.  
 

3. An innovative approach to interpreting Saltash heritage.   

Saltash must be at the heart of the proposal and we are looking for fresh ways to 
bring this alive to residents and visitors 
 

4. Value for money.  

This involves a number of factors.  
In essence we are looking at what the Tresorys investment will buy in terms of 
quality, duration and number of cultural opportunities for the community.  
The long term impact or legacy of the project will also inform judgements about 
value for money.  
Budgets must be realistic.  
 

5. Connectedness.  

Evidence of well researched links to local organisations, groups and/or businesses 
and spaces/venues. 
 

6. Legacy.  

Projects should aim to have a longer term impact in terms of skills imparted, 
ongoing cultural activity, invigorated linkages, changed perceptions or new 
initiatives in Saltash. 
 

7. Promotion of Saltash town centre.  
Both the content of the project and the marketing plan should help draw people 
into the town centre  
 

8. Contribution to a network of knowledge and promotion in Saltash so that the 
whole becomes more than the sum of its parts.   

We want all projects in the programme to help promote or support each other in 
some way. 
 
Additional criteria 
Projects may also offer to meet some of the following.   
 

9. Develop the Saltash cultural offer. 
Projects may aim to invigorate and sustain existing local annual traditions, events 
or link to other significant (local or national) points in the calendar in order to 
establish new activity around food, annual events, festivals, celebrations, or a one 
off high profile event which draws media attention. 

Page 54



 
10. Cultivate local cultural leadership and leave a legacy of skills, confidence 

and enthusiasm.  
ALL projects must be embedded within the community.  
Some projects will offer particular opportunities for artists to pass on skills to local 
volunteers and activists so that they are more able to lead and grow their own 
cultural events. 
 

11. Build the cultural infrastructure.  
Make inventive use of Saltash spaces and venues to diversify the offer and build 
expectations of what is possible.  
 

12. Establish cross sector partnerships to offer a creative way of engaging with 
some Saltash social, economic or environmental issues.  

We expect projects to network local cultural organisations and strengthen the links 
between them, but there is also the possibility of working with non-cultural sector 
partners such as the police or health.  
We will expect applicants to provide evidence of the interest/support of partner 
organisations.  
 

13. Develop the spirit of enterprise.  
Build platforms and opportunities for entrepreneurialism, the development of local 
talent and the vitality of local markets and businesses in Saltash. 
 

14. Young people’s voices.  
We expect all projects to involve young people as part of the community. 
We expect projects to empower Saltash young people to play an active role in 
community life. 
 

 

 

Page 55



SALTASH
TOWN

COUNCIL
Annual Report 2021-2022

Page 56

Agenda Item 24



Page 57



Text to be provided from the Mayor of
Saltash 2021-2022 Cllr P Samuels

texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext

A WARM WELCOME
FROM THE MAYOR OF
SALTASH

Page 3

texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttextte

Page 58



0 500,000 1,000,000 1,500,000

2020-2021 

2021-2022 

2022-2023 

pnYOUR MONEY MATTERS
How your council tax contributes to your Community

+12.71%

-8.95%

+4.28%

Texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttextexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttext

Text to be included in here from the P&F Committee Chairman and
Vice Chairman

Saltash Town Council Annual Report 2021-2022

Budget Against Actual Expenditure
Texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex

Saltash Town Council hold budget and precept meetings annually to determine the amount that is
necessary to maintain services that residents would rightly expect. The Council strives to continue to

improve efficiencies in the way it operates. 
The graph and data below shows the past three years precepted figures and percentage increase and

decrease rates.

To
ta

l o
f £

1,
17

1,
12

3

To
ta

l o
f £

1,
30

4,
08

3

To
ta

l o
f £

1,
25

5,
69

0

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

Preecpt Amount 

EXAMPLE

Page 59



Saltash Town Council are proud to have awarded the following Grants: 
Community Chest Grants
Saltash United Juniors FC - £970
Coombe Woods Regeneration Project - £700
Sue Hooper Charitable Foundation - £700
Forder Conservation & Community Association - £1,000
Saltash Amateur Boxing Club - £1,000 

Festival Funds
Royal British Legion Saltash - £700

To find out more read our Grants Policy here: https://www.saltash.gov.uk/edit/stuploads/8193_435536206.pdf 
Apply using our application forms here: https://www.saltash.gov.uk/forms.php

YOUR COMMUNITY
Did you know Saltash Town Council invites the local community to apply for two types of
Grants - Community Chest and Festival Funds

 ''If you have all your facts to
hand and have read the

criteria, it's painless to apply
and the reward was a joy."' 

- Forder CCA

Case Study - Friends of Tincombe
Festival Fund to hold Tincombe Tea Party

Friends of Tincombe were awarded money from the festival fund to hold a tea party for the community on Tincombe green.
The free event will involve live music, activities for children and stalls with local crafts. The community group asked for

funding to pay for the live music, toilet facilities, road closure fees and health and safety requirements of staging such an
event. Further funding was sought and sponsorship received from local companies. Cornwall Council’s Street works team
supported the group in assisting with risk assessments and event management plans. This really was a community effort! 

The event was a great success with approx. 1000 people enjoying the day. 

Page 5

' The Friends of Tincombe
found Saltash Town Council to

be helpful, encouraging and
efficient when making our

funding application.'

'The Foundation has been very grateful
for the funding received from the Council

for various projects which has enabled
the local community to participate in all

the musical and dramatic projects staged
over the years.' 

- The Sue Hooper Charitable Foundation 

Page 60



YOUR
COUNCIL

WORKING
FOR YOU

Text to be included in here from the Chairman
and Vice Chairman Personnel

texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext

texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext

Saltash Town Council Annual Report 2021-2022

Page 61



YOUR SERVICE DELIVERY DEPARTMENT
Text to be provided from the Chairman and Vice Chairman of Services

texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttextt
exttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttextte
xttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttex
ttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttextt
exttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttextte

xttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext
Our easy to use service delivery page on the Town Council’s website provides you with the
latest jobs the team have undertaken and also allows the community to report any concerns
identified in the town. You can find it here: https://www.saltash.gov.uk/service_delivery.php 

Page 7

BEFORE

AFTER

Page 62

https://www.saltash.gov.uk/service_delivery.php


YOUR 
COMMUNITY

SERVICES

Saltash Town Council Annual Report 2021-2022

Page 63



Churchtown Cemetery

Joint Burial Board

The Burial Authority is a full council committee. It is chaired by Cllr
Jean Dent with Cllr Brenda Samuels as vice chair. 

It looks after the cemetery at the top of Farm Lane opposite St
Stephen’s Church and the allotments at the far end of the area,

meeting when necessary. 
Our Service Delivery Team are responsible for keeping the area in

the wonderful state that you see it in! 
They also supervise burials. 

Recent activity includes offering memorial benches and roses to the
public. If you need further information please contact the Guildhall

or visit our website:
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/churchtowncemetery.php

TexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTextte
xttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttext
tTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTextt
exttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttex
ttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttText
texttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttextte
xttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTex
ttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttextt
exttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTe
xttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTextTexttexttexttText
texttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttextte
xttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTex
ttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttextt
exttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTe
xttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttexttexttTexttext

texttTexttexttexttTexttexttextt

Page 9

Allotments
Allotments and community gardens are a great way to grow your own food
and enjoy the fresh air whilst learning about cultivation, observing wildlife and
improving your mental health and wellbeing.
Saltash Town Council oversees three allotment sites - Fairmead, Grenfell and
Churchtown.
We currently have waiting lists for all three sites. If you would like to be added
to our waiting list please email enquiries@saltash.gov.uk.Page 64



Useful Information......

Facilities to Hire
Saltash Town Council has facilities to hire with great rooms for hire to hold a variety of events. The
rooms can be hired for meetings, dance classes, birthday parties, exhibitions, family celebrations, local
fundraising events. Check out our website to find out more:
https://www.saltash.gov.uk/facilitiesforhire.php

Schedule of Meetings
Saltash Town Council recently approved the Town Councils Schedule of Meetings Calendar for the year
2022-2023. 
The schedule can be found on the Town Council website https://www.saltash.gov.uk/council.php

Town Council meetings are held in the evenings at The Guildhall and are open to the public and press.
Agendas are published on the website, social media and noticeboards three clear working days before
each meeting.

Any member of the public requiring to put a question to the Town Council must do so 24 hours prior to
the meeting by email enquiries@saltash.gov.uk or by letter to the Acting Town Clerk, The Guildhall, 12
Lower Fore Street, Saltash PL12 6LW.

All residents are encouraged to attend and listen to the debate and what decisions are being made for
the town.

On the  Saltash Town Council website you can find the Committee Organisational Structure all the
committees, sub committees and working groups within the Council and their Membership, including
an easy to follow flow chart of the parenting committees that oversee them

https://www.saltash.gov.uk/council.php 

Committee Organisational Structure

Saltash Town Council Annual Report 2021-2022

Page 65



Page 11







Cllr Steve Miller
s.miller@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Brenda Samuels
b.samuels@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Lewis Challen
l.challen@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Sarah Gilles
s.gillies@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Sarah Martin
s.martin@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Julia Peggs
j.peggs@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Pete Samuels
p.samuels@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Richard Bickford
r.bickford@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Rachel Bullock
r.bullock@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Gloria Challen
g.challen@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Jean Dent
j.dent@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Matt Griffiths
m.griffiths@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Sheila Lennox-Boyd
s.lennox-boyd@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr Jon Foster
j.foster@saltash.gov.uk

Cllr David Yates
d.yates@saltash.gov.uk

Meet Your Councillors
ES

SA
 

TA
M

A
R 

TR
EM

A
TO

N
 

Every second Saturday of the Month outside Bloom Hearing, Fore Street

Cllr Brian Stoyel
  b.stoyel@saltash.gov.uk

Page 66



WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP FOR THE
PEOPLE OF SALTASH

Text from Devolution / Town Vision / Planning and
Licensing

texttexttexttexttexttexttexttexttext

Meet Your Cornwall Councillors

ESSA TAMAR TREMATON
& LANDRAKE 

AWAITING
 IMAGE

AWAITING
 IMAGE

AWAITING
 IMAGE

Councillor 
Martin Worth

cllr.martin.worth@cornwall.gov.uk

Councillor 
Sheila Lennox-Boyd

cllr.sheila.lennox-boyd@cornwall.gov.uk

Councillor 
Hilary Frank

cllr.hilary. frank@cornwall.gov.uk

Saltash Leisure Centre

Saltash Town Council Annual Report 2021-2022

Page 67



DID
YOU
KNOW

It can often be confusing trying to work out which service falls within the remit of each local authority,
especially for residents who are unaware of the distinction. The table below provides a short guide to the
different services provided at each level of local government. However, it should be stressed that Councils

have some freedom to develop services to benefit the community which could be undertaken at either
level of local government.




Saltash Town Council
Saltash Library 

Saltash Public Toilets
Allotments

Planning and Licensing
Events

Open Spaces
Public Right of Ways

Pontoon
Seagull Bags

Burials and Memorials

Cornwall Council
Rubbish and Recycling

Highways and Transport
Council Tax

Schools
Parking
Benefits

Health and Social Care
Housing

Planning and Licensing 

Page 13

Page 68



Have 
Your 
Say.........

Isambard House

Saltash Library Hub
After a difficult time through which Saltash Library continued to serve the people of Saltash,
we are now open and coming back to being able to offer all the activities that we are
renowned for. There is an ever-increasing Facebook following, interaction with local schools
and businesses and hub activities galore. Look out for the Science Fair in March.
We mustn’t forget our core business of providing reading materials. Be it fiction, nonfiction,
newspapers, magazines and the ability to find and order almost any book that the library
service in the whole of Cornwall has in stock! We are looking forward to future works to
upgrade our listed building. 

  THE FUTURE
Climate Change & Environmental Working Group

Saltash Neighbourhood Plan

KEEP AN EYE OUT FOR OUR
COMMUNITY SURVEYS

Saltash Town Council run community surveys via Survey
Monkey. In completing a short survey you are assisting
Saltash Town Council in the decisions they make on
behalf of the residents and community of Saltash. 

Saltash Team for Youth 
We are pleased to have successfully increased the budget for the tendering of professional
youth work in the 2022 / 23 financial year by 25% to £50,000. Our plans for next year also
include expanding the membership of the group to increase our understanding of the issues
young people face to inform the actions we take. We will also be working with the Services
Team to carry out a mapping of existing play provision to identify where improvements need
to be made.

Saltash Town Council Annual Report 2021-2022

Page 69



Administration Department
Behind every great Council is a hardworking Administration Department.
Comprising of the Town Clerk / RFO, Deputy Town Clerk, Senior Policy and Data
Compliance Monitoring Officer, Administration Officer, Planning and General
Administrator and the Mayor’s Secretary / Receptionist.
This small but dedicated team are on hand to assist and support the Members of
the Council, residents of Saltash and it's community. The Administration
Department proudly supports and undertake any works instructed by the Council
from the resolutions from committee meetings.

The SD Team comprises of the Manager, Assistant Manager, six Service Delivery
General Assistants, a Cleaner/ Caretaker and Casual Caretaker. They carry out
works across the Town including but not limited to Pontoon Management, various
Grounds Maintenance throughout the town and surrounding areas and General
Maintenance on all Saltash Town Council buildings and assets. 

Saltash Library Hub has so much to offer to the community of Saltash. It is not
possible to list the entire service here so what better way to learn about the
library than seeing it for yourself. 
The Community Hub Team Leader - Dave Orton and his team would be more than
happy to tell you all about the services of Saltash Library and include what the
future plans for the Library will look like for the Council and its community. 

Service Delivery Department

Finance Department

THE TEAM

Saltash Library Hub

Page 15

The Finance Department comprises of the Finance Officer and Finance
Assistant. The Responsible Finance Officer (RFO) is the Town Clerk. The financial
processes involve dealing with payments, receipts, sales invoices, purchase
orders, processing of purchase invoices, payroll, VAT returns and regularly
monitoring the Council’s income and expenditure against the approved budgets,
year-end internal and external audits, annual governance and accountability
return (AGAR), assist the Council in setting the budget and precept, making the
Councils financial management completely transparent. The Finance Department
has a rigorous system of internal controls to ensure the council accounts for all
financial transactions adequately and effectively in line with the local council
practitioners guide and financial procedures/policies of the Council to minimise
theft and fraudulent activity.  All procurement ensures public funds are used in an
economic and efficient manner to ensure the best possible value for money.

Page 70



Page 71



AWAITIN
G PICTURES

Page 72



CO
N

TA
CT

 U
S

enquiries@saltash.gov.uk

01752 844846

www.saltash.gov.uk

The Guildhall 
12 Lower Fore Street
Saltash
PL12 6JX

@SaltashTownCouncilOfficial

@SaltashTC

Page 73



 

83 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the  Meeting of the Joint Burial Board Committee held at the 
Guildhall on Tuesday 8th February 2022 at 6.00 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: J Dent, S Lennox-Boyd, B Samuels (Co-Chair), 

L Maddock, S McKee (Co-Chair) and M Wills. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: 3 Members of the Public, D Fowell – Pengelly Funeral 

Services, S Burrows (Acting Town Clerk) and M Cotton 
(Assistant Sevice Delivery Manager) 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillor D Yates. 

 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 
The Co-Chairman announced that agenda item 12 would be taken as 
the first item of business. 

 
34/21/22 HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
The Co-Chairman informed those present of the actions required in the 
event of a fire or emergency. 
 
 

35/21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: 
 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of 

the Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in 
matters to be considered at this meeting. 
 
None. 

 
b. The Acting Town Clerk to receive written requests for dispensations 

prior to the start of the meeting for consideration. 
 
None. 

 
 

36/21/22 QUESTIONS - A 15-MINUTE PERIOD WHEN MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 27a



 

84 

37/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE JOINT 
BURIAL BOARD MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY 12TH OCTOBER 
2021 AS A TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD. 
 
Please see a copy of the minutes on the STC website or request to see 
a copy at the Guildhall. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor B Samuels, seconded by the Co-
Chairman Sandra McKee and RESOLVED that the minutes of the Joint 
Burial Board Committee held on Tuesday 12th October 2021 were 
confirmed as a true and correct record. 
 
 

38/21/22 TO RECEIVE THE CURRENT COMMITTEE BUDGET STATEMENT. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

39/21/22 TO CONSIDER RISK MANAGEMENT REPORTS AS MAY BE 
RECEIVED. 
 
No report. 
 
 

40/21/22 HEALTH & SAFETY. 
 
The Co-Chairman announced that agenda item 7 would be combined 
with agenda item 11 (minute number 44/21/22). 
 
 

41/21/22 CORRESPONDENCE. 
 
None. 
 
 

42/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM SALTASH ENVIRONMENTAL 
ACTION (SEA) ON THE WORK TO ESTABLISH WILDFLOWERS AT 
ST STEPHENS CHURCHYARD. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



 

85 

43/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT AND CONSIDER SUPPORTING THE 
FIREFIGHTERS GRAVES AT ST STEPHENS CHURCH 
 
Assistant Service Delivery Manager arrived at the meeting. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor B Samuels, seconded by Councillor Dent 
and RESOLVED that the Joint Burial Board Committee give their 
blessing to the notion subject to the appropriate permissions from the 
diocese for St Stephens Churchyard. 
 
 

44/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT FROM THE SERVICE DELIVERY 
DEPARTMENT. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dent, seconded by Councillor B Samuels 
and RESOLVED to note the report and that the Service Delivery 
Department work up a health and safety report relating to the clearance 
of the Churchyard pathways identified as STC or Cornwall Council to be 
received at a future Joint Burial Board meeting. 
 
 

45/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960: 
 
To resolve that pursuant to Section 1 (2) of the Public Bodies 
(Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 the public and press leave the 
meeting because of the confidential nature of the business to be 
transacted. (As required or if necessary). 
 
 

46/21/22 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE MAIN PART OF 
THE AGENDA. 
 
None. 
 
 

47/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960: 
 
To resolve that the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 

48/21/22 TO CONSIDER URGENT NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN. 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



 

86 

49/21/22 TO CONFIRM ANY PRESS AND SOCIAL MEDIA RELEASES 
ASSOCIATED WITH ANY AGREED ACTIONS AND EXPENDITURE 
OF THE MEETING. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor B Samuels, seconded by Councillor 
Lennox-Boyd and RESOLVED to issue the following Press and Social 
Media release: 
 
1. Saltash Environmental Action (SEA) work to establish wildflowers at 

St Stephens Churchyard. 
 
 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday 28th June 2022 at St Stephens Churchyard at 6 p.m., followed 
by a site visit. 
 
Rising at: 6.35 pm 

 
Signed:  

 Chairman 
 

Dated: 
 
 

Page 77



 

369 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the  Meeting of the Services Committee held at the Guildhall on 
Wednesday 9th February 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: R Bickford (Vice-Chairman), R Bullock, J Dent, 

S Gillies, M Griffiths, S Lennox-Boyd, S Miller, J Peggs 
(Chairman) and D Yates. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: 2 Members of the Public, H Frank (Cornwall Council), 

M Thomas (Senior Policy and Data Compliance Officer), 
R Enticknap (Service Delivery Manager) and D Joyce 
(Administration Officer) 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors: G Challen, J Foster, S Martin and P Samuels. 

 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 
82/21/22 HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
The Chairman informed those present of the actions required in the 
event of a fire or emergency. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Senior Policy and Data Compliance Officer 
for her attendance at this evening’s meeting in the absence of the 
Acting Town Clerk. 
 
 

83/21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: 
 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of 

the Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in 
matters to be considered at this meeting. 
 

Councillor Agenda 
Item 

Pecuniary / 
Non-Pecuniary 

Reason Left the 
Meeting 

Dent 8 Non-Pecuniary Husband 
affiliated with 

Maritime 
Cadets 

Yes 

 
b. The Senior Policy and Data Compliance Officer to receive written 

requests for dispensations prior to the start of the meeting for 
consideration. 
 
None. 

 
 
 

Page 78

Agenda Item 27b



 

370 

84/21/22 QUESTIONS - A 15-MINUTE PERIOD WHEN MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 
None. 
 
 

85/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE SERVICES 
COMMITTEE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 8TH DECEMBER 2021 AS A 
TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD 
 
Please see a copy of the minutes on the STC website or request to see 
a copy at the Guildhall. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Peggs, seconded by Councillor Bickford 
and RESOLVED that the minutes of the Services Committee held on 
Wednesday 8th December 2021 were confirmed as a correct record.  
 
 

86/21/22 TO RECEIVE THE CURRENT COMMITTEE BUDGET STATEMENT 
AND CONSIDER THE RECOMMENDED VIREMENT. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dent, seconded by Councillor Bullock 
and RESOLVED to note the current committee budget statements. 
 
The Chairman briefed Members on the overspend of £1,008 against 
Services budget code 6525 Public Toilets (Repairs & Maintenance 
Costs). 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Gillies 
and RESOLVED to approve the virement of £1,500 from the Services 
budget code 6522 Pontoon (Maintenance Costs) to budget code 6525 
Public Toilets (Repairs & Maintenance Costs). 
 
 

87/21/22 TO CONSIDER RISK MANAGEMENT REPORTS AS MAY BE 
RECEIVED 
 
No report. 
 
The Chairman announced the next item of business to be received is 
agenda item 13. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



 

371 

88/21/22 TO RECEIVE A PROPOSAL FOR THE RENOVATION OF 
SUMMERFIELD PARK BY FRIENDS OF SUMMERFIELD AND 
CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND ASSOCIATED EXPENDITURE. 
 
Councillor Miller arrived and joined the meeting during this item. 
 
Members discussed the proposal for the renovation of Summerfield 
Park that had been received.  
 
Councillor Griffiths confirmed that the Friends of Summerfield Park 
Committee were aware that Cornwall Council are responsible for the 
area and have liaised with both Cornwall Councillors and Cormac. The 
Committee are actively fundraising and also wish to pursue available 
grants to refurbish and then maintain the park. Cornwall Councillor 
Hilary Frank confirmed that there is s106 money available for the area.  
 
The Friends of Summerfield Park Committee wish to work proactively 
with Saltash Town Council as well as the other agencies involved to 
move the project forward  
 
It was proposed by Councilllor Bickford, seconded by Councillor 
Griffiths and RESOLVED to support the Friends of Summerfield Park 
Committee, working in conjunction with Cornwall Council. Councillors 
Griffiths, Peggs and Essa Ward Councillors will actively liaise with the 
Committee. 
 
It was further proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor 
Peggs and RESOLVED to refer to the Devolution Sub Committee for 
further investigation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



 

372 

Councillor Dent declared an interest in the next agenda item and left the 
meeting. 
 
 

89/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND CONSIDER A REQUEST FROM SALTASH 
MARITIME CADETS TO UTILISE TOWN COUNCIL LAND IN 
PILLMERE. 
 
The Chairman invited the representatives of the Maritime Cadets to 
present their proposal to the Committee. 
 
The representative explained to Members the reasons for the request 
for use of land adjacent to the unit used by the Cadets in Pillmere. The 
land would assist in facilitating numerous outdoor activities that are not 
currently offered to the Maritime Cadets. Their insurance policy requires 
an agreement from the landowner before use of any land not in their 
ownership. 
 
The Service Delivery Manager confirmed the parcel of land identified is 
owned by Saltash Town Council but not currently maintained by the 
Service Delivery Department. 
 
The Chairman advised the representatives that a formal agreement 
would be required and legal costs met by Saltash Maritime Cadets. The 
representatives confirmed this was understood. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Peggs, seconded by Councillor Miller and 
RESOLVED to give delegated authority to the Acting Town Clerk to 
further progress the request for use the of land at Pillmere subject to 
necessary legal, insurance, access requirements and costs being met 
by the applicant. 
 
Councillor Dent was invited and returned to the meeting. 
 
 

90/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND NOTE A REPORT FROM THE SERVICE 
DELIVERY DEPARTMENT AND CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND 
ASSOCIATED EXPENDITURE. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note the Service Delivery Department report and 
to review the monitoring of sharps incidents at a later date should 
occurrences increase. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

373 

91/21/22 TO CONSIDER FESTIVE LIGHTS, DECORATIONS AND 
INSTALLATION OF A BEACON FOR THE QUEENS PLATINUM 
JUBILEE CELEBRATIONS AND ANY ACTIONS AND ASSOCIATED 
EXPENDITURE. 
 
Councillor Bickford briefed Members on the condition of the Town 
Council owned wood burning beacon which has been in storage at 
Churchtown Cemetery. Councillor Bickford added that a smaller gas lit 
beacon was also available for use for the Jubilee Celebrations.  
 
Members discussed the various options, implications, work schedules 
and costs relating to either purchasing a new beacon or refurbishing the 
Council’s wood burning beacon. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Gillies 
and RESOLVED that the Service Delivery Manager: 
 
1. Further investigates accurate costings for the refurbishment of the 

original wood burning beacon 
 

2. Enquires with Cornwall Council for permission to remove a bush and 
install the wood burning beacon at the site identified on Jubilee 
Green.  

 
3. Submits a report for Member’s consideration at the following Full 

Town Council meeting scheduled to be held on Thursday 3rd March 
2022. 

 
 

92/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND NOTE A REPORT ON THE CURRENT 
CHRISTMAS LIGHTS AND 2022 CHRISTMAS LIGHT SWITCH ON 
EVENT AND CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND ASSOCIATED 
EXPENDITURE. 
 
Members discussed options for the Christmas Light Switch on Event 
2022 and the need for secure electrical cabinets and improved lighting, 
systems and decorations. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Peggs, seconded by Councillor Lennox-
Boyd and RESOLVED to give delegated authority to the Service 
Delivery Manager to: 
 

1. Obtain quotes for warmer lighting and hanging decorations to be 
situated in Fore Street with a report to be received at a future 
Services Committee meeting. 
 

2. Further progress with infrastructure improvements including 
secure electrical cabinets and automated functionality, where 
possible, with works to be completed in time for the Jubilee 
celebrations. 

Page 82



 

374 

 
 

93/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND NOTE A REPORT ON NON-HERBICIDE WEED 
CONTROL AND CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND ASSOCIATED 
EXPENDITURE. 
 
Members considered the report and recommendations from the Service 
Delivery Manager.  
 
The Service Delivery Manager confirmed to Members that the purchase 
of the equipment recommended would be cost effective and time saving 
resulting in further costs being saved within the SD department.  
 
It was noted that redundant equipment may be sold on. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Griffiths, seconded by Councillor Gillies 
and RESOLVED to approve the purchase of: 
 

1. RipaGreen Mobile Kit – Thermal Heat lance and back pack at a 
cost of £1,950 + VAT 
 

2. Kersten TSM900 flail mower attachment to fit UBS power unit at 
a cost of £1,895 + VAT 
 

3. Kersten UBS 14 PTO 2 wheeled Tractor c/w front sweeper 
attachment and weedbrush attachment at a cost of £7,650 + 
VAT 

 
4. WeedGo Pro weed removal brush to fit strimmer at a cost of 

£445 + VAT 
 
Total cost of £11,940 + VAT to be allocated within budget to the 
following budget codes: 

 BA EMF 6071 Replace Machinery and Equipment  

 Services EMF 6578 Equipment and Vehicles. 
 
 

94/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960: 
 
To resolve that pursuant to Section 1(2) of the Public Bodies 
(Admission to meetings) Act 1960 the public and press leave the 
meeting because of the confidential nature of the business to be 
transacted. 
 
 

95/21/22 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE MAIN PART OF 
THE AGENDA 
 
None. 
 

Page 83



 

375 

 
96/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960: 

 
To resolve that the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 

97/21/22 TO CONSIDER URGENT NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN. 
 
None. 
 
 

98/21/22 TO CONFIRM ANY PRESS AND SOCIAL MEDIA RELEASES 
ASSOCIATED WITH ANY AGREED ACTIONS AND EXPENDITURE 
OF THE MEETING. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Lennox-Boyd, seconded by Councillor 
Peggs and RESOLVED to issue the following Social Media and Press 
Releases:  
 
1. STC’s commitment to using non-herbicide methods for the removal 

of weeds. 
 
 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Thursday 21st April 2022 at 6:30p.m. 
 
Rising at: 8.30 pm 

 
 

Signed:  

 Chairman 
 

Dated: 
 
 

Page 84



1035 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of the Policy and Finance Committee held 
at the Guildhall on Tuesday 22nd February 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: R Bickford, R Bullock, S Gillies, M Griffiths, 

S Miller (Chairman), B Samuels, P Samuels, B Stoyel and 
D Yates (Vice-Chairman). 

 
ALSO PRESENT: S Burrows (Acting Town Clerk), M Thomas (Senior Policy and 

Data Compliance Officer) and S Emmett (Finance Officer). 
 
APOLOGIES: G Challen, J Dent, J Foster, S Martin and J Peggs. 

 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 
157/21/22 HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

 
The Chairman informed those present of the actions required in the 
event of a fire or emergency. 
 
 

158/21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: 
 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of 

the Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in 
matters to be considered at this meeting. 
 

Councillor Agenda 
Item 

Pecuniary/Non-
Pecuniary 

Reason Left 
Meeting 

B Samuels 4 Non-Pecuniary STC 
Representative 

on  NPSG 

Yes 

 
b. Acting Town Clerk to receive written requests for dispensations prior 

to the start of the meeting for consideration. 
 
None. 

 
 
Councillor B Samuels declared an interest in the next agenda item and 
left the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1035Page 85

Agenda Item 27c



1036 

159/21/22 TO CONSIDER RECOMMENDING TO FULL COUNCIL THE 
APPROVAL TO USE THE TOWN SEALS FOR THE SALTASH 
NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN REFERENDUM DOCUMENTS. 
 
Councillor Yates reported that the Saltash Neighbourhood Plan 
referendum documents have now been sent for printing and it is too late 
to add the Town Seals. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Miller, seconded by Councillor Yates and 
resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on Thursday 
3rd March 2022 to approve the use of the Town Seals on any future 
Saltash Neighbourhood Plan documents. 
 
Councillor B Samuels was invited and returned to the meeting. 
 
 

160/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND CONSIDER RECOMMENDING THE FOLLOWING 
FINANCE POLICIES TO FULL COUNCIL: 
 
The Chairman informed Members that a full review of Finance Policies 
will be undertaken by the Finance Officer working with the Acting Town 
Clerk in the coming year with a view to streamlining and simplifying the 
annual procedures. 
 
 

161/21/22 ANNUAL BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLAN 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Miller, seconded by Councillor Yates and 
resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on Thursday 
3rd March 2022 to adopt the Annual Business Continuity Plan for the 
year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

162/21/22 ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT AND BUSINESS RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Griffiths, seconded by Councillor Bullock 
and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on 
Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Annual Internal Audit and 
Business Risk Assessment for the year 2022-23 subject to the attached 
amendments. 
 
 

163/21/22 ANNUAL RESERVES POLICY 
 
It was proposed by Councillor P Samuels, seconded by Councillor 
Griffiths  and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held 
on Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Annual Reserves Policy for 
the year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments.  
 
 

Page 1036Page 86



1037 

164/21/22 ANNUAL STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Gillies, seconded by Councillor Bullock 
and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on 
Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Annual Statement on Internal 
Control for the year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

165/21/22 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Miller, seconded by Councillor Bullock 
and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on 
Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Annual Treasury Management 
Strategy for the year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 

 
 

166/21/22 ANTI BRIBERY POLICY STATEMENT AND ANTI FRAUD AND 
CORRUPTION STRATEGY 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Griffiths, seconded by Councillor B 
Samuels and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be 
held on Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Anti-Bribery Policy 
Statement and Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy for the year 2022-23 
subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

167/21/22 FINANCE SCHEDULE AND PRECEPT PLAN 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Miller, seconded by Councillor Griffiths 
and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on 
Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Finance Schedule and Precept 
Plan for the year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

168/21/22 FINANCIAL REGULATIONS 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Gillies, seconded by Councillor Bickford 
and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on 
Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Financial Regulations for the 
year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

169/21/22 RECEIPTING OF INCOME AND BANKING PROCEDURES 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Miller, seconded by Councillor Yates and 
resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on Thursday 
3rd March 2022 to adopt the Receipting of Income and Banking 
Procedures for the year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

Page 1037Page 87



1038 

170/21/22 RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN STATEMENT 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Yates, seconded by Councillor B 
Samuels and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be 
held on Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Risk Management Plan 
Statement for the year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

171/21/22 RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bickford, seconded by Councillor Gillies 
and resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on 
Thursday 3rd March 2022 to adopt the Risk Management Strategy for 
the year 2022-23 subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

172/21/22 SCHEME OF DELEGATION 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Stoyel, seconded by Councillor Miller and 
resolved to RECOMMEND to Full Town Council to be held on Thursday 
3rd March 2022 to adopt the Scheme of Delegation for the year 2022-23 
subject to the attached amendments. 
 
 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday 8 March 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 
Rising at: 7.23 pm 

 
 

Signed:  

 Chairman 
 

Dated: 
 
 

Page 1038Page 88



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council 

 

 

Policy/Procedure:        

 

Date of Adoption: 

  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees. 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 DRAFT  Approved by   

Date February 2022  Date of approval  

Responsible Officer Town Clerk/RFO Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date Annual review 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

October 2015 1 Town Clerk New Document 

August 2016 2 Town Clerk Updated 

March 2019 3 RL/AJT Updated 

Feb 2020 2020/21 Town Clerk Annual review 

June 2020 2020/21 v2 SB Health Pandemic 
update 

March 2021 2021/22 SB Annual review 

June 2021 2021/22 AJT For readoption 

February 2022 2022/23 SE Annual review 

 

Review Record  

Date Type of Review Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed by 

  17/19/20b   

 

 

 

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Annual Business Continuity Plan 2022-23 DRAFT  

 

Page 1039

Minute Item 161/21/22

Page 89



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Annual Business Continuity Plan 

Contents 
1. Introduction: ................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Functions of Saltash Town Council: ............................................................................... 3 

3. Business Risk Analysis: ................................................................................................. 4 

4. Responsibilities: ........................................................................................................... 24 

5. Insurances: .................................................................................................................. 24 

6. Key/Alarm Fob holders contact list: .............................................................................. 24 

 

 

 

Distribution  

1. Reception Notice Board (hard copy) 

2. Town Clerk  

  3 Mayor 

4 Line Managers 

5. Electronic copy backed up on the server 

 

  

Page 1040Page 90



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

1. Introduction: 
The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 places a duty on a local authority that it is 

prepared, as far as reasonably practical, to continue to provide functions/ services 

in the event of a disruption by whatever cause.  

 

Whilst this is not a statutory duty for a Parish or Town Council, Saltash Town Council 

recognises the importance of producing and maintaining a Business Continuity Plan 

for implementation in the event of disruptions to the day to day running of the 

council. 

 

This plan has been developed to assist in minimising the effects of any potential 

major disruption and to facilitate the recovery or replacement of Saltash Town 

Council accommodation, administration/financial operations and services. 

A major disruption is defined as a significant incident which threatens personnel, 

buildings or the operational structure of the businesses involved and requires 

special measures to be taken to restore things back to good working order. 

 

2. Functions of Saltash Town Council: 
The Guildhall houses the Saltash Town Council offices from where the day-to-day 

administration of the Town Council is undertaken, this includes regular council 

meetings.  

 

The Guildhall also provides accommodation on a casual hire basis for community 

groups, public and private hire functions. Some of these are regular scheduled 

bookings. 

 

To act as a community care and accommodation building in the event of a civil 

emergency.  

 

Specifically, the Guildhall is designated as an emergency accommodation centre in 

the event of a disaster at the Saltash Bridge or tunnel. 

 

Saltash Town Council also owns/leases and has public and staff responsibility for 

Churchtown Cemetery, Saltash Library, Longstone Depot, Pontoon Office, 

Isambard House (Station Building) and the Maurice Huggins Room. 

 

In the event of a major disaster the Town Council will maintain as many services as 

practicable.  

 

To facilitate services and facilities the Town Council employ around 25 members of 

staff.  

 

Customers include residents and visitors to Saltash and any other individual who 

qualifies to use the services the Town Council provides. 

Page 1041Page 91



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of Saltash and collectively 

are the ultimate policy-makers by carrying out strategic and corporate management 

functions; contribute to the good governance of the area by actively encouraging 

and responding to citizen involvement in decision making processes having regard 

to the interests of the whole local community; maintain the highest standards of 

conduct and ethics, and act as a responsible employer and ensure the safety of all 

staff.  

 

3. Business Risk Analysis: 
The following are recognised as potential major risks for the operations of Saltash 

Town Council: 

  

• Fire 

• Gas leak/explosion 

• Loss of mains electrical power  

• Damage to council offices 

• Flooding (Environment agency indicate no risk) 

• Loss of council documents due to fire, flood, theft or other causes 

• Loss of council electronic data due to fault, damage, corruption, hardware failure 

or hacking attack 

• Damage to park, allotments or other amenity area. 

• Loss of council equipment due to fault damage, breakdown or theft 

• Loss of Communications (Broadband / Telephones 

• Damage to Asbestos Containing materials 

• Loss of Investment Money 

• Failure to calculate precept on time 

• Failure to account for and recover VAT  

• Failure to stay within the agreed budgets/inadequate precept 

• Failure to maintain fixed asset register 

• Allegation of libel or slander 

• Fraud by staff or members  

• Loss of Town Clerk/ Key Personnel due to resignation, incapacity, long term illness  

or death 

• Death or serious injury to member of staff whilst carrying out town council duties 

• Loss of councillors due to multiple resignations (causing the council to be 

inquorate) 

• Health Pandemic/ Lockdown  

 

 

 

 

Page 1042Page 92



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

The objectives of this document are: 

  

• To provide guidance, establish actions to be taken and develop procedures that 

will allow Council to manage any incident. 

• To ensure the continued operation of key services 

• To keep the organisation working effectively 

• To inform the community and customers of the council.

Page 1043Page 93



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Business risk Impact Likelihood Score Mitigation strategy Notes and Actions to Manage Risks 

Disaster 

impacting on 

Town 

High  

4 

Low 

2 

 

8 

 • Emergency plan including contact 

list of resources maintained by all 

departments. 

• Key personnel will make 

themselves available 

• Common sense used to determine 

appropriate action 

• Actively listen for and monitor any 

communications  

• Accept instructions from 

emergency services and Cornwall 

Council emergency planning team  

Guildhall 

Unserviceable 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Carry out regular checks 

and fire risk assessments  

• Maintain adequate 

insurance cover 

• There are no life critical services 

provided 

• Management Team called together 

to agree priorities 

• Short- term measure to recover in 

alternative location – e.g., Library 

• Medium/ long term plan to return to 

Guildhall 

Fire. High 

4 

Low 

2 

 

8 

 

• Provision of fire detection 

and centrally monitored 

alarm systems, firefighting 

equipment. 

• Hire alternative accommodation 

and equipment to continue council 

functions and meetings. 

• Cancel bookings and meetings. 

P
age 1044

P
age 94



 

7 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Damage to part of 

or loss to any 

council building. 

 

 

Loss of life. 

 

• Fire Risk Assessment 

reviewed and updated 

regularly. 

 

Gas leak 

Loss of heating 

and hot water 

facilities in any of 

the council 

buildings. 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Annual inspection of 

equipment by gas safe 

registered contractor. 

 

 

• Provide alternative means of 

providing heating & hot water. 

 

• Call out arrangements with 

Contractor 

• Cancel bookings and meetings. 

Loss of main 

electrical power 

(long term). 

Loss of heating, 

lighting, 

communications 

and alarm 

systems.  Inability 

to use the building 

safely during the 

Medium  

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Internal fault:  

• The electrical system is 

inspected and tested every 

5 years by competent 

contractors. 

• External fault: 

• Contact with utility provider 

to provide information.  

• Hire alternative accommodation to 

continue council functions and 

meetings. 

 

 

• Cancel bookings and meetings.  

 

P
age 1045

P
age 95



 

8 
DRAFT 02/2022 

hours of darkness 

in any of the 

council buildings. 

Damage to 

Physical assets 

owned by the 

council – 

buildings, 

furniture, 

equipment. 

Complete loss of 

ICT, etc. 

Medium 

3 

Medium 

3 

 

9 

• An up-to-date register of 

assets 

• Physical verification of 

assets on register. 

• Regular safety checks on 

physical assets 

• Regular Maintenance 

arrangements for physical 

assets. 

• Insurance regularly 

reviewed 

• Buildings re-valued regularly 

• Computer backups off site 

• Reputable ICT support 

contractor/Supplier 

• Buildings alarmed for 

security and fire 

• Staff Training 

 

 

 

• Record all information and inform 

the insurance company of any 

incident and obtain photographic 

evidence 

• Town Council to advise Council 

and staff of incident 

• If necessary, relocate to alternative 

premises or admin team may work 

from home. 

• Town Council answer phone to 

state emergency mobile contact 

numbers 

• Review risk assessment  

P
age 1046

P
age 96



 

9 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Harm caused by 

failure to ensure 

adequate Health 

and Safety 

Medium 

3 

Medium  

3 

 

9 

• Risk Assessments carried 

out 

• H&S Advisory service 

provided by Moorepay 

• Council property properly 

maintained 

• Specific training provided as 

per risk assessment findings 

inc. First Aid 

• Regular H&S review 

meetings 

• H&S covered in team 

meetings 

 

Loss of council 

documents due 

to fire, flood, theft 

or other causes 

High 

4 

Low 

2 

 

8 

• To operate a clear desk 

policy: 

• Ensure important 

documentation is stored 

securely in fire/ flood proof 

cabinets. 

• Ensure backup copies of 

paper documents i.e., 

electronic version is stored. 

• Town Clerk or in their absence the 

nominated Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure to 

advise council and staff of the 

incident. 

• Inform Police and Insurance 

company (If necessary). 

• If appropriate, consider security 

controls i.e., change of locks/ 

passwords 

 

P
age 1047

P
age 97



 

10 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Loss of council 

electronic data 

due to fault, 

damage, 

corruption, 

hardware failure 

or hacking attack 

High 

4 

Low 

2 

 

8 

• Ensure antivirus software is 

up to date. 

• Ensure passwords are 

robust and regularly 

updated. 

• Ensure date is regularly 

backed up and stored 

securely. 

• Town Clerk or in their absence the 

nominated Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure to 

advise council and staff of the 

incident. 

• Inform insurance company (if 

necessary) 

• Update security as required 

Damage to Park/ 

allotments or 

other Amenity 

Area 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Maintain adequate 

insurance cover. 

• Carry out risk assessments 

• Secure Park  

• Advise statutory authorities 

• Access damage and advise 

insurance 

• Prepare a recovery programme 

 

P
age 1048

P
age 98



 

11 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Loss of council 

equipment due 

to fault, damage, 

breakdown or 

theft 

High 

4 

Medium 

2 

 

8 

• Maintain adequate insurance 

cover 

• Ensure regular maintenance and 

checks of equipment are carried 

out 

• Regularly review security 

arrangements  

• Report theft or criminal 

damage to police.  

• Inform Insurance Company 

(If necessary)  

• Arrange hire of temporary 

replacement equipment 

where possible. 

• Arrange purchase of new 

equipment. 

Loss of 

communications 

(Broadband/ 

telephones). 

(Long term) 

 

Medium 

3 

 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Electronic data backed up online 

and accessible from other 

locations. 

• Use of mobile phones for 

communications. 

 

• Hire alternative 

accommodation with 

broadband access.  

• Use of mobile phones and 

laptops. 

Damage to 

Asbestos 

containing 

material - 

release of fibres 

contamination of 

affected area. 

High 

4 

Low 

1 

 

4 

• Asbestos register maintained, 

annual inspections for damage 

and deterioration, contractors are 

informed prior to undertaking any 

work in the building.   

• A complete copy of the register 

and survey is held by the Service 

Delivery Manager and the 

Consultant Surveyor. 

• Initial evacuation of premises. 

• Advise the Consultant 

Surveyor, H&S consultants & 

contact specialist asbestos 

removal contractors to 

undertake air testing and 

decontamination. 

 

P
age 1049

P
age 99



 

12 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 • Hire alternative 

accommodation as 

necessary. 

 

Loss of 

Investment 

Money  

High 

4 

Low 

2 

 

8 

• Maintain an adequate investment 

policy. 

• Quantify loss & understand 

cause 

• Take any immediate action to 

minimise the loss. 

• Assess implication of 

services for remainder of 

year 

• Review treasury 

management strategy policy  

• Take action to adjust costs & 

make provision for any 

necessary loan/ change of 

priorities 

Failure to 

calculate/ 

precept on time 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Timetable agenda item for 

members providing sufficient time 

for additional meetings if required 

• Town Clerk/ RFO or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to inform members  

• To contact Cornwall Council 

to make arrangements for 

late submission. 

P
age 1050

P
age 100



 

13 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Failure to 

account for and 

recover VAT 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• VAT Returns are scheduled 

• Appropriate accounting system in 

place to account for VAT 

appropriately 

• Staff to receive the necessary 

council VAT training. 

• To ensure up to date information 

is received from the council’s 

VAT consultant 

• Town Clerk/ RFO or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to inform members  

• To liaise with the council’s 

VAT consultant to rectify the 

issue. 

Failure to stay 

within the 

agreed budgets/ 

inadequate 

precept 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• To ensure that all committees 

have input into the annual budget 

setting.  

• Members to build sound budget, 

using risk register and known 

commitments 

• Insurance in place with insurer 

(Zurich) to cover major risk 

• To ensure a sufficient 

contingency is in place to mitigate 

the risk of unforeseen events. 

This policy to be reviewed each 

year in conjunction with the rest 

of the reserves. This is reviewed 

on annual basis when setting the 

following year budgets 

• RFO/FO to inform the 

relevant committee Chair & 

Vice Chair 

• Town Clerk or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to organise an extraordinary 

Policy and Finance 

committee if required.  

• Resort to other funding 

sources or Public Works 

Loan Board 

• Correct deficit via budget 

planning over subsequent 

years 

 

P
age 1051

P
age 101



 

14 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Failure to 

maintain fixed 

asset register. 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• That all the necessary fixed asset 

purchases are recorded and 

monitored on the asset register. 

• Appropriate document e.g., 

invoices are kept for audit 

purposes. 

• Internal audit is carried of the 

fixed asset register 

• All staff are aware of the 

responsibilities of the fixed asset 

register.  

• Town Clerk or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to inform members and staff 

as appropriate. 

• To liaise with the internal 

auditor as necessary 

Allegation of 

libel or slander 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Review all press releases or 

newsletter articles before release. 

• Press protocol and social media 

policy in place 

• Review insurance cover 

Loss of money 

through fraud, 

theft, poor 

accounting 

systems 

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Ensure adequate internal controls 

are in place and these are 

documented 

• Internal controls are at least 

checked annually by an internal 

auditor 

• Informal monitoring, trust and 

spot checks 

• Regular reporting to members 

through committee 

• Town Clerk or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to inform members as 

appropriate 

• Insurance company is 

informed as appropriate. 

• Investigation to take place 

with appropriate disciplinary 

action as necessary 

P
age 1052

P
age 102



 

15 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Investment strategy and policy 

priorities security and liquidity of 

funds 

• Insurance in place to cover any 

resulting from financial losses. 

• Annual review of insurance 

• Limited cash kept on premises 

• Only designated staff have keys 

to any safes 

• Electronic banking procedure in 

place with secure passwords 

• Segregation of Duties 

• Police to be informed if 

appropriate.  

Damage to third 

party property 

or individuals as 

a consequence 

of the council 

providing 

services or 

amenities to the 

public (Public 

Liability 

 

 

 

Medium 

3 

Medium 

3 

 

9 

• Regular health and safety risk 

assessments  

• Regular safety checks 

• Adequate insurance 

• Training 

 

P
age 1053

P
age 103



 

16 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Loss of Town 

Clerk/ Key 

Personnel due 

to resignation, 

incapacity, long 

term illness or 

death 

High 

4 

Medium 

3 

 

12 

• Ensure staffing team are briefed, 

made aware of interim measures 

and aware of their 

responsibilities. 

• Personnel mitigation strategy: 

professional development of all 

staff, retain training development 

and internal opportunities to 

avoid resignation in accordance 

with the employee handbook and 

recruitment policy 

• Ensure all key tasks are 

prioritised 

• Access to log in details, keys and 

passwords are made available as 

necessary 

• Mayor to contact next of kin 

• Mayor to be informed, who 

will advise council and staff 

• Mayor and Chair of 

Personnel to consider 

appointment of temporary 

cover 

• Recruit temporary 

replacement 

• Carry out recruitment process 

to appointment permanent 

replacement 

Death or serious 

injury to 

member of staff 

whilst carrying 

out town council 

duties  

Medium 

3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

• Knowledge of duties with regard 

to Health & Safety  

• Knowledge of duties with regard 

to employment law and staff 

supervision 

• Town Clerk or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

inform council and other 

members of staff 

• Insurance company informed 

(if appropriate) 

• Health & Safety Executive 

informed (if necessary) 

P
age 1054

P
age 104



 

17 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Employers 

Liability 

Medium 

3 

Medium 

3 

 

9 

• Ensure compliance with 

Employment Law through use of 

consultants (Moorepay) 

• Comply with Inland Revenue 

requirements 

• Legal compliance with council 

activities ensured through advice 

from staff, SLCC, NALC and 

solicitors when necessary. Advice 

recorded in the minutes. 

 

Loss of 

Councillors due 

to multiple 

resignations 

(causing the 

council to be 

inquorate) 

High 

4 

 

Low 

2 

 

8 

• Co-option of Councillors from 

waiting list/ reserves by Cornwall 

Council if necessary 

• Town Clerk or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to inform remaining 

councillors and employees of 

the council  

• Town Clerk or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to inform Cornwall Council 

Monitoring Officer 

• Council to review procedure 

for recruitment of councillors.  

P
age 1055

P
age 105



 

18 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Lack of public 

consultation by 

the council  

Low 

2 

Low 

2 

 

4 

• Ensure meetings publicised on 

notice boards & website. 

• Use of Annual parish meetings 

• Place articles in newsletters 

• Include public participation on all 

council meeting agendas 

• Ensuring seating available at 

meetings for the public 

• Provide advice for members of 

the public attending 

• Publish agenda and minutes on 

website/ notice boards 

• Hold monthly meet your 

councillor sessions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Town Clerk or in their 

absence the nominated 

Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure 

to inform appropriate 

members and staff 

• Appropriate action to be 

taken to rectify the issue.  

P
age 1056

P
age 106



 

19 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Health 

Pandemic 

A pandemic 

occurs when a 

new influenza 

virus, which 

people have no 

immunity to, 

emerges and 

starts spreading. 

loss of life. 

All National and 

Global 

Emergencies  

 

High 

4 

Medium 

3 

 

12 

• Manage critical works in a safe 

manner and suspend works as 

necessary 

• Arrange remote working for staff 

• Ensure the Zoom platform is 

available to staff and councillors 

to hold informal meetings 

• Check legislation to hold Full 

Council, Committee and Sub 

Committee meetings lawfully 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Focus on maintaining 

essential and important 

services for the Town Council 

and community 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 1057

P
age 107



 

20 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Town Clerk or in their absence 

the nominated Deputy as per the 

line management staff structure 

to provide staff and Councillor 

guidance and support 

Government Guidelines and 

updates from Public Health 

England. 

• Ensure regular deep cleaning is 

in place to try and slow the 

spread of a virus. 

• Provide hand sanitiser, soap, 

warm water and paper towels to 

avoid spreading the virus. 

• Replace crockery with disposable 

paper cups and plates to mitigate 

the spread of germs whilst 

operating. 

• Staff to inform their line manager 

if they start to feel unwell. 

• Risk Assessments reviewed and 

updated regularly. 

• Town Council to provide suitable 

materials and PPE to operate.  

Where this is not possible or due 

to none supply service to be shut 

down. 

• Close all public buildings 

subject to requirements 

• Reduce services to all STC 

business subject to 

requirements 

• Until full Government 

guidance is given suspend all 

Full Town Council and 

Committee meetings and 

accept a blanket apology to 

protect staff and councillors 

until further notice. 

• Ensure the Zoom platform is 

available to staff and 

councillors to hold Full Town 

Council, Committee meetings 

and informal meetings 

subject to requirements 

• Cancel bookings / events / 

activities. 

• Review the Scheme of 

Delegation to ensure minimal 

disruption to the operations of 

the Town Council and its 

decision making. 

 

P
age 1058

P
age 108



 

21 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Staff to shield / self-isolate. 

 

 

• Notices displayed on 

buildings, website and social 

media to inform members of 

the public & signpost were 

possible. 

• Divert switchboard to Town 

Clerk or in their absence the 

nominated Deputy as per the 

line management staff 

structure work mobiles & 

setup of automated system. 

• Where possible staff to 

operate remotely. 

• Determine appropriate lunch 

breaks and location for staff 

that remain working. 

• Finance Office to ensure 

payroll is processed and 

automatic setup of payments 

released. 

• Finance Officer to contact 

suppliers if there is to be a 

delay with payments. 

• Emergency 999. 

• Summon agency staff. 

 

P
age 1059

P
age 109



 

22 
DRAFT 02/2022 

    

12 

• Staff and councillor welfare is 

paramount. 

• Safety of the community. 

• Town Clerk or in their absence 

the nominated Deputy as per the 

line management staff structure 

to provide staff and councillors 

Government Guidelines and 

updates from Public Health 

England. 

• Staff to shield / self-isolate. 

 

 

 

• Where possible staff to work 

from home adhering to 

Government guidelines. 

• Service Delivery Team to 

operate where possible 

adhering to social distancing 

subject to risk assessments, 

Government guidelines and 

the Town Council’s approval. 

• Determine appropriate lunch 

breaks and location for staff 

that remain working. 

• Until full Government 

guidance is given suspend all 

Full Town Council and 

Committee meetings and 

accept a blanket apology to 

protect staff and councillors 

until further notice. 

• To agree delegated authority 

powers by consensus to the 

Mayor, Deputy Mayor and 

Officers including closing or 

opening services as required 

and only spending on budget 

unless a matter of public or 

staff safety. 

P
age 1060

P
age 110



 

23 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Any other items requiring 
decisions to be by the 
democratic online voting of all 
Councillors. 

• No policies to be made. 

• All Councillors to be informed 

at all times, require 

consensus of the Town 

Council approval or not. 

• Potential for Town Council 

facilities and vehicle to be 

requisitioned to provide 

community food supply.  

• All staff to have their ID cards 

with them in the event of a 

lockdown. 

To hold council meetings via 

zoom platform whilst the 

council has been given 

approval from the 

government to do so. To be 

reviewed May 2021.  

• Terminate as may be 

necessary temporary 

employment contracts with 

immediate effect. 

 

P
age 1061

P
age 111



 

24 
DRAFT 02/2022 

4. Responsibilities: 
The Town Clerk will take the lead in the event of a major disruption advising the Mayor and Chairman of Personnel and summoning 

additional resources/personnel as required. In the absence of the Town Clerk the nominated Deputy as per the line management 

staff structure will take lead on this.  

 

5. Insurances: 
Saltash Town Council has insurance that covers employer’s liability, public liability and risks to buildings a content.  Full insurance 

details are held at the Guildhall. 

 

6. Key/Alarm Fob holders contact list: 
Saltash Town Council maintain a Key/Alarm holder contact list that is held internally and by the alarm monitoring company and 

police. 

 

Main contacts list:  
 

Function  Company  Contact number (s) 

Gas  

Mains supply  National Gas Helpline 0800 111999 Emergency 

Gas Safe Contractor Jackman Peckover 01752 727999 

Electric  

Mains supply  Western Power Distribution 105 Emergency 

Electrical contractor Pyramid 07828492597 

Water  

P
age 1062

P
age 112



 

25 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Mains supply South West Water 0344 3462020 Emergency 

Plumber  Cormac 01872 324350 Emergency  

Insurance  

Insurance Company  Zurich 01243 832116              

Health and Safety  

H&S Consultant  Moorepay Health and Safety Advice Line 0345 073 0240 Option 1. 

HSE HSE 01752 276300 

Maintenance contractors  

Fire alarm  ASG 01752 848558 

Fire extinguishers Chubb 0844 8791666 / 0344 8791739 

Building Consultant Various  

Air Conditioning Cube Services 01752 696547 

IT, Broadband and 

Landlines  

IRQ  07801 930486  

079 705 12349 

 

P
age 1063

P
age 113



 

26 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Staff and Public Health  

 Government Guidelines https://www.gov.uk/  

 Public Health England 0121 424 3236  

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/public-health-

england  

 NHS 111 

 

P
age 1064

P
age 114

https://www.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/public-health-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/public-health-england


 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council 
 

 

Policy/Procedure:       

  

 

Date of Adoption: 

  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees. 

 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 Approved by   

Date Feb 2022 Date of approval   

Responsible Officer RFO Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date  Annual 

 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

Feb 2020 2020/21  RL  

February 2021 2021/22 SE For signature 

February 2022 2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

 

Review Record  

Date Type of 
Review 

Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed by 

10/02/2020 Annual   RL 

     

     

 

 

  

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Annual Internal Audit Business Risk Assessment  
2022-23 DRAFT  

 

Page 1065

Minute Item 162/21/22

Page 115



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT BUSINESS RISK ASSESSMENT 2021/22 
 
 

 Item 

Comment/Actions 
Frequency 

Insurance:  

Public & Employers Liability 3 Yearly 

Money & Fidelity Guarantee 3 Yearly 

Personal Accident 3 Yearly 

Buildings Cover and contents 3 Yearly 

Premises Gas safety check/fire/electrical. Annual 

Tree maintenance survey and works Annually & as required 

Pontoon Annual 

Asset Valuations As required and upon 

 Insurance renewal 

Financial Matters:  

Banking Arrangements Annual 

Insurance Providers 3 Yearly 

VAT return completed/submitted Quarterly 

Internal Audit Twice yearly 

Salaries Reviewed and Documented                        Annual 

Budget agreed, monitored and reported                 Monthly 

Precept requested                                                      Annual 

Payments approval procedure Annual 

Bank Reconciliations overseen by Councillors       Monthly 

Clerk’s Salary reviewed & documented                Annual 

Mayors Allowance reviewed at budget setting                  Annual 

Members Allowance reviewed at budget setting Annual 

External Audit Annual 

Internal check of financial records Annual 

  

 Record Keeping:  

 Minutes numbered and signed Ongoing 

 Asset Register updated as required Ongoing 

 Financial Regulations updated as required Ongoing 

 Standing Orders updated as required Ongoing 

Shadow copies taken of computer records Twice daily 

 Computer off-site backup Daily 
  

Page 1066Page 116



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 Employee & Contractors:   

 Contracts of employment As required 

 Contractors Indemnity Insurance Ongoing 

 Written arrangements with contractors Ongoing 

 Review of Staffing Policies Ongoing 

 Health and Safety Audit Annual 

Health & Safety and Human Resources Consultant 3 Yearly  

Finance Consultants  

VAT Consultant 3 Yearly 

Internal Auditor 3 Yearly 

External Auditor (Appointed by Smaller Authorities 
Audit Appointments (SAAA)) 

5 Yearly  

  

 Members Responsibilities:  

 New Code of Conduct adopted  Ongoing 

 Register of Interests completed & updated  Ongoing 

 Register of Gifts/Hospitality  Ongoing 

 Declarations of interests recorded in minutes  Ongoing 

 Review of Standing Orders & Finance Regulations  Ongoing 

 National Legislation Awareness & Training  Ongoing 

    
    
  Approved Full Town Council <DATE> 
  Minute no 
 

 

            

Version History 
 

Date Details 

September 2018 Note: 
Words importing the masculine gender 
only shall include all other genders and 
vice versa. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1067Page 117



 

1 
 DRAFT 02/2022   

Saltash Town Council  
 

 

Policy/Procedure:       

  

 

Date of Adoption: 

  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees. 

 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 DRAFT Approved by   

Date February 2022 Date of approval  

Responsible Officer Town Clerk /RFO Minute reference  

Responsible Committee P&F Review date Annual 

 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

March 2019 2019/20 Town Clerk /RFO  Values updated 

February 2021 2021-22 DRAFT SE Annual review 

June 2021 2021-22 AJT For readoption 

February 2022 2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

 

Review Record  

Date Type of Review Minute number Summary of actions Completed by 

  17/19/20b   

     

     

 

 

 

 

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Annual Reserves Policy 2022-23 DRAFT 

 

Page 1068

Minute Item 163/21/22

Page 118



 

2 
 DRAFT 02/2022   

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
RESERVES POLICY 
  
Town Council Reserves  
 
The Town Council needs to maintain reserves to protect against risk, ensure 
contingencies are in place and to support investment in future projects which are 
beneficial to the town – detailed within Section 50 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992; supported by CIPFA LAAP Bulletin 99 Local Authority Reserves and 
Balances July 2014. 
 
The Reserves Policy presents information about the requirements to maintain 
appropriate financial reserves and provides details on the types of reserves and 
current and predicted balances. The Town Council manages risk by assessing the 
potential impacts of future events, based on the likelihood that they may occur and the 
severity of any impact. Mitigating actions are then identified to reduce the exposure 
and appropriate plans are put in place. As required under sections 31A, 42A of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992. 
 

The Governance & Accountability for Local Councils Practitioners Guide: 

“As with any financial entity, it is essential that authorities have sufficient Reserves 

(General and Earmarked) to finance both its day-to-day operations and future plans. 

It is important, however, given that its funds are generated from taxation/public levies, 

that such reserves are not excessive 

It is important that each authority adopt, as a General Reserve policy, the level 

appropriate to their size and situation and plan their Budget so as to ensure that the 

adopted level is maintained. Changes in activity levels/range of services provided will 

inevitably lead to changes in the requisite minimum level of General Reserve in order 

to provide working capital for those activities.” 

 
The purpose of this Policy is to enable the Policy and Finance Committee to review 
the level of reserves to ensure they meet the current and future needs of Saltash Town 
Council.  
 
The assessment of the adequacy of the Council’s balances and reserves is based on 
the guidance note on Local Authority Reserves and Balances, which whilst there is not 
a statutory requirement, is considered to set out current best practice with regard to 
balances and reserves. The guidance states that no case has yet been made to set a 
statutory minimum level of reserves and that each local authority should take advice 
from its Responsible Finance Officer and base its judgement on local circumstances.  
  

Page 1069Page 119



 

3 
 DRAFT 02/2022   

Types of Reserves  
 
Saltash Town Council maintains two types of reserves: 
 
1. Earmarked Reserves 
  

This provides a means of accumulating funds, for use in a later financial year, to 
meet known or planned policy initiatives.  

 
Earmarked Reserves will increase through decisions of the Council and will 
decrease as they are spent on their specific intended purposes.  
 
The purpose of an Earmarked Reserve is to set aside amounts for projects that 
extend beyond one year or as a contingency against a specific situation occurring 
and to support the General Reserve. 
 
Once an Earmarked Reserve has been established by the Town Council it is the 
responsibility of the Responsible Finance Officer to ensure funds are spent in 
line with their purpose. The purpose of each Earmarked Reserve should be 
reviewed annually to ensure that it is still relevant.  

 
2. General Reserves  

 
This represents the non-ring fenced (earmarked) balance of Council funds. The 
main purposes of the General Reserves are firstly to operate as a working 
balance to help manage the impact of uneven cash flows and secondly, to 
provide a contingency to cushion the impact of emerging or unforeseen events 
or genuine emergencies. In general, a robust level of reserve should be 
maintained and take account of operational and financial issues facing the Town 
Council.  

 
A well-run authority with a prudent approach to setting its budget will each year 

consider its level of general reserves. These general reserves will also need to 

be supported by earmarked reserves for specific needs, contingencies and 

commitments. In assessing the level of the Town Council’s reserves, account 

needs to be taken of the risks facing the Council in terms of any significant 

unforeseen expenditure requirements. 

Further major elements which could impact adversely on future precepts are:  

• Capping of Town Council Precept by Central Government. 

• Cornwall Council as Billing Authority further reducing or ceasing the Council 

Tax Support grant through the localisation of council tax benefit support 

scheme.  

 

 

 

Page 1070Page 120



 

4 
 DRAFT 02/2022   

Purpose of General Fund Reserves  

The purpose of general reserves is to minimise the possible financial impacts to the 

authority from; emergencies, unforeseen events and ad hoc emerging issues during 

the year.  

General Fund Reserve – Risk Assessment  

Identifying the risks allows the Council to take account of the circumstances around 

current structural change due to service provision and economic circumstances.  

Risks can be identified as: risks from potential one-off events; risks which will have 

general financial consequences and actions that need to be in place to minimise the 

potential for financial support. 

  

Page 1071Page 121



 

5 
 DRAFT 02/2022   

Assessment of Potential Risks (not covered by insurance)  
 
The outcome of this analysis has been to place an estimated total value on the range 
of risks that may arise, and which are not covered by insurance. Saltash Town Council 
has set its contingency level to be equivalent to 5.5 months’ revenue expenditure for 
2022/23 which is £570,825 set during the setting of the budget for the year.  
 
The Town Council has budgeted for the following reserves in addition to this 
contingency as of 1st April 2022: 
 
Earmarked Reserves: £419,577 
 
General Reserves: £125,000 
 
Breakdown of Contingency Risks 

No  Risk  Effects/Action  Value of Risk  

1 5.5 months budgeted salary 
costs for 2022/23 

Contingency/ General 
Reserve to be used 

£364,947 

2 Annual PWLB Loan 
Repayments for Churchtown 
Cemetery 

Default on Loan 
Repayments 

£21,385 

3 Loss of staff  Council could not function 
effectively  
Additional advertising 
costs to attract staff, pay 
for staff cover  

£20,000  

4 Major Loss of Service through  
fire/flood structural damage 
and other uninsurable losses 

Premises not operational  £50,000  

5 Loss of Council Tax Support  
Grant  

Funding shortfall. 
Anticipated Last Payment 
in 2022/23 

£13,747  
2022/23 receipt.  

6 Election Reserve  Reserve to meet potential 
future Election  
Costs/By-election-Town 
Poll  

£50,000 
  

7 Unanticipated Legal costs Legal costs that cannot 
be recovered 

£50,000 

Total                                              £570,079 

 

  

Page 1072Page 122



 

6 
 DRAFT 02/2022   

Role of the Responsible Finance Officer  
 
It is the responsibility of the Responsible Finance Officer (RFO) to advise the Town 
Council about the level of reserves that it should hold and ensure that it has clear 
protocols for their establishment and use.  
 
There is no statutory minimum but there are four significant safeguards in place 
against the Town Council over committing itself financially:  
 

a. The balanced budget requirement. 
b. RFO S114 Powers.  
c. The External Auditors responsibility to review and report on financial 

standing.  
d. The year-end audit report from the Town Council’s Internal Auditor.  

 
Saltash Town Council, on the advice of their RFO, is required to make its own 
judgements on the level of reserves, taking into account all relevant local 
circumstances however local circumstances vary.  
 
A well-managed authority with a prudent approach to budgeting should operate with 
reserves in the Town Council’s current range given its emerging service 
responsibilities.  
 
It is the responsibility of the RFO to ensure reserves are spent in line with their 
purpose.  
 
Where expenditure is planned in future accounting periods, it is prudent to build up 
reserves in advance.  
 
The RFO has a fiduciary duty to local taxpayers and must be satisfied that the 
decisions taken on balances and reserves represent responsible stewardship of public 
funds.  
 
Summary  
 
General Reserves should not reach the level of the precept.  
 
The figure for General Reserves is obtained from an Assessment of Potential Risks 
and will be reviewed on a yearly basis.  
 
It is recommended in the ‘Good Councillor’s Guide to Finance and Transparency’ and 

‘The Governance & Accountability for Local Councils Practitioners Guide’ to hold a 

minimum of 3 to 12 months’ reserves. 

 
 
 

Page 1073Page 123



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022  

Saltash Town Council 
 

 

Policy/Procedure:       

  

 

Date of Adoption: 

  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees. 

 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 DRAFT Approved by   

Date February 2022 Date of approval  

Responsible Officer Town Clerk/RF0 Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date Annual 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

17.04.2018  2018  Town Clerk/RFO  

26.03.2019 2019  Town Clerk/RFO  

February 2020 2020/21  Town Clerk/RFO  

February 2021 2021/22 SE Annual review; 
updated 

February 2022 2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

 

Review Record  

Date Type of 
Review 

Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed by 

  17/19/20b   

     

 

 

  

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Annual Statement on Internal Control 2022-23 DRAFT  

 

Page 1074

Minute Item 164/21/22

Page 124



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022  

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 

ANNUAL STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 2022/23 

1. Introduction 
 
Saltash Town Council is responsible for ensuring that the financial management of the 
Council is adequate and effective and that the Council has a sound system of internal 
financial control in accordance with legislation and proper practices for the 
safeguarding of public funds in an economic and efficient manner. 

 
This statement of internal control should be read in conjunction with Saltash Town 
Council’s standing orders and financial regulations. It provides details of the 
methodology by which the council affords itself protection in the day-to-day operation 
of its accounting procedures. 
 
2. The Purpose of the System of Internal Council 
 
The council’s system of internal council is designed to manage risk to a reasonable 
level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure. It can therefore only provide reasonable 
and not an absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is 
based on an ongoing process designed to: 
 

• Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Town Council’s 
policies, aims and objectives, 

• Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, and the impact should they 
be realised 

• Manage them effectively and economically. 
 
The system of internal control accords with the practices set out in the Practitioners 
Guide 2020.  
 
3. The Internal Control Environment 
 
Saltash Town Council seeks to ensure that the financial management of the town 
council is robust and, in particular, that the following management principles are 
incorporated within the system of internal control: 
 

• Segregation of financial responsibilities 

• Compliance with Council Policies including Standing Orders and Financial 
Regulations 

• Compliance with budgetary procedure requirements 

• Clearly defined budget Setting and capital expenditure guidelines  

• Regular monitoring of reserves/balances to be reported to the Chairman and 
Vice Chairman of Policy and Finance and the Mayor weekly.  

• Personal accountability of line managers as budget holders  

• Regular reports showing actual expenditure and income against forecasts for 
reporting on and reviewing financial performance 

• Management Supervision 

Page 1075Page 125



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022  

• Development and maintenance of systems by managers 

• Independent Internal Auditor 

• Internal audits by Chair of Policy of Finance of monthly bank statements and 
purchase ledger payment 

• Annual External Audit (Statutory requirement) 

• Annual Governance & Accountability Return (AGAR) (Statutory requirement) 

• Asset Register which is reviewed by the internal auditor 

• Risk Management Strategy Policy 

• Sufficient levels of insurance in place. 

• Data Protection 
 
 
4. Review of Effectiveness 
 
The process agreed by the town council which is applied in maintaining and reviewing 
the effectiveness of governance arrangement, including the system of internal council 
includes: 
 

• Internal Audit Reports 

• Reporting on any issues relating to value for money, to ensure use of resources 
in an economical, effective and efficient way. 

• Approval through the relevant standing committees of budget plans, the 
subsequent collation of comments for policy guidance at the Town Council 
meeting on the setting of the budget and any precept requirements for the 
following year. 

• Responsibility through the Policy and Finance Committee for receiving regular 
reports on work in progress and to be programmed for the future on internal 
audit and external audit functions.  

• Where any recommendations are made either by the internal or external auditor 
suggesting improvements to the effectiveness of the systems of governance 
and internal control, a plan of action will be agreed with the relevant officer 
within a reasonable period to address weaknesses and to ensure agreed action 
is undertaken. 

• Risk Assessments are undertaken for all areas of the council  

• Internal Audits by members are carried out and reported to Full Council and 
Policy and Finance Committee 

• Regular Budget Monitoring is undertaken and the necessary virements are 
agreed by Policy and Finance relevant committee. Virements from reserves, 
must be approved by Full Council.  

• Insurance is regularly monitored in line with the asset register to ensure 
sufficient level of cover 

• Asset Register is maintained at all times. 
 
Monthly Checks 
 
The Town Clerk and Chairman of Policy and Finance Committee checks the original 
bank statements against the figures shown in the monthly reconciliation print out 
created in Xero and this is reported to Full Council and Policy and Finance Committee.  

Page 1076Page 126



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022  

All invoices are checked by the Chairman of Policy and Finance on a monthly basis 
that they are in line with the council’s financial regulations and reported to Full Council 
and Policy and Finance Committee.  
 
5. Internal and External Audit 
 
The council appoints an Internal Auditor in accordance with its financial regulations 
and is responsible for ensuring that the person appointed meets the competency and 
independence requirements. For the financial years 2021/22 to 2023/24 this is Hudson 
Accounting Limited. 
 
The external auditor is independently appointed and currently PKF Littlejohn LLP. The 
External Auditor examines the Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR) 
and any other documents specifically requested. 
 
Saltash Town Council is required to review at least annually the effectiveness of its 
system of financial control. The review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the management of the 
Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal 
control environment, and also by comments made by the external auditors in their 
annual letter and other reports.  

 
6. Risk management  
 
The Council is responsible for: 

 

•       Establishing and monitoring the achievement of its objectives.  

• The facilitation of policy and decision-making. 

• Ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 
regulations. 

• The Council has overall responsibility for the management of risk.  

• The Council all committees, the Town Clerk and staff all contribute to the 
identification and management of risk. Any identified weaknesses in this 
area are addressed and actioned by the Council.  
 

Key staff are trained in health and safety, fire and general risk management and 
appropriate risk assessments are used to regularise these processes. 
 

• Through its standing orders, financial regulations and delegated authority to 
the Town Clerk the Council has put in place a scheme of delegation, self-
audit mechanisms and controls to ensure that best value and financial 
probity are achieved. 

• All committees of the Council receive regular and up to date reports on 
financial activities under their direction. 

• Performance is regularly monitored against financial and operational 
budgets. 

 
 
 
 

Page 1077Page 127



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022  

7. Accounting Records and Reports to Council  
 
The Policy and Finance Committee has delegated responsibility for monitoring 
effectiveness by regular internal audit reports on systems, reports from the Town 
Clerk/ RFO and Finance Officer and matters raised by external auditors and from other 
retained professional advisers. It receives and considers such reports promptly and 
agrees appropriate action to address identified weaknesses. 

 
Subject to any restrictions imposed by the Council the Responsible Financial Officer 
is required to determine: 

 

• accounting records including the form of accounts and supporting accounting 
records; 

• accounting control systems; 

• ensuring that determined systems are adhered to, comply with proper practice 
and are up to date. 

 
The Responsible Financial Officer is required by statute to:  

 

• ensure that the records are kept in such a way as to enable the financial 
statements and related notes to be prepared; 

• ensure that entries on a day-by-day basis record all money received and 
expended; 

• record the assets and liabilities of the Authority; 

• record separately income and expenditure relating to any claim for contribution, 
grant or subsidy from the government, a body funded by government or a 
community institution. 

 
The system determined by the Responsible Financial Officer is as required by statute:  

 

• to record transactions as soon as practicable; 

• to put in place measures for the prevention and detection of inaccuracy and 
fraud; 

• to put in place measures for the reconstitution of data if records are lost; 

• to identify the duties of individual officers and the segregation of duties achieved 
for significant transactions; 

• to only allow the write off of uncollectible amounts including bad debts with the 
Responsible Financial Officer’s evidenced approval; 

• to ensure appropriate measures to manage risk. 
 

A system of internal financial control cannot be expected to completely eliminate the 
possibility of inaccuracy or fraud. In this Council due to the small number of staff and 
in common with other small organisations it is not possible to achieve full segregation 
of duties. However wherever possible division of financial responsibility has been 
introduced to promote best practice. 
 
To compensate for this weakness all payments are approved, and cheques and other 
payment methods are checked and signed by two Councillors, the Town Clerk/RFO 
and FO. 

Page 1078Page 128



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022  

Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires the Responsible 
Financial Officer to report to the Full Council, Executive and External Auditor if STC or 
one of its Officers: 

 
• Has made, or is about to make, a decision which involves incurring 

unlawful expenditure; 
• Has taken, or is about to take, an unlawful action which has resulted or 

would result in a loss of deficiency to the Authority; 
• Is about to make an unlawful entry in the Authority’s accounts; 
• If the expenditure of the authority is likely to exceed the resources 

available to it to meet that expenditure. 
 

Section 114 of the 1988 Act also requires: 
 
• The Responsible Financial Officer to nominate a properly qualified 

member of staff to deputise should he or she be unable to perform the 
duties under Section 114 personally; this is currently the Finance Officer. 
 

• STC to provide the Responsible Financial Officer with sufficient 
staff, accommodation and other resources – including legal advice as 
necessary – to carry out the duties under Section 114. 

 
The Council has a computerised accounting package that records all of the accounting 
transactions and is used to register unpaid supplier invoices and unpaid customer 
accounts. This package is used to provide financial information and to inform 
budgetary control. 
 
As required by statute the Council has in place a system of internal audit carried out 
by an independent auditor. Issues raised by the internal auditor are reported in writing 
to the Council and agreed actions are monitored to ensure that they have been carried 
out and actioned within agreed timescales. 
 
Additionally, the Council seeks and receives appropriate property, legal, insurance, 
V.A.T. health and safety and human resources advice to manage risk. 
 
 
8. Significant Internal Control Issues 

 
No significant internal control issues were identified during the 2021-22 financial year. 
 
However, the Town Council recognises that the coronavirus pandemic which began in 
March 2020 has had significant impact on the way that work is carried out, and has 
reviewed and adapted following advice from the government, the Cornwall Association 
of Local Councils and others. In addition, this has caused a reduction in expected 
income, and unexpected, unbudgeted expenditure which were initially appraised by 
the Town Council in June 2020. This has been under constant review to ensure 
internal control systems are adapted and maintained to remain robust and effective.  
 
Whilst no significant internal control issues were identified during the year the council 
strives for the continuous improvement of the system it has adopted at all times.  

Page 1079Page 129



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council 
 

 

Policy/Procedure:       

  

 

Date of Adoption: 

  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees. 

 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 DRAFT  Approved by   

Date February 2022 Date of approval  

Responsible Officer SE Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date Annual 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

February 2020 2020-21  SE/ajt Draft for approval 

February 2021 2021-22 DRAFT SE Updated 

February 2022 2022-23 SE Annual review 

 

Review Record  

Date Type of 
Review 

Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed by 

     

     

     

 

 

  

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Annual Treasury Management Strategy 2022-23 

DRAFT  

 

Page 1080

Minute Item 165/21/22

Page 130



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

Overview 

 

This document gives guidance on borrowing and investments by Saltash Town 

Council in accordance with ‘The Local Government Act 2003’ It highlights that the 

Town Council is committed to professional Treasury Management practices to ensure 

that: 

 

• Capital expenditure plans are affordable. 

• All external borrowing and other long-term liabilities are within prudent and 

sustainable levels, and 

• Treasury Management decisions are taken in accordance with good 

professional practice. 

 

The CIPFA Treasury Management Cost of Practice defines Treasury Management as: 

 

‘The management of the organisation’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, it’s 

banking, money market and capital Market transactions; the effective control of the 

risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 

consistent with those risks.’ 

 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2021/2022 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Saltash Town Council (the Council) acknowledges the importance of 

prudently investing the surplus funds held on behalf of the community. 

1.2 This strategy Complies (as appropriate) with legislation including the 

revised requirements set out in the Guidance on Local Government 

Investments issued by the Secretary of State for Housing Communities and 

Local Government in 2018 for periods after 1st April 2018. 

 In accordance with Section 15 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003 Act, 

the Council will have regard (a) to such guidance as the Secretary of State 

may issue, and (b) to such other guidance as the Secretary of State may 

by regulations specify. 

 The Local Government Act 2003 states that a local authority may invest: 

• For any purpose relevant to its functions under any enactment 

• For the purpose of prudent management of its financial affairs. 

1.3 This Strategy complies with the requirements set out in: 

• The Department of Communities and Local Government Guidance on 

Local Government Investments 

Page 1081Page 131



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Section 15 (1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2003 

• Guidance within Governance and Accountability for Local Councils 

  Investments are defined as all the financial assets of a local authority as 

  well as other non-financial assets that the organisation holds primarily or 

  partially to generate a profit. 

 

2. POLICY 

2.1 This strategy establishes formal objectives, policies and practices and 

reporting arrangements for the effective management and control of the 

Council’s treasury management activities and the associated risks and 

should be read in conjunction with the council’s financial regulations. 

a. The Council holds just over £1,375,962 of invested funds as at 

January 2022 representing income received in advance of 

expenditure plus balances and reserves held. Over the coming year 

investment balances are expected to range between £1 million and 

£1.5 million.  

3. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

3.1 Both the CIPFA Code and the CLG Guidance require the Council to invest 

its funds prudently, and to have regard to the security (protecting the capital 

sum from loss) and liquidity (ensuring funds are easily available when 

required) of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return/yield. 

3.2 The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate 

balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from 

defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low investment income. The 

Council will therefore aim to achieve the optimum return on its investments 

commensurate with appropriate levels of security and liquidity. 

3.3 The Council’s investment priorities therefore are, in order of importance: 

• the security of its reserves 

• the adequate liquidity of its investments 

• the return (yield) on investments. 

3.4 All investments will be made in sterling. 

3.5 The Department for Communities and Local Government maintains the 

borrowing of money purely to invest or to lend and make a return is unlawful 

and the Council will not engage in such activity. The Council will take 

account of and seek to invest, where appropriate, to support high social, 

environmental and other ethical standards. 

  

Page 1082Page 132



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

3.6 Investment limits are set by reference to the lowest published long-term 

credit rating from Fitch Rating Ltd, Moody’s Investors Service Ltd or 

Standard & Poor’s. 

  

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Finance Officer who 

advises the Council on appropriate credit criteria and will also notify 

changes in credit ratings as they occur. 

 

However, investment decisions are never made solely based on credit 

ratings, and all other relevant factors including external advice will be taken 

into account. 

 
3.7 The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparty types 

below, subject to the cash limits (per counterparty) and time limits shown: 

 
• Call accounts which provide instant access, notice accounts and term 

deposits with UK banks and building societies on an unsecured 

basis*: with a credit rating of A- (A minus) or higher: £1.5 million up to 

a maximum period of 1 year 

• Pooled Funds including Money Market Funds: £1.5 million per fund 

(note: these funds do not have a maturity date). 

 

 *It should be noted that call/notice accounts and term deposits are not 

 secured on the bank’s or building society’ assets. These investments are 

 subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the banking regulator 

 determine that the institution is failing or likely to fail. 

3.8 Investments in pooled funds have the advantage of providing wide 

diversification of investment risks, coupled with the services of a 

professional fund manager in return for a fee. Short-term Money Market 

Funds offering same-day liquidity and very low or no volatility provide an 

alternative to instant access bank accounts. 

3.9 The Council will monitor the risk of loss on investments by regularly 

reviewing credit ratings across the three main agencies. The Council  will 

only invest with institutions deemed to be of ‘high credit quality’  based on 

rating agency information (see 4.1 below). 

3.10 Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the 

approved investment criteria then: 

• no new investments will be made 

• any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be 

• full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing 

investments with the affect counterparty. 

  

Page 1083Page 133



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

3.11 The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, 

predictors of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other 

information, including credit default swaps, financial statements, 

information on potential government support, and reports in the  financial 

press. No investments will be made with an organisation  if  there are 

substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it  may meet 

credit rating criteria. 

3.12 Investments will be spread over different providers in line with agreed limits 

in order to reduce counterparty risk. 

 

4. SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS 

 

4.1 The CLG Guidance defines specified investments as those: 

 

• denominated in pound sterling due to be repaid within 12 months of 

arrangement 

• not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and 

• invested with one of: 

• the UK Government 

• a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or 

• a body or investment scheme of ‘high credit quality’ 

 

4.2 The Council defines ‘high credit quality’ organisations and securities as 

those having a credit rating of A- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or 

a foreign country with a sovereign rating of AA+ or higher. For money 

market funds and other pooled funds ‘high credit quality’ is defined as 

having credit rating of A- or higher. 

 

4.3 Specified investments typically offer lower risk and higher liquidity. All 

investments made by the Council will be denominated in sterling and for no 

more than 12 months. Such short-term investments made with the  UK 

Government, a local authority or a Town/Parish Council will be  specified 

investments. 

 

4.4 For the prudent management of its treasury balances, including maintaining 

sufficient levels of security and liquidity, the Council will  place deposits 

with banks, building societies, local authorities and other  public 

authorities/bodies. 

 

4.5 The choice of institution and length of deposit will be at the discretion of the 

Policy and Finance Committee. 

 

4.6 Saltash Town Council’s current investments are with Barclays Bank, 

Nationwide, Cornwall Council and CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund (see 

Appendix A). As part of the strategy investments are spread across different 

counterparties in order to reduce counterparty risk. 

Page 1084Page 134



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

4.7 Day-to-day banking is with Barclays Bank Plc. We hold around 5% of the 

annual operational expenditure in the current account for cash flow 

purposes. 

 

5. NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS 

5.1 Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is 

classed as non-specified. The Town Council does not intend  to make 

any investments denominated in foreign currencies, nor any that are 

defined as capital expenditure by legislation, such as company  shares. 

 

5.2 Non-specified investment will therefore be limited to long-term investments 

(i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from the date of 

arrangement) and investments with bodies or schemes not meeting the 

definition of ‘high credit quality’. 

 

6. NON-FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 

 

6.1 Non-financial investments are non-financial assets that the organisation 

hold primarily of partially to generate a profit. The asset will normally  be 

a physical asset that can be realised to recoup the capital  invested.  

 

The Town Council does plan to invest in non-financial assets in the 

foreseeable future.  

 

7. LIQUIDITY OF INVESTMENTS 

 

7.1 The Council uses cash flow forecasting to determine the maximum period 

for which funds may be prudently committed. 

 

7.2 The Policy and Finance Committee will determine the maximum periods for 

which funds may prudently be committed so as not to unacceptably 

increase liquidity risk. 

 

7.3 Investments will be regarded as commencing on the date the commitment 

to invest is entered into rather than the date on which the  funds are 

paid over to the counterparty. 

 

8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 

 

8.1 Long-term investments are defined in the DCLG Investment Guidance  as 

those due to be repaid in over 12 months from arrangement. 

 

8.2 The Council does not currently hold any long-term investments, and none 

are envisaged as being taken out during the financial year 2020/21. 

 

 

Page 1085Page 135



 

7 
DRAFT 02/2022 

9. END OF YEAR INVESTMENT REPORT 

 

9.1 At the end of the financial year the Finance Officer will report on investment 

activity to the Policy and Finance Committee.  

 

10. REVIEW AND AMENDMENT OF REGULATIONS 

 

10.1 The Investment Strategy will be reviewed annually by the Policy and 

Finance Committee. 

 

10.2 The Council reserves the right to make variations to the Investment 

Strategy at any time subject to the approval of Council. Any variations will 

be made available to the public. 

 

10.3 The investment strategy must be approved by Policy and Finance 

Committee but may be varied from time to time as circumstances dictate. 

 

11. CAPACITY, SKILLS AND CULTURE 

 

11.1 The Council is committed to ensuring that those elected members and 

statutory officers involved in the investments decision making process have 

appropriate capacity, skills and information to enable them to take informed 

decisions as to whether to enter into a specific investment, to assess 

individual assessments in the context of the strategic objectives and risk 

profile of the Council and to enable them to understand how the quantum 

of these decision have change the overall risk exposure of the Council. 

 

11.2 This will be achieved by: 

 

• Appropriate training of members and officers 

• Use of appropriate expert external advisors 

• Reporting to Council in the most open, clear, understandable and 

transparent way possible 

• The use of existing regular communication procedures between 

senior members and officers to facilitate constantly improved capacity, 

skills and information exchange. 

Page 1086Page 136



 

8 
DRAFT 02/2022 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2021-22 
 

1. An annual cash flow forecast will be carried out to ascertain expenditure 

commitments for the coming year. The council is mindful of the need not to make 

the administration of investments too complex, especially when considering the 

low rates of return and the administration costs associated with managing 

multiple accounts and creating new accounts. The following have been identified 

using Moody’s and Fitch ratings: 

 

 For 2022/23 the council will invest as much of its surplus funds in low risk 

products in order to achieve its investment objectives. All investments are held 

for treasury management purposes only. 

 

 The investments will be split between: 

• Barclays Active Saver – This is an instant access account for all day-

to-day operational expenditure. The finance officer has delegated 

authority to make all necessary transfers between this account and 

the council’s current account to meet day to day financial 

commitments of the council. All transfers get reported to Full Council 

on a monthly basis. 

 

• Cornwall Council – This is an instant access call account and with a 

slightly higher interest rate than the Barclays Active Saver. This is 

currently used to invest Earmarked Funds and Operational Funds until 

required. The council is currently undertaking large projects and will 

continue into 2022-23 and the liquidity of funds is therefore a higher 

priority than a return on investment especially when the differential in 

rates of interest are very modest. 

 

• CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund – This account is an instant access 

but currently holds around 34% of the council’s Contingency Funds 

and General Reserve funds total. 

 

• Nationwide Business 95 Day Saver – This account is on 95 Day 

Withdrawal Notice and holds around 66% of the council’s Contingency 

Funds and General Reserve Funds total. 

 

2. The Cornwall Council account has an investment limit of £1m. All other 

investments held with other banks or institution as detailed above have a 

maximum limit of £500,000.  

 

This strategy will be made available on the Town Council’s website. 

  

Page 1087Page 137



 

9 
DRAFT 02/2022 

EXTERNAL BORROWING STRATEGY 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

 The Town Council acknowledges the importance of borrowing funds and the 

financial impact on the Town Council and the local community. The council will 

agree borrowing for specific capital projects (as defined in section 16 of the 2003 

Act) and gain approval for borrowing by sending an application to Cornwall 

Association of Local Councils (CALC) and the National Association of Local 

Councils (NALC). All borrowings must be approved by Full Council. 

 

2. PRINCIPLES 

 

 Before a council can borrow a sum of money, it must first receive an approval to 

borrow (loan sanction) from the Secretary of State by way of the Ministry of 

Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), unless it for a 

temporary loan or overdraft from a bank or otherwise of sums which the council 

may temporarily require to meet revenue expenditure.  

 

The process to be followed and the criteria applied in deciding whether or not 

approval should be forthcoming, are detailed in the Guide to Parish and Town 

Council Borrowing in England, jointly published by MHCLG and NALC.  

 

The Council is only authorised to borrow a maximum of £500,000 in any – single 

financial year for any single purpose. 

 

The Town Council will ensure the following criteria when considering requesting 

a borrowing approval: 

 

• The borrowing should be only used for the purpose of Capital expenditure 

as defined in Section 16 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

• The borrowing amount should not be less than £5 multiplied by the number 

of local government electors in the area of the Town Council of the first day 

on the current financial year (1st April) 

• Any unallocated balances including, where appropriate capital receipts 

beyond those required for the prudent financial management of the Town 

Council, should be used in the project for which the borrowing is required.  

• The Town Council should have a realistic budget for the servicing and 

repayment of the debt, taking into account the future effect on the Town 

Council’s precept and cash flow. 

• The Town Council must not mortgage or change any of its property as 

security for money borrowed. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1088Page 138



 

10 
DRAFT 02/2022 

3. INTEREST RATES 

 

The council will look around for the best possible terms when borrowing but will 

usually use the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). 

 

The council feels the fixed term rates offered by the PWLB are relatively cheap 

and the PWLB loans are most likely to offer stability for the financial planning of 

the council. 

4. PERIOD OF LOAN 

The Town Council will determine the period of each loan which should not exceed 

the period for which the expenditure is forecast to provide benefit to the Town 

Council i.e. useful life of the asset. 

The maximum period will begin on the date on which the money is borrowed and 

will be; 

 

• 50 years for acquisition of, or work on or to, land, buildings, roads or 

structures or 

• 10 years in all other cases. 

 

5. CURRENT EXTERNAL BORROWING 

 

The Town Council currently has one loan of £250,000 which commenced 30th 

July 2010 over 15 years with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) for 

Churchtown Cemetery. 

 

6. FURTHER ANTICIPATED BORROWING 

 

The Town Council currently has an application for a further loan of £200,000 with 

the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) for the Library refurbishment. 
  

Page 1089Page 139



 

11 
DRAFT 02/2022 

APPENDIX A 

Statement of Reserves Position as at March 2021.  

1. At the end of the 2020/21 financial year Saltash Town Council had £114,900 in 

its General Reserve including £481,941 contingency fund and £464,994 in its 

Earmarked Reserves. 

2. The precept of £1,171,123 was received in 2021/22. 

3. The precept of £1,255,690 for 2022/23 will be paid into the current account in 

two tranches, 50% in April 2022 and 50% in September 2022. 

4. A report containing a summary of the reserves position was considered by 

Policy & Finance Committee in May 2021. 

5. The current balance – as at date 1st March 2022 - in each of the specified 

investments is as follows: - 

• Barclays Active Saver – (Fitch Rating: A+) £176,610, Instant Access – 

0.1% Interest Rate 

• Cornwall Council Call A/c - £675,313 – Instant Access – 0.4%-0.6% 

Typical Daily Interest Rate 

• Nationwide 95 Day Notice Saver (Fitch Rating: A) - £500,650 – 95 Day 

Withdrawal Notice – 0.4% Interest Rate 

• CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund - £200,000 – Instant Access – 0.04% 

Typical Daily Interest Rate 

6. The Finance Officer will report on all investment rates of return at every Policy 

and Finance Committee held throughout the financial year. 

7. Review and Amendment of Regulations. 

This strategy will be reviewed annually. The Annual strategy for the 

coming financial year will be prepared by the Finance Officer and 

presented for approval to the Policy and Finance Committee. 

 

The Town Council reserves the right to make variation to the strategy at 

any time, subject to approval of the Full Council. Any variation will be 

made available to the public.  

 

 

Purple Text: Balances to 

be updated on adoption 

of the policy. 

Page 1090Page 140



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

   

Saltash Town Council  

  

  

Policy/Procedure:        

    

    

  

Date of Adoption:  

    

 This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees.  

Current Status     

Version  2022-23 DRAFT Approved by    

Date  February 2022  Date of approval   

Responsible Officer  Town Clerk/RFO  Minute reference   

Responsible Committee  P&F  Review date  Annual  

 

Version History     

Date  Version  Author/Editor  Comments  

01.11.2012  1  Town Clerk  Adopted by FTC  

15.01.2013  2  Town Clerk  Updated to include 

credit card control  

 March 2019   3  Town Clerk/AJT   

February 2021  2021-22  SE  Annual review (no 

changes)  

February 2022 2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

 

Review Record      

Date  Type of Review  Minute number  Summary of actions  Completed by  

14.05.2013   New Council     Re-approved   FTC  

04.09.2014   Policy     Reapproved until 

revisions required  

 FTC  

    17/19/20b      

June 2020  Annual    For reapproval  P&F  

       

Document Retention 

Document retention period Until superseded 

Anti-bribery Policy Statement and    

Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy 2022-23 DRAFT  

 June 2021 

Page 1091

Minute Item 166/21/22

Page 141



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL  

ANTI-BRIBERY POLICY STATEMENT AND ANTI-FRAUD AND  

CORRUPTION STRATEGY  

Policy:  
  

1. Introduction  

  

The Bribery Act 2010 which has been enacted represents the biggest change in UK 

laws in this area of business for many generations.  

  

There are a new set of risks to navigate with the introduction of the legislation.   

  

The Act introduces a new crime of “failure to prevent” bribery, which means that 

companies unable to demonstrate that they have implemented “adequate 

procedures” to prevent corrupt practices within their ranks, or by third parties on their 

behalf, could be exposed to unlimited fines.  

  

Saltash Town Council values its reputation for ethical behaviour and for financial 

probity and reliability.  

  

It recognises that over and above the commission of any crime, any involvement in 

bribery will also reflect adversely on its image and reputation.  

  

The purpose of this Policy Statement is to set out for members and employees of the 

town council with the aim of limiting Saltash Town Council’s exposure to bribery by:  

  

• Setting out a clear anti-bribery policy;  

• Training all employees and members so that they can recognise and avoid the 

use of bribery by themselves and others;  

• Encouraging its employees to be vigilant and to report any suspicions of 

bribery, providing them with suitable channels of communication and ensuring 

sensitive information is treated appropriately;  

• Rigorously investigating instances of alleged bribery and assisting police and 

other appropriate authorities in any resultant prosecution;  

• Taking firm and vigorous action against any individual(s) involved in bribery.  

    

2. Scope  

  

This Policy Statement applies to Members, co-opted members and all employees who 

work for the council.  

  

 

 

 

Page 1092Page 142



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council prohibits:  

  

The offering, the giving, the solicitation or the acceptance of any bribe, whether cash 

or other inducement.  

  

to or from  

 any person or company, wherever they are situated and whether they are a 

public official or body or private person or company  

by  

 any individual employee, member, agent or other person or body acting on the 

council’s behalf  

  

in order to  

 gain any commercial, contractual or regulatory advantage for the Council in a 

way which is unethical  

  

or in order to  

 gain any personal advantage, pecuniary or otherwise, for the individual or 

anyone connected with the individual.  

  

3. Further Clarification  

  

The council recognises that market practice varies across the areas in which it does 

business and what is normal and acceptable in one place may not be in another.   

  

This policy statement prohibits any inducement which results in a personal gain or 

advantage to the recipient or any person or body associated with them, and which is 

intended to influence them to take action which may not be solely in the interests of 

the council or of the person or body employing them or whom they represent.  

  

This policy is not meant to prohibit the following practices providing they are 

customary in a particular market, are proportionate and are properly recorded:  

  

• Normal and appropriate hospitality;  

• The giving of a ceremonial gift on a festival or another special time;  

• The use of any recognized fast-track process which is available to all on 

payment of a fee;  

• The offer of resources to assist the person or body to make the decision 

more efficiently provided that they are supplied for that purpose only.  

  

Inevitably, decisions as to what is acceptable may not always be easy. If anyone is in 

doubt as to whether a potential act constitutes bribery, the matter should be referred 

to the Town Clerk or in their absence the nominated Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure.  

  

 

   

Page 1093Page 143



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

4. Employee and Member Responsibility  

  

The prevention, detection and reporting of bribery is the responsibility of all employees 

and members throughout the council. Suitable channels of communication by which 

employees and others can report confidentially any suspicion of bribery will be 

maintained by the Whistleblowing procedure as detailed in the Saltash Town Council 

Grievance Procedure Policy.  

  

Strategy:  

  

1. The Town Council is committed to an effective Anti-Fraud and 

 Corruption Strategy to protect its integrity, its assets and ensure probity.   

  

2. The ethos of the organisation is one of honesty and integrity, belief in 

 the principles and practices of Best Value, and opposition to fraud and 

 corruption.  

  

3. All Members of the Town Council are required to abide by Standing 

 Orders as approved from time to time, the Code of Conduct, Financial 

 Regulations and Councillor/Staff Protocol.  

  

4. All employees are required to maintain conduct of the highest standard 

 such that confidence in their integrity, motives and impartiality is 

 sustained.  

  

5. Employees at all levels are required to assist in ensuring adherence to 

 legal requirements, policy decisions, proper procedures and best 

 practice, including in particular procurement.  

  

6. All employees must register with the Town Clerk any gifts or hospitality, 

 above the de minimis level set from time to time and abide by the 

 provisions of Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 regarding 

 any interest in contracts let by the Town Council.  

  

7. The Council will maintain a system of financial control based on a 

 framework of regular management information, financial regulations and 

 administrative procedures which include segregation of duties, 

 appropriate management and supervision, and a policy of delegation 

 and accountability.    

  

  In particular, the system includes:  

  

• comprehensive budgeting systems;  

• structural budget preparation cycle;  

• preparation of regular financial reports which indicate actual 

 income and expenditure against forecasts;  

• clearly defined capital and revenue guidelines;  

Page 1094Page 144



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Council Credit Card Control for which the Town Clerk has 

 delegated authority with the agreement of the Chairman of P and 

 F, or in their absence that of the Committee Vice Chairman, 

 Mayor or Deputy Mayor for registered staff to use the Town 

 Council Credit Card, where the expenditure in question is 

 acceptable under council regulation, and where necessary for the 

 efficient running of the council and for best value. However, in no 

 case may this be used for individual expenses to be reclaimed, 

 or in excess of the credit limit agreed by Full Council.  

  

8. The Council has an internal auditor, who is independent and who will 

 report back to the Council.  

  

9. A programme of regular internal audit is carried out in accordance with 

 proper practices by selected members as determined from time to time 

 as well as a programme of special investigations to include economy, 

 efficiency and effectiveness of operations.  

 

10. The Town Council’s operations, accounts, assets and systems are 

 subject to an independent annual audit by an auditor appointed by the 

 Audit Commission, following availability of the accounts for public 

 inspection for the period prescribed by statute.  

 

11. The Grievance Procedure is available for use by any employee wishing 

 to make a “qualifying disclosure” under the Public Interest Disclosure 

 Act 1998 and details of the criteria for this are set out in the Grievance 

 Procedure.   

 

12. If any “qualifying disclosure” under the Public Interest Disclosure Act  

 1998 is made an “Investigating Officer”, normally the Town Clerk or in 

 their absence the nominated Deputy as per the organisation staff  

structure, will be appointed to be in charge of any investigation on a day- 

to-day basis.    

  

13. The Investigating Officer will make records as the investigation 

 proceeds and report to the Chairman of Personnel. Pending this, any 

 employee making a “qualifying disclosure” must not discuss their 

 suspicions with anyone.  

  

The Town Clerk or in their absence the nominated Deputy as per the 

line management staff structure and Chairman of Personnel are 

empowered to decide when, or whether, any matters should be referred 

to the Police.  

 

 

 

 

Page 1095Page 145



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

14.  

a. Any such “qualifying disclosure” made in good faith, even if 

 subsequently held to be unfounded, would result in no 

 consequences whatsoever for the employee concerned 

 unless found to have been initiated maliciously.  

  

b. Any “qualifying disclosure”, if subsequently upheld after 

 investigation, could lead to action under the Disciplinary 

 Procedure.  

  

15. At the end of any such investigations, whether there is Police 

 involvement or not, a report will go to the Town Council and to the 

 external auditors.  

 

16. The Town Council supports the principle of continuous development for 

 staff, especially for those involved in the operation of internal control 

 systems, to ensure that there is a culture of continuous improvement.  

 

17. Any member of the public who believes there has been an incidence of 

 fraud or corruption must submit the allegation in writing to the Town 

 Clerk or Mayor, who will decide whether to initiate a formal investigation.  

 

18. Any investigation conducted will be carried out in the method as 

 recommended at that time by the Audit Commission and appropriate 

 enforcement agencies.  

  

19. Sections 11-15 to be read in conjunction with the Grievance Procedure 

 Policy.  

 

Page 1096Page 146



 

1  

DRAFT 02/2022  

Saltash Town Council 

  

  

Policy/Procedure:        

    

  

Date of Adoption:  

   

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees.  

Current Status     

Version  2022-23 DRAFT  Approved by    

Date  February 2022 Date of approval   

Responsible Officer  RFO/FO Minute reference   

Responsible 

Committee  

P&F Review date  ANNUAL  

   

Version 

History  

   

Date  Version  Author/Editor  Comments  

 FEB 2020 2 DRAFT RL/SE  Updated schedule to reflect external 

deadlines with precept submission 

February 2021 2021-22 DRAFT SE Annual review (no changes) 

June 2021 2021-22 AJT For readoption 

February 2022 2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

 

Review Record      

Date  Type of 

Review  

Minute number  Summary of 

actions  

Completed by  

          

  

 

  

 Finance Schedule and Precept Plan 2022-23 DRAFT  

 

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Page 1097

Minute Item 167/21/22

Page 147



 

2  

DRAFT 02/2022  

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 

FINANCE SCHEDULE AND PRECEPT PLAN 

  

April - May 

• Finance Officer produces end of year accounts, summary VAT claims etc.  

• Each committee examines 4th quarter budget monitoring for their committee.  

• P&F also receives summary report by committee to also consider any 

overall effects, particularly in relation to precept process predictions for ‘rest 

of year expenditure’ and quarterly VAT returns.  

• Year-end internal audit to take place for the previous financial year.  

 

May June 

• Full Council must approve the End of Year accounts (AGAR) for the previous 

financial year by the given deadline date (around the end of June) before 

submission to the external auditor (June if necessary).  

  

July    

• Committees consider 1st quarter budget monitoring reports.   

• P&F receives summary report by committee to also consider any overall 

effects, including quarterly VAT returns.  

• External audit of the End of Year accounts (AGAR) commences for the 

previous financial year and the relevant public notices are issued.  

  

September - October   

• Special Council Extraordinary Town Council meetings to be called to 

consider Town Council priorities for the forthcoming year for each 

committee.  

• If necessary, Chairs of Committees, the Mayor and Town Clerk/ RFO, meet 

to agree any changes to the precept process, and to agree which Committee 

should take on any new items.  

• Interim internal audit to take place.  

• Completion of external audit (AGAR) for the previous financial year to be 

received by the P&F Committee.  

 

November October-November 

• Committees consider 2nd quarter budget monitoring report and adjust 

estimated spend figures for financial year.   

• P&F also receives summary report by committee to also consider any 

overall effects, including quarterly VAT returns.  

• P&F agrees its own initial estimates for year-end spending and budget.  

• Following P&F each committee confirms estimates for year-end spending 

and sets initial budget for following year for that committee.  

Page 1098Page 148



 

3  

DRAFT 02/2022  

 

November December   

•  P&F considers committee recommendations, and passes any comments, 

including targets for net revenue changes, back to committees.  

• Special budget-only extraordinary meeting of P&F to submit the final budget 

and precept recommendation to Full Council.  

• P&F sets target precept, and target increase in net revenue budget for each 

committee.  

 

 

January December 

• Full Council agrees must approve precept and budget.  

• Office prepares precept statement and information for submission to Full 

Council.  

 

January – March 

• Committee’s reconsider and confirm or amend estimated spending and 

budgets in light of 3rd quarter budget monitoring report and P&F comments.   

• P&F also receives summary report by committee to consider any overall 

effects, including quarterly VAT returns.  

 

 

Page 1099Page 149



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
Saltash Town Council  

 
 
Policy/Procedure:       
  
 
Date of Adoption:
   
This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed 
by both Councillors and employees. 
 

Current status 

Version 
 

2022-23 DRAFT Approved by   

Date February 2022  Date of approval 
 

 

Responsible Officer SE Minute reference:  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date   Review date: As required 

 
 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

June 2020 08/2019 SE Update  

August 2020 
DRAFT 

08/2020 SE Update – approved 
09/2020 

February 2021 2021 SE Update (see back 
page) 

February 2022 2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

 

Review Record  

Date 
 

Type of Review Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed by 

Nov 2018 Update from audit 23.11.2018 Item 7.3 added AJT 

Dec 2018 FTC resolution 18.01.2019 3.4 Statutory 
contingency  

AJT 

Jan 2019 Tender opening 18.01.2019 12.1.e SB 
recommend increase 
minimum number cllrs 

AJT 

  539/18/19   

 

 

Financial Regulations 2022-23  

Page 1100

Minute Item 168/21/22

Page 150



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

 

 
 
 
 

  

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

STC_FINANCIAL_ 
REGULATIONS 2022-23 

       

Page 1101Page 151



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

Contents 

1. GENERAL ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

2. ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT (INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL) ....................................................... 7 

3. ANNUAL ESTIMATES (BUDGET) AND FORWARD PLANNING................................................ 8 

4. BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND ........................................................... 9 

5. BANKING ARRANGEMENTS AND AUTHORISATION OF PAYMENTS .................................. 10 

7. PAYMENT OF SALARIES .......................................................................................................... 15 

8. LOANS AND INVESTMENTS .................................................................................................... 16 

9. INCOME ...................................................................................................................................... 17 

10. PROCUREMENT ........................................................................................................................ 18 

11. ORDERS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES .................................................................... 18 

12. CONTRACTS .............................................................................................................................. 19 

13. PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR   OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORKS
 20 

14. STORES AND EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................... 21 

15. ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES .................................................................................. 21 

16. INSURANCE ............................................................................................................................... 22 

17. CHARITIES ................................................................................................................................. 22 

18. RISK MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................................. 23 

19. SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS ............................................ 23 

Saltash Town Council Financial Regulations Version History .............................................................. 25 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 1102Page 152



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

1. GENERAL 

1.1. These financial regulations govern the conduct of financial management by the 

Council and may only be amended or varied by resolution of the Council. 

Financial Regulations are one of the Council’s three governing policy documents 

providing procedural guidance for members and officers. Financial regulations 

must be observed in conjunction with the Council’s Standing Orders and any 

individual Financial Regulations relating to contracts.  

1.2. The Council is responsible in law for ensuring that its financial management is 

adequate and effective and that the Council has a sound system of internal 

control which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions, 

including arrangements for the management of risk.  

1.3. The Council has established Financial Regulations for the governance and 

management of its finances and to meet the requirements of the audit and 

accountability regime in place at the time.  These are attached as Part II of these 

Standing Orders. 

1.4. All payments by the Council shall be authorised, approved and paid in 

accordance with the law, proper practices and the Council’s Financial 

Regulations. 

1.5. The Council’s proper practices will be in accordance with the most recent JPAG 

guidance. 

1.6. The Council’s accounting control systems must include measures: 

• for the timely production of accounts; 

• that provide for the safe and efficient safeguarding of public money; 

• to prevent and detect inaccuracy and fraud; and 

• identifying the duties of officers. 

1.7. These Financial Regulations demonstrate how the Council meets these 

responsibilities and requirements. 

1.8. At least once a year, prior to approving the Annual Governance Statement, 

the Council must review the effectiveness of its system of internal control 

which shall be in accordance with proper practices. 

1.9. A breach of these Regulations may result in disciplinary action. 

1.10. Members of Council are expected to follow the instructions within these 

Regulations and not to entice employees to breach them. Failure to follow 

instructions within these Regulations brings the office of Councillor into 

disrepute. 

Page 1103Page 153



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

1.11. The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) holds a statutory office to be appointed 

by the Council. The Clerk has been appointed as RFO for this Council and these 

regulations will apply accordingly. 

1.12. The RFO; 

• acts under the policy direction of the Council;  

• administers the Council's Financial affairs in accordance with all Acts, 

Regulations and Proper Practices; 

• determines on behalf of the Council its accounting records and 

accounting control systems; 

• ensures the accounting control systems are observed; 

• maintains the accounting records of the Council up to date in accordance 

with proper practices; 

• assists the Council to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

the use of its resources; and  

• produces financial management information as required by the Council. 

1.13. The accounting records determined by the RFO shall be sufficient to show and 

explain the Council’s transactions and to enable the RFO to ensure that any 

income and expenditure account and statement of balances, or record of 

receipts and payments and additional information, as the case may be, or 

management information prepared for the Council from time to time comply 

with the Accounts and Audit Regulations1. 

1.14. The accounting records determined by the RFO shall in particular contain: 

• entries from day to day of all sums of money received and expended by 

the Council and the matters to which the income and expenditure or 

receipts and payments account relate; 

• a record of the assets and liabilities of the Council; and 

• wherever relevant, a record of the Council’s income and expenditure in 

relation to claims made, or to be made, for any contribution, grant or 

subsidy. 

1.15. The accounting control systems determined by the RFO shall include: 

• procedures to ensure that the financial transactions of the Council are 

recorded as soon as reasonably practicable and as accurately and 

reasonably as possible;  

 
1 In England - Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011/817 
 In Wales - Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005/368  

Page 1104Page 154



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• procedures to enable the prevention and detection of inaccuracies and 

fraud and the ability to reconstruct any lost records; 

• identification of the duties of officers dealing with financial transactions 

and division of responsibilities of those officers in relation to significant 

transactions; 

• procedures to ensure that uncollectable amounts, including any bad 

debts are not submitted to the Council for approval to be written off 

except with the approval of the RFO and that the approvals are shown 

in the accounting records; and 

• measures to ensure that risk is properly managed. 

1.16. The Council is not empowered by these Regulations or otherwise to delegate 

certain specified decisions. In particular, any decision regarding: 

• setting the final budget or the precept (Council Tax Requirement); 

• approving accounting statements; 

• approving an annual governance statement; 

• borrowing; 

• writing off bad debts; 

• declaring eligibility for the General Power of Competence; and 

• addressing recommendations in any report from the internal or external 

auditors, shall be a matter for the full Council only.  

1.17. In addition, the Council must: 

• determine and keep under regular review the bank mandate for all 

Council bank accounts;  

• in respect of the annual salary for any employee have regard to 

recommendations about annual salaries of employees made by the 

relevant Committee in accordance with its Terms of Reference. 

1.18. In these Financial Regulations, references to the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations or ‘the regulations’ shall mean the regulations issued under the 

provisions of section 27 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, or any superseding 

legislation, and then in force unless otherwise specified. 

In these Financial Regulations the term ‘proper practice’ or ‘proper practices’ 

shall refer to guidance issued in Governance and Accountability for Local 

Councils – a Practitioners’ Guide (England) issued by the Joint Practitioners 

Advisory Group (JPAG), available from the websites of NALC and the Society 

for Local Council Clerks (SLCC). 

Page 1105Page 155



 

7 
DRAFT 02/2022 

2. ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT (INTERNAL AND 
EXTERNAL) 

2.1. All accounting procedures and financial records of the Council shall be 
determined by the RFO in accordance with the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations, appropriate Guidance and proper practices.  

2.2. On a regular basis, at least once in each quarter, and at each financial year end, 

the Chairman of Policy and Finance Committee and Town Clerk shall be 

appointed to verify bank reconciliations (for all accounts) produced by the FO. 

The Chairman and Town Clerk shall sign the reconciliations and the original 

bank statements (or similar document) as evidence of verification. This activity 

shall on conclusion be reported, including any exceptions, to and noted by the 

Council. 

2.3. The RFO shall complete the annual statement of accounts, annual report, and 

any related documents of the Council contained in the Annual Return (as 

specified in proper practices) as soon as practicable after the end of the financial 

year and having certified the accounts shall submit them and report thereon to 

the Council within the timescales set by the Accounts and Audit Regulations by 

30th June annually.       

2.4. The Council shall ensure that there is an adequate and effective system of 

internal audit of its accounting records, and of its system of internal control in 

accordance with proper practices. Any officer or member of the Council shall 

make available such documents and records as appear to the Council to be 

necessary for the purpose of the audit and shall, as directed by the Council, 

supply the RFO, internal auditor, or external auditor with such information and 

explanation as the Council considers necessary for that purpose.  

2.5. The internal auditor shall be appointed and shall carry out the work in relation to 

internal controls required by the Council in accordance with proper practices.  

2.6. The internal auditor shall: 

• appointed every 3 years; 

• be competent and independent of the financial operations of the Council 

and declare such by a written statement on an annual basis; 

• report to Council in writing, or in person, on a regular basis with a minimum 

of one annual written report during each financial year; 

• to demonstrate competence, objectivity and independence, be free from 

any actual or perceived conflicts of interest, including those arising from 

family relationships; and 

• have no involvement in the financial decision making, management or 

control of the Council. 

Page 1106Page 156



 

8 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

2.7. Internal or external auditors may not under any circumstances: 

• perform any operational duties for the Council; 

• initiate or approve accounting transactions; or 

• direct the activities of any Council employee, except to the extent that such 

employees have been appropriately assigned to assist the internal auditor. 

2.8. For the avoidance of doubt, in relation to internal audit the terms ‘independent’ 

and ‘independence’ shall have the same meaning as is described in proper 

practices. 

2.9. The RFO shall make arrangements for the exercise of electors’ rights in relation 

to the accounts including the opportunity to inspect the accounts, books, and 

vouchers and display or publish any notices and statements of account required 

by Audit Commission Act 1998, or any superseding legislation, and the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations.  

2.10. The RFO shall, without undue delay, bring to the attention of all Councillors any 
correspondence or report from internal or external auditors. 

2.11. The Council will periodically review its internal day to day controls and 
procedures. 

 

3. ANNUAL ESTIMATES (BUDGET) AND FORWARD 
PLANNING 

3.1. Each committee shall review its five-year forecast of revenue and capital 
receipts and payments. Having regard to the forecast, it shall thereafter 
formulate and submit proposals for the following financial year to the Policy 
and Finance Committee not later than the end of December November each 
year including any proposals for revising the forecast. 

3.2. The RFO must each year, by no later than January December prepare detailed 

estimates of all receipts and payments including the use of reserves and all 

sources of funding for the following financial year in the form of a budget to be 

considered by Policy and Finance Committee. 

3.3. The Council shall consider annual budget proposals in relation to the Council’s 

five-year forecast of revenue and capital receipts and payments including 

recommendations for the use of reserves and sources of funding and update the 

forecast accordingly. 

3.4. The contingency budget shall be a minimum of 3 months and a maximum of 12 

months operating costs. 

 

Page 1107Page 157



 

9 
DRAFT 02/2022 

3.5. The contingency budget of a minimum of 3 months operating costs and a 

maximum of twelve months operating costs of the Council shall be related and 

available from the contingency, EMF’s and capital works arising from devolved 

assets and services. 

3.6. The Council shall fix the precept (Council tax requirement), and relevant basic 

amount of Council tax to be levied for the ensuing financial year not later than 

by the end of January each year. The RFO shall issue the precept to the billing 

authority and shall supply each member with a copy of the approved annual 

budget. 

3.7. The approved annual budget shall form the basis of financial control for the 

ensuing year. 

 

4. BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND 
4.1. Expenditure on revenue items may be authorised up to the amounts included 

for that class of expenditure in the Committee approved budget.  This authority 
is to be determined by: 

 

• The Town Clerk shall have delegated authority himself and delegated 
authority to authorise members of staff to disperse other monies with the 
authority of Full Council or Committees under the following restrictions: 
 

• Tender for all items over £50,000. 
 

• Three written quotes up to £50k. 
 

• The Clerk, in conjunction with Chairman of Council or Chairman of the 
appropriate committee, for items up to £10,000.   

Such authority is to be evidenced by a Minute or by an authorisation slip duly 

signed by the Clerk, and where necessary also by the appropriate Chairman. 

Contracts may not be disaggregated to avoid controls imposed by these 

regulations. 

4.2. No expenditure may be authorised that will exceed the amount provided in the 

revenue budget for that class of expenditure other than by resolution of the 

Council, or duly delegated committee. During the budget year and with the 

approval of Council having considered fully the implications for public services, 

unspent and available amounts may be moved to other budget headings or to 

an earmarked reserve as appropriate (‘virement’). 

4.3. The FO to conduct regular checks to ensure all expenditure is within the 
powers of the Council to undertake and comply with the EU Procurement 
Directive (see section 10.1 procurement) 

Page 1108Page 158



 

10 
DRAFT 02/2022 

4.4. Unspent provisions in the revenue or capital budgets for completed projects shall 

not be carried forward to a subsequent year.  

4.5. The salary budgets are to be reviewed at least annually in September by the 

individual Committees in conjunction with the Personnel Committee for the 

following financial year and such review shall be evidenced by a hard copy 

schedule signed by the Clerk and the Chairman of Council or relevant 

committee. The RFO will inform committees of any changes impacting on their 

budget requirement for the coming year in good time. 

4.6. In cases of extreme risk to the delivery of Council services, the clerk may 

authorise revenue expenditure on behalf of the Council which in the clerk’s 

judgement it is necessary to carry out. Such expenditure includes repair, 

replacement or other work, whether or not there is any budgetary provision for 

the expenditure, subject to a limit of £1,000. The Clerk shall report such action 

to the chairman as soon as possible and to the Council as soon as practicable 

thereafter. 

4.7. No expenditure shall be authorised in relation to any capital project and no 

contract entered into or tender accepted involving capital expenditure unless the 

Council is satisfied that the necessary funds are available, and the requisite 

borrowing approval has been obtained. 

4.8. All capital works shall be administered in accordance with the Council's standing 

orders and financial regulations relating to contracts. 

4.9. The RFO shall regularly provide the Council with a statement of receipts and 

payments to date under each head of the budgets, comparing actual expenditure 

to the appropriate date against that planned as shown in the budget. These 

statements are to be prepared at least at the end of each financial quarter and 

shall show explanations of material variances. For this purpose, “material” shall 

be in excess of 15% of the budget. 

4.10. Changes in earmarked reserves shall be approved by Council as part of the 

budgetary control process. 

 

5. BANKING ARRANGEMENTS AND AUTHORISATION OF 
PAYMENTS  

5.1. The Council's banking arrangements, including the bank mandate, shall be 
made by the RFO and approved by the Council; banking arrangements may 
not be delegated to a committee.  They shall be regularly reviewed for safety 
and efficiency.  

5.2. The RFO shall prepare a monthly schedule of payments made forming part of 

the Agenda for Full Council and present the schedule to Council. The Council 

shall review the schedule for compliance and having satisfied itself shall 

Page 1109Page 159



 

11 
DRAFT 02/2022 

authorise by a resolution of the Council. A detailed list of all payments shall be 

disclosed within or as an attachment to the minutes of the meeting. Personal 

payments (including salaries, wages, expenses and any payment made in 

relation to the termination of a contract of employment) may be summarised to 

remove public access to any personal information. 

5.3. All invoices for payment shall be examined, verified and certified by the RFO, 

Budget Line Manager, Finance Officer and two Councillors to confirm that the 

work, goods or services to which each invoice relates has been received, carried 

out, examined and represents expenditure previously approved by the Council. 

5.4. The Finance Officer shall examine invoices for arithmetical accuracy and 

analyse them to the appropriate expenditure heading. The Finance Officer shall 

take all steps to pay all invoices submitted, and which are in order. 

5.5. The Clerk and Finance Officer shall have delegated authority to authorise the 

payment of items only in the following circumstances: 

a) If a payment is necessary to avoid a charge to interest under the Late 

Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, and the due date for 

payment is before the next scheduled Meeting of Council, where the Clerk 

and Finance Officer certify that there is no dispute or other reason to delay 

payment, provided that a list of such payments shall be submitted to the 

next appropriate meeting of Council. 

b) An expenditure item authorised under 5.6 below (continuing contracts and 

obligations) provided that a list of such payments shall be submitted to the 

next appropriate meeting of Council or  

c) fund transfers within the Councils banking arrangements provided that a 

list of such payments shall be submitted to the next appropriate meeting of 

Council. 

5.6. For each financial year the Finance Officer shall draw up a list of due payments 

which arise on a regular basis as the result of a continuing contract, statutory 

duty, or obligation such as but not exclusively, Salaries, PAYE and NI, 

Superannuation Fund and regular maintenance contracts and the like for which 

Council or a duly authorised committee may authorise payment for the year 

provided that the requirements of regulation 4.1 (Budgetary Controls) are 

adhered to, provided also that a list of such payments shall be submitted to the 

next appropriate meeting of Council. 

5.7. On a monthly basis a record of regular payments made under 5.6 above shall 

be drawn up and be signed by FO, RFO and two members on each and every 

occasion when payment is authorised - thus controlling the risk of duplicated 

payments being authorised and / or made. 

Page 1110Page 160



 

12 
DRAFT 02/2022 

5.8. In respect of grants a duly authorised committee shall approve expenditure 

within any limits set by Council and in accordance with any Policy statement 

approved by Council.  

5.9. Members are subject to the Code of Conduct that has been adopted by the 

Council and shall comply with the Code and Standing Orders when a decision 

to authorise or instruct payment is made in respect of a matter in which they 

have a disclosable pecuniary or other interest, unless a dispensation has been 

granted. 

5.10. The Council will aim to rotate the duties of members in these Regulations so that 

onerous duties are shared out as evenly as possible over time. 

5.11. Any changes in the recorded details of suppliers, such as bank account records, 

shall be approved in writing by the Chairman of Policy and Finance. 

 

6. INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MAKING OF PAYMENTS 

6.1. The Council will make safe and efficient arrangements for the making of its 
payments. 

6.2. Following authorisation under Financial Regulation 5 above, the Council, a duly 

delegated committee or, if so delegated, the Clerk or RFO shall give instruction 

that a payment shall be made. 

6.3. All payments shall be effected by cheque or other instructions to the Council's 

bankers, or otherwise, in accordance with a resolution of Council.  

6.4. Cheques or orders for payment drawn on the bank account in accordance with 

the schedule as presented to Council shall be signed by two members of Council 

and countersigned by the line manager and Financial Officer in accordance with 

a resolution relating to that payment. If a member who is also a bank signatory 

has declared a disclosable pecuniary interest, or has any other interest, in the 

matter in respect of which the payment is being made, that Councillor shall be 

required to consider Standing Orders, and thereby determine whether it is 

appropriate and / or permissible to be a signatory to the transaction in question. 

6.5. To indicate agreement of the details shown on the cheque or order for payment 

with the counterfoil and the invoice or similar documentation, the signatories 

shall each also initial the cheque counterfoil. 

6.6. Cheques or orders for payment shall be reported to the Council at the next 

convenient meeting.  

6.7. If thought appropriate by the Council, payment for utility supplies (energy, 

telephone and water) and any National Non-Domestic Rates may be made 

by variable Direct Debit provided that the instructions are signed by two 

members and any payments are reported to Council as made. The 

Page 1111Page 161



 

13 
DRAFT 02/2022 

approval of the use of a variable Direct Debit shall be renewed by 

resolution of the Council at least every two years. 

6.8. If thought appropriate by the Council, payment for certain items 

(principally Salaries) may be made by Banker’s Standing Order provided 

that the instructions are signed, or otherwise evidenced by two members 

are retained and any payments are reported to Council as made. The 

approval of the use of a Banker’s Standing Order shall be renewed by 

resolution of the Council at least every two years. 

6.9. If thought appropriate by the Council, payment for certain items may be 

made by BACS or CHAPS methods provided that the instructions for each 

payment are signed, or otherwise evidenced, by two authorised bank 

signatories are retained and any payments are reported to Council as 

made. The approval of the use of BACS or CHAPS shall be renewed by 

resolution of the Council at least every two years. 

6.10. If thought appropriate by the Council payment for certain items may be made by 

the Council credit card or internet banking transfer provided evidence is retained 

showing which members approved the payment. 

6.11. Any Credit/Debit Card issued for use will be specifically restricted to a limit of 

£4,000 to be paid off in full each month. 

The card only be used for corporate procurement and no personal use. 

The authorisation to use the card is delegated to the Chairman, Vice 

Chairman of Policy and Finance Committee, Finance Officer and the Clerk.  

 

A pre-paid debit card may be issued to employees with varying limits. These 

limits will be set by the Council. Transactions and purchases made will be 

reported to the Council and authority for topping-up shall be at the discretion of 

the Council. 

 

Any corporate credit card or trade card account opened by the Council will be 

specifically restricted to:  

 

• A limit of £2,000 expenditure activity to be paid off in full each month. 

 

• The accounts only be used for corporate procurement and no personal use. 

 

• The authorisation to use the corporate credit card be delegated to the  

Chairman, Vice Chairman of Policy and Finance Committee, Finance Officer 

and the Clerk and in the absence of the Clerk the DeputyTown Clerk. 

 

Personal credit or debit cards of members or staff shall not be used under any 

circumstances. 

Page 1112Page 162



 

14 
DRAFT 02/2022 

6.12. Where a computer requires use of a personal identification number (PIN) or 

other password(s), for access to the Council’s records on that computer, a note 

shall be made of the PIN and Passwords and shall be retained in a sealed dated 

envelope in the safe.  This envelope may not be opened other than in the 

presence of two other Councillors. After the envelope has been opened, in any 

circumstances, the PIN and / or passwords shall be changed as soon as 

practicable. The fact that the sealed envelope has been opened, in whatever 

circumstances, shall be reported to all members immediately and formally to the 

next available meeting of the Council. This will not be required for a member’s 

personal computer used only for remote authorisation of bank payments. 

6.13. No employee or Councillor shall disclose any PIN or password, relevant to the 

working of the Council or its bank accounts, to any person not authorised in 

writing by the Council or a duly delegated committee. 

6.14. Regular back-up copies of the records on any computer shall be made and shall 

be stored securely away from the computer in question, and preferably off site. 

6.15. The Council, and any members using computers for the Council’s financial 

business, shall ensure that anti-virus, anti-spyware and firewall, software with 

automatic updates, together with a high level of security, is used. 

6.16. Where internet banking arrangements are made with any bank, the Finance 

Officer shall be appointed as the Service Administrator. The Bank Mandate 

approved by the Council shall identify a number of Councillors who will be 

authorised to approve transactions on those accounts. The bank mandate will 

state clearly the amounts of payments that can be instructed by the use of the 

Service Administrator alone, or by the Service Administrator with a stated 

number of approvals. 

6.17. Access to any internet banking accounts will be directly to the access page 

(which may be saved under “favourites”), and not through a search engine or e-

mail link.  Remembered or saved passwords facilities must not be used on any 

computer used for Council banking work. Breach of this Regulation will be 

treated as a very serious matter under these regulations. 

6.18. Supplier bank details used for electronic payments are particularly vulnerable to 

fraud or error and it is therefore essential that the following procedure is followed 

to carry out any changes. 

 

Any requests for change to supplier bank details for payments must be received 

by written hard copy notification from the supplier. 

 

The written hard copy notification from the supplier must be authenticated and 

confirmed by further email communication with the supplier. 

 

Page 1113Page 163



 

15 
DRAFT 02/2022 

The written hard copy notification from the supplier and the email authentication 

and confirmation must be signed by a Councillor and the Town Clerk prior to any 

change being made to the supplier bank details. 

 

The Chairman or Vice Chairman of Policy and Finance Committee will check 

and sign off standing data of all suppliers’ bank details on a monthly basis when 

signing the bank reconciliations. 

 

6.19. The Finance Officer may provide petty cash to officers for the purpose of 

defraying operational and other expenses. Vouchers for payments made shall 

be forwarded to the FO with a claim for reimbursement. 

a) The FO shall maintain a petty cash float of £390 (which includes Library 

float) for the purpose of defraying operational and other expenses. 

Vouchers for payments made from petty cash shall be kept to substantiate 

the payment. 

b) Income received must not be paid into the petty cash float but must be 

separately banked, as provided elsewhere in these regulations. 

c) Payments to maintain the petty cash float shall be shown separately on the 

schedule of payments presented to Council under 5.2 above.    

 

7. PAYMENT OF SALARIES 
7.1. As an employer, the Council shall make arrangements to meet fully the 

statutory requirements placed on all employers by PAYE and National 
Insurance legislation. The payment of all salaries shall be made in accordance 
with payroll records and the rules of PAYE and National Insurance currently 
operating, and salary rates shall be as agreed by Council, or duly delegated 
committee. 

7.2. The Clerk and Chairman of Policy and Finance Committee will conduct regular 

checks to ensure that PAYE and VAT regulations have been followed. 

7.3. Employee timesheets do not need to be signed by the Clerk as long as this is 

carried out by individual line managers. 

7.4. Payment of salaries and payment of deductions from salary such as may be 

required to be made for tax, national insurance and pension contributions, or 

similar statutory or discretionary deductions must be made in accordance with 

the payroll records and on the appropriate dates stipulated in employment 

contracts, provided that each payment is reported to the next available Council 

meeting, as set out in these regulations above. 

7.5. No changes shall be made to any employee’s pay, emoluments, or terms and 

conditions of employment without the prior consent of the Council.  

Page 1114Page 164



 

16 
DRAFT 02/2022 

7.6. Each and every payment to employees of net salary and to the appropriate 

creditor of the statutory and discretionary deductions shall be recorded in a 

separate confidential record (confidential cash book). This confidential record is 

not open to inspection or review (under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or 

otherwise) other than: 

a) by any Councillor who can demonstrate a need to know; 

b) by the internal auditor; 

c) by the external auditor; or 

d) by any person authorised under Audit Commission Act 1998, or any 

superseding legislation. 

7.7. The total of such payments in each calendar month shall be reported with all 

other payments as made as may be required under these Financial Regulations, 

to ensure that only payments due for the period have actually been paid. 

7.8. An effective system of personal performance management should be 

maintained for the senior officers. 

7.9. Any termination payments shall be supported by a clear business case and 

reported to the Council. Termination payments shall only be authorised by 

Council. 

7.10. Before employing interim staff, the Council must consider a full business case. 

 

8. LOANS AND INVESTMENTS 
8.1. All borrowings shall be effected in the name of the Council, after obtaining any 

necessary borrowing approval. Any application for borrowing approval shall 
be approved by Council as to terms and purpose. The application for 
Borrowing Approval, and subsequent arrangements for the Loan shall only be 
approved by full Council. 

8.2. Any financial arrangement which does not require formal Borrowing Approval 

from the Secretary of State/Welsh Assembly Government (such as Hire 

Purchase or Leasing of tangible assets) shall be subject to approval by the full 

Council. In each case a report in writing shall be provided to Council in respect 

of value for money for the proposed transaction. 

8.3. All loans and investments shall be negotiated in the name of the Council and 

shall be for a set period in accordance with Council policy.  

8.4. The Council shall consider the need for an Investment Strategy and Policy 

which, if drawn up, shall be in accordance with relevant regulations, proper 

practices and guidance. Any Strategy and Policy shall be reviewed by the 

Council at least annually.  

Page 1115Page 165



 

17 
DRAFT 02/2022 

8.5. All investments of money under the control of the Council shall be in the name 

of the Council. 

8.6. All investment certificates and other documents relating thereto shall be retained 

in the custody of the RFO. 

8.7. Payments in respect of short term or long term investments, including transfers 

between bank accounts held in the same bank, or branch, shall be made in 

accordance with Regulation 5 (Authorisation of payments) and Regulation 6 

(Instructions for payments). 

 

9. INCOME 
9.1. The collection of all sums due to the Council shall be the responsibility of and 

under the supervision of the RFO. 

9.2. Particulars of all charges to be made for work done, services rendered or goods 

supplied shall be agreed annually by the Council, notified to the RFO and the 

RFO shall be responsible for the collection of all accounts due to the Council. 

9.3. The Council will review all fees and charges at least annually, following a report 

of the Clerk.  

9.4. Any sums found to be irrecoverable and any bad debts shall be reported to the 

Council and shall be written off in the year. 

9.5. All sums received on behalf of the Council shall be banked intact as directed by 

the RFO. In all cases, all receipts shall be deposited with the Council's bankers 

with such frequency as the RFO considers necessary. 

9.6. The origin of each receipt shall be entered on the paying-in slip. 

9.7. Personal cheques shall not be cashed out of money held on behalf of the 

Council. 

9.8. The RFO shall promptly complete any VAT Return that is required. Any 

repayment claim due in accordance with VAT Act 1994 section 33 shall be made 

at least annually coinciding with the financial year end. 

9.9. Where any significant sums of cash are regularly received by the Council, the 

RFO shall take such steps as are agreed by the Council to ensure that more 

than one person is present when the cash is counted in the first instance, that 

there is a reconciliation to some form of control such as ticket issues, and that 

appropriate care is taken in the security and safety of individuals banking such 

cash. 

9.10. Any income arising which is the property of a charitable trust shall be paid into 

a charitable bank account.  Instructions for the payment of funds due from the 

charitable trust to the Council (to meet expenditure already incurred by the 

Page 1116Page 166



 

18 
DRAFT 02/2022 

authority) will be given by the Managing Trustees of the charity meeting 

separately from any Council meeting (see also Regulation 16 below). 

Please refer to the Income and Banking Procedure which is augment to the 

above income regulations. 

10. PROCUREMENT 

10.1. The European Union Procurement Directive shall apply and the terms of the 

Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2015 

including thresholds shall be followed: 

•  Up to £25,000 Requirements in the Councils standing orders and financial 

standing orders. 

 

•  Over £25,000 Use of the Contract Finder website and other light touch rules 

in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. 

 

 European Union requirements and the ‘threshold’ EU requirements apply to 

any contract the value of which exceeds the ‘threshold’. The threshold is 

reviewed every two years. For contracts commencing on or after 1st January 

2018 the threshold is: 

 

•  Over £181,302 for contracts for supplies and services or £4,551,413 for works 

contracts. Other detailed and complex requirements in the 2018 Regulations. 

 E.U. requirements include (but are not limited to) a requirement to advertise in 

the Official Journal of the European Union. 

 

11. ORDERS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES 
11.1. An official order or letter shall be issued for all work, goods and services unless 

a formal contract is to be prepared or an official order would be inappropriate. 
Copies of orders shall be retained. 

11.2. Order books shall be controlled by the Finance Officer. 

11.3. All members and Officers are responsible for obtaining value for money at all 

times. An officer issuing an official order shall ensure as far as reasonable and 

practicable that the best available terms are obtained in respect of each 

transaction, usually by obtaining three or more quotations or estimates from 

appropriate suppliers, subject to any de minimis provisions in Regulation 13.1 

below. 

11.4. A member may not issue an official order or make any contract on behalf of the 

Council. 

Page 1117Page 167



 

19 
DRAFT 02/2022 

11.5. The Finance Officer shall verify the lawful nature of any proposed purchase 

before the issue of any order, and in the case of new or infrequent purchases 

or payments, the Finance Officer shall ensure that the statutory authority shall 

be reported to the meeting at which the order is approved so that the Minutes 

can record the power being used. 

 

12. CONTRACTS 
12.1. Procedures as to contracts are laid down as follows: 

a. Every contract shall comply with these financial regulations, and no 

exceptions shall be made otherwise than in an emergency provided that 

this regulation need not apply to contracts which relate to items (i) to (vi) 

below: 

i. for the supply of gas, electricity, water, sewerage and telephone 

services; 

ii. for specialist services such as are provided by legal professionals 

acting in disputes; 

iii. for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which 

consist of repairs to or parts for existing machinery or equipment or 

plant; 

iv. for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which 

constitute an extension of an existing contract by the Council; 

v. for additional audit work of the external Auditor up to an estimated 

value of £500 (in excess of this sum the Clerk and RFO shall act 

after consultation with the Chairman and Vice Chairman of Council); 

and 

vi. for goods or materials proposed to be purchased which are 

proprietary articles and / or are only sold at a fixed price. 

b. Where it is intended to enter into a contract exceeding £50,000 in value for 

the supply of goods or materials or for the execution of works or specialist 

services other than such goods, materials, works or specialist services as 

are excepted as set out in paragraph (a) the Clerk shall invite tenders from 

at least three firms to be taken from an appropriate approved list. 

c.  When applications are made to waive financial regulations relating to 

contracts to enable a price to be negotiated without competition the reason 

shall be embodied in a recommendation to the Council. 

d. Such invitation to tender shall state the general nature of the intended 

contract and the Clerk shall obtain the necessary technical assistance to 

prepare a specification in appropriate cases. The invitation shall in addition 

Page 1118Page 168



 

20 
DRAFT 02/2022 

state that tenders must be addressed to the Clerk in the ordinary course of 

post. Each tendering firm shall be supplied with a specifically marked 

envelope in which the tender is to be sealed and remain sealed or secure 

email address (which account has access restricted to the Deputy Town 

Clerk and Administration Officer) until the prescribed date for opening 

tenders for that contract. 

e. All sealed tenders shall be opened at the same time on the prescribed date 

by the Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk in the presence of at least one member 

of the Council. Tenders received in the secure email account will be 

opened by either the Deputy Town Clerk or Administration Officer in the 

presence of the Town Clerk. 

f. If less than three tenders are received for contracts above £50,000 or if all 

the tenders are identical the Council may make such arrangements as it 

thinks fit for procuring the goods or materials or executing the works. 

g. Any invitation to tender issued under this regulation shall refer to the 

Anti-Bribery Policy Statement and Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

Strategy. 

h. When it is intended to enter into a contract of less than £50,000 and above 

£5,000 in value for the supply of goods or materials or for the execution of 

works or specialist services other than such goods, materials, works or 

specialist services as are excepted as set out in paragraph (a) the Clerk or 

FO shall obtain 3 quotations (priced descriptions of the proposed supply); 

where the value is below £5,000 the Clerk or RFO shall strive to obtain 3 

estimates. Otherwise, Regulation 12.1 (ii) above shall apply. 

i. The Council shall not be obliged to accept the lowest or any tender, quote 

or estimate. 

j. Should it occur that the Council, or duly delegated committee, does not 

accept any tender, quote or estimate, the work is not allocated and the 

Council requires further pricing, provided that the specification does not 

change, no person shall be permitted to submit a later tender, estimate 

or quote who was present when the original decision making process 

was being undertaken. 

 

13. PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR   
OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORKS 

13.1. Payments on account of the contract sum shall be made within the time 
specified in the contract by the RFO upon authorised certificates of the 
architect or other consultants engaged to supervise the contract (subject to 
any percentage withholding as may be agreed in the particular contract). 

Page 1119Page 169



 

21 
DRAFT 02/2022 

13.2. Where contracts provide for payment by instalments the RFO shall maintain a 

record of all such payments. In any case where it is estimated that the total cost 

of work carried out under a contract, excluding agreed variations, will exceed the 

contract sum of 5% or more a report shall be submitted to the Council. 

13.3. Any variation to a contract or addition to or omission from a contract must be 

approved by the Council or delegated committee and Clerk to the contractor in 

writing, the Council or delegated committee being informed where the final cost 

is likely to exceed the financial provision. 

 

14. STORES AND EQUIPMENT 
14.1. The officer in charge of each section shall be responsible for the care and 

custody of stores and equipment in that section. 

14.2.      Delivery Notes shall be obtained in respect of all goods received into store or 

otherwise delivered and goods must be checked as to order and quality at the 

time delivery is made. 

14.3. Stocks shall be kept at the minimum levels consistent with operational 

requirements. 

14.4. The FO in conjunction with Line Managers shall be responsible for periodic 

checks of stocks and stores at least annually. 

 

15. ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES 
15.1. The Clerk shall make appropriate arrangements for the custody of all title 

deeds and Land Registry Certificates of properties held by the Council. The 
RFO shall ensure a record is maintained of all properties held by the Council, 
recording the location, extent, plan, reference, purchase details, nature of the 
interest, tenancies granted, rents payable and purpose for which held in 
accordance with Accounts and Audit Regulations. 

15.2. No tangible moveable property shall be purchased or otherwise acquired without 

the authority of the Council or delegated Committee, together with any other 

consents required by law, save where the estimated value of any one item of 

tangible movable property does not exceed £1,000. 

15.3. No tangible moveable property shall be sold, leased or otherwise disposed of, 

without the authority of the Council or delegated Committee, together with any 

other consents required by law, save where the estimated value of any one item 

of tangible movable property does not exceed £250. 

15.4. No real property (interests in land) shall be sold, leased or otherwise disposed 

of without the authority of the Council, together with any other consents required 

by law, In each case a Report in writing shall be provided to Council in respect 

Page 1120Page 170



 

22 
DRAFT 02/2022 

of valuation and surveyed condition of the property (including matters such as 

planning permissions and covenants) together with a proper business case 

(including an adequate level of consultation with the electorate). 

15.5. No real property (interests in land) shall be purchased or acquired without the 

authority of the full Council. In each case a Report in writing shall be provided to 

Council in respect of valuation and surveyed condition of the property (including 

matters such as planning permissions and covenants) together with a proper 

business case (including an adequate level of consultation with the electorate). 

15.6. Subject only to the limit set in Reg.15.2 above, no tangible moveable property 

shall be purchased or acquired without the authority of the full Council or 

delegated Committee. In each case a Report in writing shall be provided to 

Council with a full business case. 

15.7. The RFO shall ensure that an appropriate and accurate Register of Assets and 

Investments is kept up to date.  The continued existence of tangible assets 

shown in the Register shall be verified at least annually, possibly in conjunction 

with a health and safety inspection of assets. 

 

16. INSURANCE 
16.1. Following the annual risk assessment (Financial Regulation 18), the FO in 

conjunction with Line Managers shall effect all insurances and negotiate all 
claims on the Council's insurers in consultation with the Clerk. 

16.2. Line Managers shall give prompt notification to the FO of all new risks, properties 

or vehicles which require to be insured and of any alterations affecting existing 

insurances. 

16.3. The RFO shall keep a record of all insurances effected by the Council and the 

property and risks covered thereby and annually review it. 

16.4. The RFO shall be notified of any loss liability or damage or of any event likely to 

lead to a claim and shall report these to Council at the next available meeting. 

16.5. All appropriate members and employees of the Council shall be included in a 

suitable form of security or fidelity guarantee insurance which shall cover the 

maximum risk exposure as determined annually by the Council, or duly 

delegated committee. 

 

17. CHARITIES 
17.1. Where the Council is sole managing trustee of a charitable body the Clerk   and 

RFO shall ensure that separate accounts are kept of the funds held on charitable 

trusts and separate financial reports made in such form as shall be appropriate, 

in accordance with Charity Law and legislation, or as determined by the Charity 

Page 1121Page 171



 

23 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Commission. The Clerk and RFO shall arrange for any Audit or Independent 

Examination as may be required by Charity Law or any Governing Document. 

 

18. RISK MANAGEMENT 
18.1. The Council is responsible for putting in place arrangements for the 

management of risk. The Clerk with the FO and Senior Policy & Data 
Compliance Monitoring Officer shall prepare, for approval by the Council, risk 
management policy statements in respect of all activities of the Council. Risk 
policy statements and consequential risk management arrangements shall be 
reviewed by the Council at least annually. 

18.2. When considering any new activity, the Clerk with the FO shall prepare a draft 

risk assessment including risk management proposals for consideration and 

adoption by the Council.  

 

19. SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL 
REGULATIONS 

19.1. It shall be the duty of the Council to review the Financial Regulations of the 
Council from time to time. The Clerk shall make arrangements with the FO 
and Senior Policy & Data Compliance Monitoring Officer to monitor changes 
in legislation or proper practices and shall advise the Council of any 
requirement for a consequential amendment to these financial regulations. 

19.2. The Council may, by resolution of the Council duly notified prior to the relevant 

meeting of Council, suspend any part of these Financial Regulations provided 

that reasons for the suspension are recorded and that an assessment of the 

risks arising has been drawn up and presented in advance to all members of 

Council. 

 

  

Page 1122Page 172



 

24 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

Notes to the Model 

Stated dates or months may be changed to suit local circumstances. 

[square brackets ] This part may be deleted if not relevant. An alternative may have been 

provided. 

Where the word “regularly” is used in the text it is for the individual Council to set the required 

interval, monthly, quarterly, or half-yearly. This period should never exceed 12 months. 

The value inserted in square brackets in [..] any of the paragraphs (other than the EU 

Procurement thresholds referred to in 11.1(l)) may be varied by the Council and should be 

reviewed regularly and confirmed annually by the Council. 

The appropriate approved list referred to in paragraph 13.1 shall be a list drawn up by the Clerk 

and approved by Council but, normally shall be based on the list maintained by the District 

Council for such works.  

Every effort has been made to ensure that the contents of this document are correct at time 

of publication.  The National Association of Local Councils (NALC) cannot accept responsibility 

for errors, omissions and changes to information subsequent to publication. 

 

  

Page 1123Page 173



 

25 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council Financial Regulations Version 
History 

 

Date Summary of amendments 

08.01.2015 Adopted FTC 

07.04.2016 Revised Financial Regulations approved 

April 2018 Updated P&R 

August 2018 Updates recommended P&R 

Approved FTC September 2018 

November 2018 7. Payment of salaries (timesheet signatories). Auditor 

advice. 

January 2018 3.4/3.5 Statutory contingency (FTC 06.12.2018) 

12e Tender opening, number of Councillors present 

increased to two. (Office Manager input.) 

March 2019 NALC/CALC various recommendations. 

August 2020 Amendments to sections 3;4;5;14;16 

APPROVED 09/2020 

March 2021  Amendments to 2.3; 6.4;6.11 

June 2021 For readoption (new council) 

February 2022 Annual review 

 

Page 1124Page 174



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
Saltash Town Council 

 
 

Policy/Procedure:       
  
 
Date of Adoption: 
  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 
both Councillors and employees. 
 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 Approved by   

Date February 2022 Date of approval  

Responsible Officer Finance Officer Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F  Review date Annual 

 
 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

29th January 19 1st Sonia Emmett New 

February 2022  2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

    
 

Review Record 

Date Type of 
Review 

Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed by 

  480/18/19   

10/02/2020 As required  Updated Job Titles SE 

May 2021 For reapproval 
– new council 

 No changes AJT 

 
Document Retention 

Document retention period Until superseded 

  

 

Receipting of Income and Banking Procedures DRAFT 
 

Page 1125

Minute Item 169/21/22

Page 175



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Saltash Town Council 
Receipting of Income and Banking 

Procedures 
  

Page 1126Page 176



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Contents  
 
 

Introduction and purpose       4 

 
Legislation, guidance and standards      5 
 
Monitoring arrangements       5 
 
Risk Assessment          5 
          
Roles and Accountabilities       5 
 
In the Event of Attempted Robbery      6 
 
Main Procedure         6 
 
Card Payments         7 
 
Departmental Logs        8 
 
Audit Checks         8 
 
Reporting Irregularities        8 
 
 
  

Page 1127Page 177



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
This document is in addition to 9.11 of the Financial Regulations 

Introduction and Purpose 
 
The Income and Banking Procedure augment the Financial Regulations on Banking 
Arrangements, Income, Petty Cash and Security and therefore, have the same 
standing as the Financial Regulations. 
 
RFO must ensure that all line managers within their departments have read and 
understood the Procedure and that they are complied with at all times. Furthermore, 
all staff involved in cash handling and banking should be made aware of the 
requirements of and have access to the Procedure.  Line Managers and staff should 
be advised that disciplinary procedures may be taken against them if they fail to 
comply with the Procedure. 
 
The Procedure represent the minimum standard that must operate throughout the 
Council. Under no circumstances should the requirements of the Procedure be 
reduced or omitted.  
  
The Procedure is intended to offer guidance to line managers and staff on the 
minimum required procedure for the collection, control and banking of Council income. 
The procedure outlines the Receipting and Banking of all monies that are collected, 
receipted, recorded and banked and applies to all council staff. For the purpose of 
this procedure income includes that received direct by cash, cheques, card held on 
Council premises. 
 
The RFO is responsible for ensuring that there are effective income collection systems 
that enable all income to be identified, collected, receipted and banked properly, and 
that VAT is correctly accounted for. 
 
It is preferable that income is obtained in advance or at the point of supplying goods 
or services as this avoids the time and cost of administering debts. 
 
All staff receiving monies and dealing with receipts must be fully aware of the need for 
complete honesty and integrity and the security implications of handling cash. All 
monies received by an employee on behalf of the council must be properly recorded 
and paid without delay into the Council’s bank account by following the procedure 
below.  
 
The following are not permitted from any cash takings/receipts:  
 

• The cashing of personal cheques even if the intention is to reimburse later  
• Taking cash for personal use and paying it back at a later date 
• The topping up of any petty cash float 
• The payment of travel expenses or advances to employees  
• The payment to individuals for services supplied (e.g. payments to visitors for 

travel expenses)  
• The payment of external suppliers for services rendered 

Page 1128Page 178



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• No monies should be removed from any council premises unless it is to follow 
the procedure. 

 
The Finance Officer will ensure that all departments are supplied with receipt books 
and other documents as appropriate and that there are control procedures in place. 
Card, Cash and cheques are received by Saltash Town Council as part of the day-to-
day management of the council. All cheques should be made payable to Saltash 
Town Council except if it is a charity donation to the Mayor’s Charity A/c, this should 
be made payable to Saltash Town Council Mayor’s Charity. The receipts may result 
from daily takings or the payment of invoices issued previously by finance. This section 
describes the procedures for collecting (receipting) and banking (departmental 
banking) card, cash and cheques. 
All employees are responsible for the administration and supervision of all council 
banking. 

Legislation, Guidance and Standards 
 
The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 Corporate Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Policy 

Monitoring Arrangements 
 
This document shall be subject to audit and shall be reviewed once in every two years 
or following substantial change. Such change shall include but not be exclusive to; 
new/increased risk identified by assessment, changes to payment, collection and 
storage methodologies, changes to staffing arrangements and transit processes.  

Risk Assessment 
 
All sites where cash payments are accepted and / or cash may be in transit shall be 
subject to risk assessment. Such risk assessment to consider as a minimum; 
 

• Staff competencies 

• Secure handling & storage processes 

• Secure transit processes 

• Responses to attempted robbery 
 

Roles and Accountabilities 
Security of Cash on Departmental Premises 
 
Cash held should be kept to a maximum of £100 of cash at any time. The member of 
staff that is on duty should be responsible for the safeguarding of funds and ensure 
that all monies are kept in a safe or lockable cash box or secured in a locked cupboard 
or drawer. Banking should be handed into the council reception at the end of each 
day. If this is not possible i.e. it’s a weekend receipt it should be kept secure overnight 
and out of public view and handed into reception on the next available working day. 
No cash should be left unattended and must be receipted by the member of staff as 
detailed below. 
 

Page 1129Page 179



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Cash should not be sent through the mail by a member of staff to reception for banking 
- any cash should be delivered in person. 
Petty cash should also be kept locked away and out of public view. 
Keys to petty cash boxes and/ or safes should be kept in a safe place and out of sight 
at all times. 

In the Event of Attempted Robbery 
 

• Staff should not endanger their safety in any way and should comply with 
demands imposed. 

• Hand over cash as required 

• Staff should not activate Police linked panic alarms (where applicable) unless 
it is safe for them to do so and can be done discreetly without provoking the 
situation 

• Where possible staff should note any distinguishing features of the thieves, i.e. 
facial features, voice and mannerisms. 

• Post event, the incident should be reported to the police immediately by calling 
999. 

• The incident should be reported to the Town Clerk or in their absence the 
nominated Deputy as per the line management staff structure immediately. 

• Where possible, still images should be obtained from CCTV systems and 
shared internally, within the defined limits of the Data Protection Act. Please 
note, Police requisition of CCTV records may be required. 

Main Procedure 
 
Cash handling should be carried out safely and efficiently with the minimal amount of 
risk for all participants in the process. Staff must ensure the completeness of all cash 
received and ensure there is an adequate audit trail surrounding transactions. 
Customers should feel satisfied that their monies have been correctly received and 
will be allocated correctly. 
 
All staff should comply with the following key processes: 
 

• A receipt must be issued for all monies at the time the income is 
collected/received and must not be issued retrospectively. Each 
department is issued with receipt books and only the issued council receipt 
books should be used. Under no circumstances should amendments be made 
to completed receipts. If an error is made the receipt must be cancelled, all 
copies retained and a new receipt issued. An explanation must be given to why 
the receipt was cancelled and signed by the employee and countered signed 
by the line manager.  

• All sections of the receipt must be completed in full. Receipts must be dated, 
the customer's name recorded and all required information completed.  Only 
then should the receipt be signed by the member of staff collecting the income 
and the top copy issued to the customer.  

• All receipts are split in three parts: the top copy should go to the customer (if 
the customer isn’t present this should be posted out) and the 2nd copy should 
be handed into reception with the monies. The 3rd and final copy should remain 

Page 1130Page 180



 

7 
DRAFT 02/2022 

in the receipt book for departmental records/ audit. If income is received via the 
post this should be receipted in the same way. 

• The member of staff who is on duty should fill in the “office use only” section of 
the receipt before taking the monies to reception. They should ensure all 
monies match the receipts and sign and date each receipt. The last receipt 
issued prior to banking must be endorsed with the total amount to be banked. 

• All transfers of cash between members of staff must be formally acknowledged 

in writing by the receiving member of staff, i.e. A separate receipt should be 

issued by reception while the person depositing the banking is present. 

Reception staff should check the cash and cheques prior to issuing a receipt. 

• For direct banking to the council’s bank account the finance officer will let the 

relevant department know and the banking will be processed on the finance 

system. 

• Once the deposit has taken place at reception an email should be sent to the 

Finance Officer & Finance Assistant if either of these members of staff are 

absent the Deputy Town Clerk and also the departmental emails should be 

copied in as well detailing the banking and clear indication of which department 

has deposited the monies and by whom. 

• The Finance Assistant or Finance Officer will then receipt this deposit to the 

finance system and ensure the monies are banked twice a week. 

• Accurate and up to date records should be available at all times relating to all 

income (cheques, card and cash) that is in the tin/Safe and should match the 

records showing the receipt of the income and the actual amount held in the 

tin/Safe. 

• If monies are mislaid by a member of staff due to carelessness, then this must 

be reported to their line manager and the Finance Officer. It will be at the 

discretion of the line manager to decide if funds should be replaced by the 

member of staff. 

Card Payments 
Security of Credit Card Information 
 
All Departments MUST ensure that any credit card detail and information received is 
not copied, replicated or stored electronically in any fashion. 
The Finance Officer will ensure all information is held in a secure place with restricted 
access. 
For more information on taking card payments and security please refer to the 
Information Security Policy. 
 

Card Procedure 
 
All departments wishing to take a card payment via the online portal must obtain login 
details from the Finance Officer. 
For all card payments a council receipt must be issued to the customer as well as any 
additional card receipt. Second receipt must be handed into reception and will be 
matched off by the Finance Officer when monies are received in the council’s bank 
account. Third copy must remain in the receipt book for departmental records. 

Page 1131Page 181



 

8 
DRAFT 02/2022 

All Refunds will be processed to the same credit card as the initial transaction. 

 
Departmental Logs 
 
All departments must keep separate electronic logs of income up to date as instructed 
by the Finance Officer. E.g. Guildhall Bookings must be logged onto the Council’s 
Booking Calendar & logged on booking log spreadsheet, pontoon bookings must be 
logged onto the spreadsheet of all boats visiting the pontoon. 
All receipts should be reconciled against the log at the end of each month and signed 
off by a member of staff and handed into the Finance Officer. 

 
Audit Checks 
 
Audit checks will be carried out by the Finance Officer, Finance Assistant & Chairman 
of P&F at random. 
The following checks will be made: 
 

• To verify that the receipt numbers run sequentially, e.g. there are no missing 
receipts unaccounted for. This is essential to ensure that any breaks are 
discovered in the sequential numbering and if there are any found this must be 
reported to the RFO for investigation and the incident and action taken formally 
recorded.  

 
• Income banked to be agreed to the individual departmental logs.  This is to 

ensure that all income receipted has been banked.   
 
 

Reporting of Irregularities 
 
Any member of staff who thinks that there may have been a theft or other case of 
misappropriation of the Council’s monies must inform their line manager immediately.  
The Line Manager must report this direct to the Town Clerk, or in their absence the 
nominated Deputy as per the line management staff structure. 
 
Any member of staff who has query with regards to the Income and Banking Procedure 
must ask their line manager for assistance. If the query is not answered, then advice 
can be sought from the Finance Officer. 
 

Page 1132Page 182



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

Saltash Town Council 
 

 

Policy/Procedure:       

  

 

Date of Adoption: 

  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees. 

 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23  Approved by   

Date February 2022 Date of approval  

Responsible Officer Town Clerk/RFO Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date Annual 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

17.04.2018 2018/19 Town Clerk/RFO  

February 2021 2021-22 DRAFT SE Updated 

    

 

Review Record  

Date Type of 
Review 

Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed by 

  17/19/20b   

     

     

 

 

 

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Risk Management Plan Statement 2022-23 DRAFT  

 

Page 1133

Minute Item 170/21/22

Page 183



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

Saltash Town Council: Risk Management Plan Statement 2021-22 

 
Area 

 
Risk 

 
Impact 

 
Likelihood 

 
Score 

 
Controls 

 
Action 

 

Assets Protection of 
physical 
assets 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Buildings insured. 
Value increased annually by CPI.  

Insurance revalue 
2016. 
Current revaluation of 
all  
property, land and 
open  
spaces underway. 

 Security of 
buildings, 
equipment 
etc. 
 
 
 
Security of 
Regalia 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Alarms on all main buildings. 
Station Building secured by bolts 
and locks during first stage of 
refurbishment. 
Legionella monitoring in place for all 
buildings and toilets. 
Regalia and valuables kept in 
insurance company approved safe. 

Fire and Security  
Systems Installed 
linked to  
monitoring station. 
Service contract in 
place. 

 Maintenance 
of buildings 
etc. 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 
 

Survey and planned programme of 
electrical and safety equipment 
worked up in conjunction with 
building maintenance consultant. 
5-year maintenance and budget 
plan in place. Linked to precept. 

Completed September 
2012 
 
 
Updated 2021 

 Failure to 
maintain fixed 
asset 
register. 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

That all the necessary fixed asset 

purchases are recorded and 

monitored on the asset register. 

Ongoing 

P
age 1134

P
age 184



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

Appropriate document e.g., invoices 

are kept for audit purposes. 

Internal audit is carried of the fixed 

asset register 

All staff are aware of the 
responsibilities of the fixed asset 
register. 

Finance Banking Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

All funds and investment deposits 
with high street banks and 
investment company. 
Funds distributed with a minimum of 
3 separate investment bodies 
based on credit rating, interest rates 
and accessibility to funds. 

Investment Strategy in 
place. 
Council Policy 2015 
updated to LGA 3rd 
edition 2021. 

 Risk of 
consequential 
loss of 
income 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Insurance to cover loss of income 
and relocating office. Important 
documents backed-up off site. 

Maintain insurance and 
IT support. 

 Loss of cash 
through theft 
or dishonesty 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Division of responsibility in 
operation as per Governance and 
Accountability recommendations 
and audit. 
Fidelity insurance in place. 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing monitoring of 
work  
updated practices and 
audit trail. 

P
age 1135

P
age 185



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

 Financial 
controls and 
records 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Monthly bank reconciliation and 
quarterly VAT report prepared by 
FO and checked by Chairman of P 
& F and Town Clerk and reported to 
Council. Two signatories for 
payments. Internal and external 
audit. 

Ongoing monitoring. 

 Failure to 
meet 
deadline for 
submission of 
AGAR 
(Annual 
Return) 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

The external return is programmed 
in and to ensure that Full Council 
meeting is held for signing off the 
annual return in sufficient time for 
submission deadline.  

Ongoing  

 Comply with 
Customs and 
Excise 
Regulations 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Use help line when necessary. VAT 
payments and claims calculated by 
FO and checked by Town Clerk & 
Chairman of P&F. Internal and 
external auditor to provide double 
check.  

VAT consultant 
engaged. 
to ensure compliance 
with 
partial exemption 
regulations 
and annual report. 

 Sound 
budgeting to 
support 
annual 
precept 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Committees and Council receive 
detailed budgets in the late autumn. 
Precept derived directly from this. 
Expenditure against budget 
reported to committees at each 
meeting. 

Ongoing. 

 Failure to 
calculate/ 
precept on 
time 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Timetable agenda item for 
members providing sufficient time 
for additional meetings if required 

Ongoing 

P
age 1136

P
age 186



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

 Failure to 
respond to 
electors 
wishing to 
exercise right 
of inspection 

Low 
 
2 

Low 

2 

 

4 

Ensure appropriate public rights 

dates are obtained from the 

external auditor. 

They are displayed on the website 

& notice boards as appropriate. 

Details are advertised on how to 
obtain copies and inspect the 
annual accounts are published 
 

Ongoing 

 Complying 
with 
borrowing 
restrictions 

Low 
 
2 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
4 

All borrowing conducted via CALC 
to Public Works Loan Board.  

Ongoing. 

Liability Risk to third 
party, 
property or 
individuals 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Insurance in place. Property and 
land checked regularly. Trees 
inspection in place. Risk 
assessments of individual events 
such as Christmas lights and other 
events carried out as necessary. 
 

Ongoing. 

 Risks to staff 
& members 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Constant awareness of obstructions 
e.g., trailing wires, step ladders are 
used and provided where 
necessary, ensure electrical safety 
checks are carried out on all 
electronic equipment and using 
shredders and other equipment with 
safety precautions.  

Ongoing 

P
age 1137

P
age 187



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

 Legal liability 
as 
consequence 
of asset 
ownership. 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Insurance in place. Regular safety 
inspections and checks conducted 
with records kept. 

Ongoing. 

Employer 
Liability 

Comply with 
Employment 
Law 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

HR consultants in place. 
Membership of various bodies 
including CALC regular checks for 
updates. Clerk is member of SLCC.  
Personnel Committee in place. 

Ongoing. 

 
 

Comply with 
Inland 
Revenue 
requirements 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Regular advice from HMRC, Xero 
and Sage Payroll. Internal and 
external auditors carry out annual 
checks. Staff training in place. 

Ongoing. 

 Safety of 
Staff and 
visitors 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Health and Safety consultants 
retained as of 2012. 
Regular risk assessment checks of 
all buildings, premises and open 
spaces by Grounds and Premises 
Warden. Annual risk assessment 
audit by HR Consultant. 

Ongoing. 

 VDU/ 
Workstation 
usage by 
Staff 

Low 
 
2 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
4 

Health and safety checks are 
carried out to check workstation 
posture, regular eye tests, correct 
chairs purchased, DSE training to 
avoid RSI injuries, back injury, eye 
strain 

Ongoing 

 Violence and 
Aggression 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 
 

 
 
6 

All office and library staff are given 
training on dealing with anger, 
violence and aggression 

Ongoing 

P
age 1138

P
age 188



 

7 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

 Lone Working 
(Office) 

Low 
 
2 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
4 

That appropriate security measures 
are put in place. Ongoing 
communication with the lone worker 
is maintained to ensure they are 
monitored for their safety.  

Ongoing 

Legal 
Liability 

Ensuring 
activities are 
within legal 
powers 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Town Clerk to clarify legal position 
on any new proposal. Legal advice 
to be sought where necessary. 
Power of Competence taken up. 

Ongoing. 

 Proper and 
timely 
reporting via 
the Minutes 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Council meets once a month and 
always receives and approves 
minutes of meetings held in interim. 
minutes made available to press 
and public at the Guildhall and via 
the web site.  

Ongoing. 

 Inadequate 
awareness/ 
failure to 
comply of 
relevant 
legislation 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

Maintain membership to CALC/ 

NALC on Annual basis 

Town Clerk or in their absence the 

nominated Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure to 

attend committee meetings 

SLCC training is maintained 

Liaise with internal and external 
auditors 
 
 

Ongoing 

P
age 1139

P
age 189



 

8 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

 Non – 
compliance 
with data 
protection 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

All staff and councillors are made 

aware of the latest legislation 

around GDPR/ Data protection. 

Appropriate training is undertaken 

as necessary for the relevant staff 

and members. 

A data protection officer is 

nominated and monitors the activity 

of the council 

Ongoing 

 Proper 
document 
control 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Copies kept in the office and 
backed up off site. Original leases 
stored in safe. 
 

Ongoing. 

Councillor 
propriety 
 
 
 

Registers of 
Interests and 
gifts and 
hospitality in 
place 

Medium 
 
3 
 
 
 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Register of interest completed and 
anti-bribery policy statement and 
anti-fraud and corruption strategy in 
place. Code of Conduct adopted. 
 
 

Ongoing. 
 
 
 
 

Direct 
Acquisition 
& 
Devolution 
receipt 
of Assets 
and 
Services 

Financial cost 
and 
reputational 
risk linked to 
lack of 
service 
delivery 
standard 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Acquisition and acceptance of 
assets or services based on 
community need and cost benefit 
analysis and budgeting via working 
party scrutiny though to Full Council 
decision. 

Ongoing. 

P
age 1140

P
age 190



 

9 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

 

General 
Reserve 

Insufficient 
funds to 
match any 
unforeseen 
events or 
general 
emergencies 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 
 
2 

 
 
6 

Assessed annually at precept and 
budget setting and supported by ear 
marked funds. 
 
To ensure a sufficient contingency 
is in place to mitigate the risk of 
unforeseen events. This policy to be 
reviewed each year in conjunction 
with the rest of the reserves. This is 
reviewed on annual basis when 
setting the following year budgets. 
 

Ongoing. 

Public 
Consultation 

Lack of public 
consultation 
by the council 

Medium 
 
3 

Low 

2 

 

6 

Ensure meetings publicised on 

notice boards & website. 

Use of Annual parish meetings 

Place articles in newsletters 

Include public participation on all 

council meeting agendas 

Ensuring seating available at 

meetings for the public 

Provide advice for members of the 

public attending 

Ongoing 

P
age 1141

P
age 191



 

10 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

Publish agenda and minutes on 

website/ notice boards 

Hold monthly meet your councillor 
sessions 

 

P
age 1142

P
age 192



 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council 
 
 
Policy/Procedure:       

  
 
Date of Adoption: 
  
This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed 
by both Councillors and employees. 
 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 DRAFT  Approved by   

Date February 2022 Date of approval  

Responsible Officer SE Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date Annual 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

February 2021 1 DRAFT  SE NEW POLICY 

February 2022 2022-23 DRAFT SE Annual review 

    

 

Review Record  

Date Type of 
Review 

Minute number Summary of 
actions 

Completed 
by 

     

     

     

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Risk Management Strategy 2022-23 DRAFT  

 

Page 1143

Minute Item 171/21/22

Page 193



 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
1. Introduction 
 

1.1. This document and annexes are the Council’s Risk Management Strategy. 
It sets out the framework on which risk management processes at Saltash 
Town Council are based. This framework will assist in ensuring that a 
consistent approach is taken across the Town Council for the identification, 
assessment and evaluation of risks, and for ensuring that actions are 
proportionate to address risks thereby efficiently and effectively utilising 
resources and maintaining a balance between risks and controls.  
 
The strategy defines: 

 

• What is meant by risk management; 
 

• Why the Council needs a risk management strategy; 
 

• What is the Council’s philosophy on risk management; 
 

• The risk management process 
 

• An outline of the associated roles of Councillors, Town Clerk, Line 
Managers and other employees; and 

 

• A summary of future monitoring and reporting lines for risk 
management. 

 
1.2. The objectives of this strategy are to: 

 

• Further develop risk management and raise its profile across the Town 
Council; 
 

• Integrate risk management into the culture of the organisation; 
 

• Embed risk management through the ownership and management of risk 
as part of all decision making processes; and 
 

• Manage risk in accordance with best practice. 
 

Page 1144Page 194



 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

2. What is Risk Management? 
 

2.1. ‘Risk is the threat that an event or action will adversely affect an 
organisation’s ability to achieve its objectives and to successfully 
execute its strategies. Risk management is the process by which risks 
are identified, evaluated and controlled. It is a key element of the 
framework of governance together with community focus, structures 
and processes, standards of conduct and service delivery 
arrangements.’ Audit Commission, Worth the Risk: Improving Risk 
Management in Local Government, (2001: p5) 

 
2.2. Risk management is an essential feature of good governance, contributing 

to improved decision making and the achievement of objectives. It is vital 
to recognise that risk management is not simply about health and safety, 
but applies to all aspects of the Town Council’s work. When embedded 
within the existing planning and decision making processes, risk 
management provides a basis for ensuring implications are thought 
through, and ensures that the impact of decisions, initiatives and projects 
are considered, and that conflicts are balanced.  This will in turn influence 
success and improve service delivery. 

 
2.3. Risk Management Benefits: 

 

• Protecting and adding value to the Council and its stakeholders by 
supporting the achievement of the Council’s aims and objectives; 
 

• Improved strategic, operational and financial management; 
 

• Ensuring future activity takes place in a consistent and controlled 
manner; 

 

• Improved decision making, planning and prioritisation; 
 

• Mitigation of key threats and taking advantage of key opportunities; 
 

• Contributing to more efficient use/allocation of resources; 
 

• Protecting and enhancing assets and image; 
 

• Optimising operational efficiency and therefore delivering efficiency 
gains and value for money; 

 

• Allocating time and management effort to major issues; 
 

• Avoiding shocks and crises; 
 

• Safeguarding tangible and intangible assets; 
 

• Promotion of innovation and change; 
 

Page 1145Page 195



 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Improved customer service delivery. 
 

2.4. Risks can be classified into various types but it is important to recognise 
that for all categories the direct financial losses may have less impact than 
the indirect costs such as disruption of normal working.  The examples 
below are not exhaustive: 
 

 Strategic Risk - Long-term adverse impacts from poor decision-making or 
poor implementation.  Risks damage to the reputation of the Town Council, 
loss of public confidence, in a worse case scenario Government 
Intervention.  

 
 Compliance Risk - Failure to comply with legislation, or laid down 

procedures or the lack of documentation to prove compliance.  Risks 
exposure to prosecution, judicial review, employment tribunals, increased 
Best Value inspection, inability to enforce contracts. 

 
 Financial Risk - Fraud and corruption, waste, excess demand for services, 

bad debts.  Risk of additional audit investigation, objection to accounts, 
reduced service delivery, dramatically increased Council tax levels/impact 
on Council reserves. 

 
 Operating Risk - Failure to deliver services effectively, malfunctioning 

equipment, hazards to service users, the general public or staff, damage to 
property.  Risk of insurance claims, higher insurance premiums, lengthy 
recovery processes. 

 
2.5. These risks can be broken down further into specific areas which could 

impact on the achievements of the Town Council’s strategic objectives and 
day-to-day delivery of services: 

 
 Political - Those associated with the failure to deliver either local, regional 

or national policy; 
 
 Financial – Those affecting the ability of the Town Council to meet its 

financial commitments; failure of major projects; internal and external audit 
requirements; failure to prioritise and allocate resources effectively; poor 
contract management; initiative overload; 

 
 Social – Those relating to the effects of changes in demographic, 

residential, or socio-economic trends on the Town Council’s ability to deliver 
its strategic priorities; 

 
 Technological – Those associated with the capacity of the Council to deal 

with the pace/scale of technological change, or its ability to use technology 
to address changing demands.  It would also include the consequences of 
internal failures on the Town Council’s ability to deliver its objectives; 

 
 Legal – The ability of the Town Council to meet legislative demands 

affecting breaches of legislation (UK & retained EU legislation). 

Page 1146Page 196



 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
 Environmental – Those relating to the environmental consequences of 

progressing the Town Council’s objectives in terms of energy, efficiency, 
pollution, recycling, emissions etc; 

 
 Partnership/contractual – Those associated with the failure of 

partners/contractors to deliver services to an agreed cost and specification 
and similarly failure of the Town Council to deliver services to an agreed 
cost and specification; compliance with procurement policies 
(internal/external); ensuring open and fair competition; 

 
 Human Resources – Those associated with the professional competence 

of staff; lack of training and development; over reliance on key personnel; 
ineffective project management; recruitment and selection issues; 

 
 Organisational – Those associated with the review of services and 

delivering continuous improvement; 
 
 Health & Safety/Physical – Those related to fire, safety, accident 

prevention and health & safety which pose a risk to both staff and the public; 
safeguarding and accounting of physical assets; 

 
 Reputational – Those associated with the changing needs of customers 

and the electorate; ensuring appropriate consultation; avoiding bad public 
and media relations. 

 
2.6. Not all these risks are insurable and for some the premiums may not be 

cost-effective.  Even where insurance is available, money may not be an 
adequate recompense. The emphasis should always be on eliminating or 
reducing risk, before costly steps to transfer risk to another party are 
considered. 
 

2.7. Risk is not restricted to potential threats but can be connected with 
opportunities.  Good risk management can facilitate proactive, rather than 
merely defensive, responses. Measures to manage adverse risks are likely 
to help with managing positive ones. 

 
3  Why does the Council need a Risk Management Strategy? 
 
3.1  Risk management will strengthen the ability of the Town Council to achieve its 

objectives and enhance the value of services provided. 
 
3.2  The Risk Management Strategy will help to ensure that all Committees and 

service arears have an understanding of ‘risk’ and that the Town Council adopts 
a uniform approach to identifying and prioritising risks.  This should in turn lead 
to conscious choices as to the most appropriate method of dealing with each 
risk, be it elimination, reduction, transfer or acceptance. 

 
3.3 The Risk Management Strategy provides assurances to members and officers 

on the adequacy of arrangements for the conduct of business and the use of 

Page 1147Page 197



 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

resources.  Implementation of the strategy leads to greater risk awareness and 
improved control, which should mean fewer incidents and control failures and 
in some cases lower insurance premiums. 

 
3.4 Strategic risk management is an important element in demonstrating 

continuous service improvement. 
 
3.5  There is an Audit requirement under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

to establish and maintain a systematic strategy, framework and process for 
managing risk.  Risks and their control will be collated in a Risk Register.  A 
statement about the system of internal control and the management of risk will 
be included as part of the Annual Statement of Accounts. 

 
4  What is the Council’s Philosophy on Risk Management? 
 
4.1  Risk Management Policy Statement –  

 
Saltash Town Council recognises that it has a responsibility to manage 
risks effectively in order to protect its employees, assets, liabilities and 
community against potential losses, to minimise uncertainty in achieving 
its aims and objectives and to maximise the opportunities to achieve its 
vision. 
 
The Town Council recognises that it is the responsibility of all Councillors 
and employees to have regard for risk in carrying out their duties. If 
uncontrolled, risk can result in a drain on resources that could better be 
directed to front line service provision, and to the meeting of the Council’s 
objectives and community needs. 
 
The Town Council will seek to embed effective risk management into its 
culture, processes and structure to ensure that opportunities are 
maximised.  The Council will seek to encourage line managers to identify, 
assess and manage risks, and learn to accept the right risks. 
 
The Town Council will carry insurance in such amounts and in respect of 
such perils as will provide protection against significant losses, where 
insurance is required by law or contract and in other circumstances 
where risks are insurable and premiums cost effective.  
 
This policy has the full support of the Town Council which recognises 
that any reduction in injury, illness, loss or damage benefits the whole 
community.  The co-operation and commitment of all employees is 
required to ensure that Council resources are not squandered as a result 
of uncontrolled risk. 
 
Whilst it is acknowledged that risk cannot be totally eliminated it is 
accepted that much can be done to reduce the extent of injury, damage 
and financial loss.  Therefore, Saltash Town Council is committed to 
identifying, reducing or eliminating the risks to both people and the 
natural and built environments. 

Page 1148Page 198



 

7 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
Risk management is an integral part of the Town Council’s Management 
processes. 

 
4.2 Objectives 
 

The objectives of the Council’s Risk Management Strategy are to: 
 

• Integrate risk management into the culture of the council; 
 

• Manage risk in accordance with best practice; 
 

• Anticipate and respond to changing social, political, environmental, 
technological and legislative requirements; 

 

• Prevent loss, disruption, damage and injury and reduce the cost of risk, 
thereby maximising resources; 

 

• To inform policy and operational decisions by identifying risks and their likely 
impact; 

 

• Raise awareness of the need for risk management by all those connected 
with the Council’s delivery of services. 

 
4.3 These objectives will be achieved by: 
 

• Establishing clear roles, responsibilities and reporting lines within the 
Council for risk management; 

 

• Embedding risk management into the Council’s decision making process, 
service delivery, project management and partnership working; 

 

• Providing opportunities for training and shared learning on risk management 
across the Council; 

 

• Offering a framework to identify priority risk areas, including the provision of 
risk registers at strategic and operational levels; 

 

• Reinforcing the importance of effective risk management as part of the 
everyday work of employees; 

 

• Incorporating risk management considerations into all levels of Council 
service provision; 

 

• Developing effective communication with, and the active involvement of, 
employees; 

 

• Monitoring of arrangements, at all levels on an ongoing basis;  
 

Page 1149Page 199



 

8 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 

• Identification and evaluation of risks associated with partners, contractors 
and other agencies and community groups; 

 

• Ensuring robust Business Continuity arrangements are in place. 
 
5  What is the Risk Management Process? 
 
5.1 Risk Control – Risk control is the process of taking action to minimise the 

likelihood of the risk event occurring and/or reducing the severity of the 
consequences should it occur. Typically, risk control requires the identification 
and implementation of revised operating procedures, but in exceptional cases 
more drastic action will be required to reduce the risk to an acceptable level. 

 
Options for control include: 

 

• Elimination – the circumstances from which the risk arises are removed so 
that the risk no longer exists; 

 

• Reduction – loss control measures are implemented to reduce the impact/ 
likelihood of the risk occurring; 

 

• Transfer – the financial impact is passed to others e.g. by revising 
contractual terms; 

 

• Sharing - the risk with another party; 
 

• Insuring – insure against some or all of the risk to mitigate financial impact; 
and 

 

• Acceptance – documenting a conscious decision after assessment of 
areas where the Council accepts or tolerates risk. 

 
5.2 Risk Register – The Council currently prepares its generic Risk Register.  In 

the case of all individual services, more specific risk assessments are 
undertaken. The Town Council also uses software provided by Moorepay to 
record Health and Safety Risk Assessments. (Currently being implemented) 
 
The content of the Risk Register shall include the following: 
 

• A description of the risk; 
 

• The consequence of that risk; 
 

• Existing controls; 
 

• Residual rating (likelihood v impact); 
 

• Required management action & controls; 

Page 1150Page 200



 

9 
DRAFT 02/2022 

• Officer responsibility; 
 

• Review/target dates; 
 

• Progress made 
 

5.3 Risk Monitoring – The risk management process does not finish with putting 
any risk control procedures in place. Their effectiveness in controlling risk must 
be monitored and reviewed. It is also important to assess whether the nature of 
any risk has changed over time. The Risk Management Plan will be reviewed 
at least annually and approved by the Policy and Finance Committee.  

  
 The information generated from applying the risk management process will help 

to ensure that risks can be avoided or minimised in the future. It will also inform 
judgements on the nature and extent of insurance cover and the balance to be 
reached between self-insurance and external protection. 

 
5.4 Risk Management System - Implementing the Strategy involves identifying, 

analysing/prioritising, managing and monitoring risks. 
 

Risk Identification – Identifying and understanding the hazards and risks 
facing the Town Council is crucial if informed decisions are to be made about 
policies or service delivery methods. The risks associated with these decisions 
can then be effectively managed. All risks identified will be recorded in the 
Council’s Risk Registers. 

 
Risk Analysis – Once risks have been identified they need to be systematically 
and accurately assessed using proven techniques. Analysis should make full 
use of any available data on the potential frequency of events and their 
consequences. If a risk is seen to be unacceptable, then steps need to be taken 
to control it or respond to the risk. 

 
Risk Prioritisation - An assessment should be undertaken of the impact and 
likelihood of risks occurring, with impact and likelihood being scored Negligible 
(1), Low (2) and Medium (3).  The scores for impact and likelihood are added 
together. Risks scoring high (4) and above will be subject to detailed 
consideration and preparation of a contingency/action plan to appropriately 
control the risk. 

  

Page 1151Page 201



 

10 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
 

    Impact  
       

  Negligible (1) Low (2)  Medium (3) High (4) 
       

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

High (4) 4 8  12 16 
      

Medium (3) 3 6  9 12 
      

Low (2) 2 4  6 8 
      

Negligible (1) 1 2  3 4 
      

 
 
 
6  How will it feed into the Council’s existing polices? 
 
6.1  All reports to Council or Committees will consider risk management issues.   

Initial identification of strategic and operational risks will be by officers who will 
compile lists of strategic and operational risks. Regular reports on risk 
management will be presented to the Policy and Finance Committee for 
consideration. 
 

6.2 Best Practice – the current economic climate means that risk management is 
now more important than ever, it is important for the council to reassess its 
objectives and the threats to achieving these objectives. The council will build 
risk management procedures into the way that it operates as part of a 
commitment to quality and continuous service improvement,  

 
6.4  Partnership Working – the Council is entering into an increasing number of 

partnerships with organisations from the public, private, voluntary and 
community sectors to deliver its priorities and services. Some of these 
organisations may not have the same sensitivities to the risks that the Council 
sees as important. Part of the process of setting up future partnerships will be 
to ensure that all relevant risks are identified and that appropriate control 
mechanisms (be it through formal contracts or partnership agreements) are 
built into the management arrangements for the partnership. 

 
7  Roles and Responsibilities  
 
7.1  It is important that risk management becomes embedded into the everyday 

culture and performance management process of the Council. The roles and 
responsibilities set out below, are designed to ensure that risk is managed 
effectively right across the Council and its operations, and responsibility for risk 
is located in the right place.  Those who best know the risks to a particular 
service are those responsible for it. The process must be driven from the top 
but must also involve staff throughout the organisation. 

Page 1152Page 202



 

11 
DRAFT 02/2022 

7.2  Councillors – Risk management is seen as a key part of the Councillor’s 
stewardship role and there is an expectation that councillors will lead and 
monitor the approach adopted.  This will include: 

 

• Gain an understanding of risk management and its benefits; 
 

• Be aware of risk management implications of decisions; 
 

• Ensure that officers develop and implement a strategic approach to risk 
management; 

 

• Approval of the Risk Management Strategy; 
 

• Analysis of key risks in reports on major projects, ensuring that all future 
projects and services undertaken are adequately risk managed; 

 

• Consideration, and if appropriate, endorsement of the Annual Statement of 
Internal Control; and 

 

• Assessment of risks whilst setting the budget, including any bids for 
resources to tackle specific issues. 

 
 Specific duties relating to individual officers are below: 
 
7.3  Town Clerk or in their absence the nominated Deputy as per the line 

management staff structure   – will act as the Lead Officer on Risk Management, 
overseeing the implementation of the detail of the Risk Management Strategy 
and will: 

 

• Provide advice as to the legality of policy and service delivery choices; 
 

• Provide advice on the implications of potential service actions for the 
Council’s corporate aims and objectives; 

 

• Update Town Council on the implications of new or revised legislation; 
 

• Assist in handling any litigation claims; 
 

• In consultation with the Town Council’s external advisors as necessary, 
provide advice on any human resource issues relating to strategic policy 
options or the risks associated with operational decisions and assist in 
handling cases of work related illness or injury; 

 

• In consultation with the Town Council’s external advisors as necessary, 
provide advice on any health and safety implications of the chosen or 
proposed arrangements for service delivery; and 

 

• Report progress to Council via the Policy & Finance Committee. 

Page 1153Page 203



 

12 
DRAFT 02/2022 

8.5 Responsible Finance Officer – as the Council’s Section 151 Officer, the Town 
Clerk & Finance Officer will: 

 

• Assess and implement the Council’s insurance requirements; 
 

• Assess the financial implications of strategic policy options; 
 

• Provide assistance and advice on budgetary planning and control; 
 

• Ensure that the financial information system allows effective budgetary 
control; and 

 

• Ensure the Town Council’s Risk Register is maintained 
 

• Manage the Town Council’s investment and loan portfolio. 
 
 
7.5 Line Managers - Will act as the risk champions for their areas of specialty, 

assisting with identifying all risks within their remit and the compilation of the 
Risk Register. They will manage risk effectively in their particular service areas 
or projects and report how threats and risks have been managed to the Town 
Clerk. This includes identifying, analysing, prioritising, monitoring and reporting 
on service risks and any control actions taken. 

 

• Ensure that Risk Management is an integral part of any service review 
process; 

 

• Ensure that recommendations for risk control are detailed in service review 
reports; and 

 

• Will assist in developing and monitoring Performance Indicators for Risk 
Management. 

 
7.6 Employees - Will undertake their job within risk management guidelines 

ensuring that the skills and knowledge passed to them are used effectively. All 
employees will maintain an awareness of the impact and costs of risks and how 
to feed data into the formal process. They will work to control risks or threats 
within their jobs, monitor progress and report on job related risks to their line 
manager. 

 
7.7 Role of the Internal Auditor – The Internal Auditor provides an important 

scrutiny role carrying out audits to provide independent assurance to the Policy 
& Finance Committee that the necessary risk management systems are in 
place and all significant business risks are being managed effectively. 

 
The Internal Auditor assists the Council in identifying both its financial and 
operational risks and seeks to assist the Council in developing and 
implementing proper arrangements to manage them, including adequate and 
effective systems of internal control to reduce or eliminate the likelihood of 
errors or fraud. 

Page 1154Page 204



 

13 
DRAFT 02/2022 

 
The Internal Audit Report, and any recommendations contained within it, will 
help to shape the Annual Statement of Internal Control. 

 
7.8  Policy & Finance Committee - Development of the Risk Management 

Strategy and compilation of the Risk Register will be overseen by the Policy & 
Finance Committee and particularly the following: 

 

• Chairman Policy & Finance Committee 

• Vice-Chairman of Policy & Finance Committee 

• Town Clerk  

• Responsible Finance Officer & Finance Officer 

• Line Managers  
 
7.9  Training – Where appropriate risk management training will be provided to 

Councillors, Line Managers and key staff will be provided through a range of 
methods such as workshops, literature and in house service familiarisation. The 
aim will be to ensure that both Councillors and members and staff have the 
skills necessary to identify, evaluate and control the risks associated with the 
services they provide.  

 
7.10 In addition to the roles and responsibilities set out above, the Town Council is 

keen to promote an environment within which individuals and groups are 
encouraged to report adverse incidents promptly and openly. To assist with this 
aspect, the Town Council has developed an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
and a Confidential Reporting (‘whistleblowing’) Policy. 

 
8 Future Monitoring 
 
8.1  Review of Risk Management Strategy - This Strategy will be reviewed on a 

regular basis as part of the Council’s continuing review of its Policy Documents, 
Standing Orders and Financial Regulations. Recommendations for change will 
be reported to the Policy and Finance Committee.  

 
8.2  Once the work to finalise the Risk Registers has been completed, it is crucial 

that the information is regularly reviewed and updated. New risks will emerge 
and need to be controlled. Feedback from Internal and External Audit can 
identify areas for improvement, as can the sharing of best practice via 
professional bodies such as the National Association of Local Councils and the 
Society of Local Council Clerks. 

 
8.3  Reporting on Progress – The Policy and Finance Committee will be updated 

on progress on risk management as necessary during the year. 
 
9  Conclusion 
 
9.1  The adoption of a sound risk management approach should achieve many 

benefits for the Council. It will assist in demonstrating that the Council is 
committed to continuous service improvement and effective corporate 
governance. 

Page 1155Page 205



 

14 
DRAFT 02/2022 

10  Alignment with other Policies of the Council 
 
10.1 This Risk Management Strategy should be read in conjunction with the 

following policies of the Council: 
 

• Standing Orders 

• Financial Regulations 

• Business Continuity Plan 

• Risk Management Plan Statement  

• Receipting of Income and Banking Procedures 

• Anti-Bribery Policy Statement and Anti-Fraud Corruption Strategy  

• Annual Internal Audit Business Risk Assessment  

• Scheme of Delegation 

• Annual Statement of Internal Control 

• Annual Treasury Management Strategy  

• Local Government Pension Scheme Policy 

• Finance Schedule and Precept Plan 

• Annual Reserves Policy 
 
11  Freedom of Information 
 
11.1 In accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000, this Document will be 

posted on the Council’s Website and copies of this document and the Risk 
Register will be available for inspection on deposit in the Council Office. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 1156Page 206



 
 

1 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council 
 

 

Policy/Procedure:       

  

 

Date of Adoption: 

  

This is a Policy or Procedure document of Saltash Town Council to be followed by 

both Councillors and employees. 

Current Status 

Version 2022-23 DRAFT Approved by   

Date February 2022 Date of approval  

Responsible Officer Town Clerk Minute reference  

Responsible 
Committee 

P&F Review date Annual/ As required 

 

Version History 

Date Version Author/Editor Comments 

February 2022 2022-23 
DRAFT 

SE Annual review 

January 2022 7 SB Appendix added re Covid-19 

May 2021 6 DRAFT AJT Delete Covid-19 appendix 

March 2021 5  SE Update 

November 2020 4 AJT Appendix added re Covid-19 

Feb 2020 3  SE Update 

May 2019 2 SB Increased monitory values in line 
with new Committee Structure 

May 2013 1 RL Re-approved (new Council) 

March 2011 1 RL First adoption 

 

Review Record  

Date Type of 
Review 

Minute 
number 

Summary of actions Completed by 

  14/19/20   

10/02/2020 Annual Review  Updated Petty Cash Amount  SE 

 

  

Document Retention  

Document retention period Until superseded  

Scheme of Delegation 2022-23 DRAFT 

June 2021 

Page 1157

Minute Item 172/21/22

Page 207



 
 

2 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Saltash Town Council 

Scheme Of Delegation 
 

1. This scheme of delegation supersedes any extant permanent delegated 
authorities except where specified and voids any such delegated authorities not 
referred to. No future permanent delegated authority shall be valid unless 
referred to in this scheme. 

 

2. None of the authorities or limitations below should be taken as preventing the 
exercise of duties or authority clearly laid out in the Town Clerk’s job description 
(for example as Line Manager) 

 

3. Temporary delegations of authority to accomplish a particular task do not fall 
within the purview of this scheme: existing such temporary delegations stand, 
and further such temporary delegations may be agreed without amending this 
scheme. 

 

4. This scheme shall lapse after the 1st full meeting of the Council following each 
set of Town Council Elections commencing in May 2013, unless re-approved by 
the Council with or without amendments. 

 

5. Any reference to the Town Clerk in these documents will apply to the Deputy 
Town Clerk if and only if: 

 

a. The Town Clerk is not reasonably contactable due to leave, illness etc.   
AND 

 
b. The matter is of sufficient urgency that it cannot be reasonably delayed until 

the return of the Town Clerk. 
 

Section A Financial  
 

The Clerk shall have sole delegated authority and in their absence the Deputy Town 
Clerk shall have sole delegated authority to: 

 

a. maintain and defray a petty cash float to a limit of £350 £390 for the purpose 
of defraying operational and other expenses, in line with Financial 
Regulation 6.19a. 

 

b. incur expenditure on behalf of the Council which is necessary to carry out 
any repair replacement or other work which is of such extreme urgency that 
it must be done at once, whether or not there is any budgetary provision for 
the expenditure, subject to a limit of £1,000, in line with Financial Regulation 
4.6. The Clerk shall report the action to the appropriate Committee 
Chairman and Committee as soon as practicable thereafter. Where 
expenditure required cannot be met from savings made elsewhere within 
that Committee's approved budget, it shall be subject to the provisions of a 
budget head approved by the Policy and Finance Committee or the Council. 

 

Page 1158Page 208



 
 

3 
DRAFT 02/2022 

c. Carry out the dispersal of Section 106 Money held by the Council, when 
authorised according to procedures already agreed by the Council. 
 

The Town Clerk or in their absence the Deputy Town Clerk shall have delegated 
authority himself and in his absence the Assistant Town Clerk shall have 
delegated authority to authorise members of staff to disperse other monies with 
the authority of Full Council, or otherwise under the following restrictions: 

 

d. If within budget up to £10,000 with the approval of the appropriate 
Committee Chairman, or in their absence that of the Committee Vice 
Chairman and Mayor or in their absence that of the Deputy Mayor. Approval 
may be verbally or by email initially, with a later signature. 

 

However, in the case of the P&F (Office) budget, no such approval will be 
necessary. 

 

e. If within budget, up to £20,000 only where that item has been resolved by 
the relevant Committee or Sub-Committee and with the approval of the 
appropriate Committee Chairman or in their absence that of the Committee 
Vice Chairman and Mayor or in their absence that of the Deputy Mayor. 

 

f. Monies over £20,000 or not within budget only where that item has been 
resolved by the relevant Committee or Sub-Committee with an agreed 
spend or maximum spend. 

 

Items spent under d. or e. will be reported back to the following meeting of the 
relevant Committee or Sub-Committee. 

 

g. The Town Clerk or in their absence the Deputy Town Clerk shall have 
delegated authority and delegated authority to authorise members of staff 
with the agreement of the Chairman of P&F, or in their absence that of the 
Vice Chairman of P & F, Mayor or Deputy Mayor, to use the Town Credit 
Card, where the expenditures in question are otherwise acceptable under 
Council regulations and where necessary for the efficient running of the 
Council and for best value. However, in no case may this be used for 
individual expenses to be reclaimed, or in excess of the credit limit agreed 
by full Council. 

 
h. The Service Delivery Manager shall have delegated authority for the 

procurement of the Council’s Service Delivery Department if within budget, 
up to £1,000, reporting back to the Chairman and Vice Chairman of 
Committee by means of the departments weekly progress report. 

 
i. Line Managers shall have delegated authority for the procurement of their 

department if within budget, up to £200. 
 

j. Line Managers shall have delegated authority to authorise staff training for 
team members up to the value of £200, reporting back to the Personnel 
Committee. 

 

 

Page 1159Page 209



 
 

4 
DRAFT 02/2022 

k. Finance Officer shall have delegated authority to transfer monies in relation 
to everyday cash flow between Barclays Active Saver to Barclays Current 
Account. This will be reported to Full Council within the monthly bank 
account receipts & payments reports. 
 

l. Finance Officer shall have delegated authority to transfer monies between 
bank accounts up to a value of £1,000 for day-to-day operations, to be 
reported to Full Council within the monthly bank account receipts and 
payments reports.  

 

Section B Personnel 
 

a. All matters detailed in adopted personnel policies of the Council shall be 
taken as being encompassed with this scheme of delegation. For example, 
but not limited to: 

 

i. The Clerk’s authority to appoint staff where carried out in line with policy. 
 

ii. Resolution of grievance and disciplinary matters. 
 

iii. The authorisation of discretionary leave. 
 

iv. Appraisal and exit interviews etc.  
 

b.  The following functions shall be delegated to the Personnel Committee: 
 

i. The line management of the Town Clerk by the Chairman, or Vice 
Chairman dealing with routine issue. 

 
ii. The confirmation of progression along pay scales, and successful 

completion of probationary periods and recommendation not to progress 
staff or to approve completion of probation shall be recommended to full 
Council. 

 

Section C Other 

 

1. The Clerk shall have sole delegated authority to: 

  

a. exercise overall responsibility for Health and Safety. 
 

b. have fly-posters removed from STC land, or from Cornwall Council land 
having checked that they do not have authority to be there;  
 

c. waive charges for Guildhall room hire; 
 

d. approve or reject links for display on the STC website, and items for display 
on the STC noticeboards; 
 

Page 1160Page 210



 
 

5 
DRAFT 02/2022 

e. Approve the use of the town’s modern logo, in accordance with the 
principles outlined in the relevant policy. 

 

The Town Clerk or in their absence the Deputy Town Clerk shall have delegated 
authority in consultation with the Mayor, or in their absence the Deputy Mayor, to: 

 

a. Make any temporary arrangements necessary for the good running of the 
Council not falling under the Clerk’s day to day exercise of duties, where 
they incur no expenditure, or the expenditure falls under the other delegated 
powers. These shall be reported back to the appropriate committee or full 
Council as soon as possible where they may recommend that they be made 
permanent or halted if appropriate, or else ‘noted’. 

 
b. Commence the election or co-option procedure for vacancies in the town 

Council in accordance with legislation and Council procedures. 

 

2. The Town Clerk or in their absence the Deputy Town Clerk shall have delegated 
authority in consultation with the Mayor, or in his absence the Deputy Mayor, and 
the Chairman of P&F, or in their absence the Vice Chairman, to 

 

a. Decline bookings for the Guildhall where they consider them inappropriate, 
or where they are for purposes that might be perceived as prejudicing the 
neutrality of the Town Council on future developments. 
 

3. The Town Clerk or in their absence the Deputy Town Clerk shall have delegated 
authority with the agreement with the Mayor or appropriate Committee Chairman, 
or in their respective absence the Deputy Mayor or Committee Vice Chairman 
to: 

 

a. Send out Press Releases. In all cases the Mayor, or in their absence the 

Deputy Mayor, must either directly approve the release, or be sent a copy 

of the release at least 24 hours before it goes out in order to give them 

chance to object if necessary. No Press Release may be sent out under 

this authority if the Mayor or Deputy Mayor does object: in that instance 

they must be authorised by Full Council. 

Note:  Power C/4a shall also apply to the Chairman/Vice of the Neighbourhood 
 Plan Steering Group, and any other Sub-Committee or Working Group of the 
 Council granted this power by Full Council. However other delegated powers   
 to Committees do not automatically apply. 

 

Version History 

Date Details 

September 2018 Note: 
Words imputing the masculine gender only shall 
include all other genders and vice versa. 

 

Page 1161Page 211



 
 

6 
DRAFT 02/2022 

Appendix 1: Covid-19 Emergency Scheme of Delegation  

 

Saltash Town Council delegates authority to the Town Clerk informed by consultation 

with Members of the Town Council, to take any actions necessary with associated 

expenditure up to £ 5,000 to protect the interest of the community and ensure council 

business continuity during the period of the coronavirus pandemic where it is deemed 

inappropriate to meet. 

 

 

Page 1162Page 212



114 

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the  Meeting of the Library Sub Committee held at the Library 
Building on Wednesday 23rd February 2022 at 6.00 pm 
 
PRESENT: Councillors: J Dent (Chairman), S Martin, J Peggs, P Samuels 

and D Yates (Vice-Chairman). 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor S Miller, S Burrows (Acting Town Clerk), D Orton 

(Community Hub Team Leader) and D Joyce (Administration 
Officer) 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors: R Bickford, R Bullock and B Samuels. 

 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 
37/21/22 HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
The Chairman informed those present of the actions required in the 
event of a fire or emergency. 
 
 

38/21/22 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: 
 
a. To receive any declarations from Members of any registerable (5A of 

the Code of Conduct) and/or non-registerable (5B) interests in 
matters to be considered at this meeting. 
 
None. 

 
b. Acting Town Clerk to receive written requests for dispensations prior 

to the start of the meeting for consideration. 
 
None. 

 
 

39/21/22 QUESTIONS - A 15-MINUTE PERIOD WHEN MEMBERS OF THE 
PUBLIC MAY ASK QUESTIONS OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL. 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213

Agenda Item 28



115 

40/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE LIBRARY SUB 
COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY 9TH DECEMBER 2021 AS A 
TRUE AND CORRECT RECORD. 
 
Please see a copy of the minutes on the STC website or request to see 
a copy at the Guildhall. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dent, seconded by Councillor Yates and 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Library Sub Committee held on 
Thursday 9th December 2021 were confirmed as a true and correct 
record. 
 
 

41/21/22 TO CONSIDER RISK MANAGEMENT REPORTS AS MAY BE 
RECEIVED. 
 
None. 
 

42/21/22 FINANCE AND BUDGET. 
 
The Acting Town Clerk informed Members the Town Council will not 
receive around £4,000 of expected income due to the loss of fees and 
charges and café rental. 
 
The current total figures to date displays an overall underspend of 
around £9,000 therefore the income not received is expected to be 
absorbed by this. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

43/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND NOTE A REPORT FROM THE LIBRARY HUB 
AND CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND ASSOCIATED 
EXPENDITURE. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

44/21/22 TO RECEIVE A REPORT TO PURCHASE AN ADVERTISING TV 
AND CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND ASSOCIATED 
EXPENDITURE. 
 
Members discussed the purchase of an advertising TV and stand for 
the Library Hub. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor P Samuels, seconded by Councillor 
Martin and RESOLVED to delegate authority to the CHTL to further 
progress the procurement of a large TV and stand with Richer Sounds 
up to a value of £1,300 allocated to budget code 6972 Library 
Equipment and Furniture. 

Page 214



116 

45/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND CONSIDER APPROVING THE MOVABLE TIME 
LINE SIX WEEK PLAN TO HOLD A TEMPORARY LIBRARY 
SERVICE AT ISAMBARD HOUSE. 
 
Members received and considered the proposed six week plan to hold 
a temporary library service at Isambard House.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dent seconded by Councillor Yates and 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. To delegate the movable timeline six week plan to the CHTL to 
further progress, subject to liaising with the Receptionist/ Mayors 
Secretary and the Chairman of the Station Sub Committee to 
ensure existing bookings at Isambard House are not affected. 

 
2. That the CHTL informs Members as the timeline is progressed 

for their input.  
 
 
 
 

46/21/22 TO RECEIVE AND CONSIDER APPROVING THE TEMPORARY 
LIBRARY LAYOUT AT ISAMBARD HOUSE. 
 
The CHTL updated members on the proposed temporary Library layout. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dent, seconded by Councillor Yates and 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. To approve in principle to accommodate the library service within the 

main space at Isambard House, allowing the café and waiting room 
to continue in operation. 
 

2. To give delegated authority to the CHTL to further progress the plan 
providing regular updates to Members for their input. 

 
3. That Members be invited to view the setup prior to opening the 

library service to the public. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 215



117 

47/21/22 TO RECEIVE A VERBAL REPORT FROM THE INITIAL MEETING 
WITH BAILEY PARTNERSHIP AND CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND 
ASSOCIATED EXPENDITURE. 
 
The Chairman updated Members on the recent meeting held with 
Bailey Partnership and the potential project cost savings. 
 
The Chairman further confirmed once all necessary surveyance works 
are complete a pre-application is to be submitted to Cornwall Council to 
further understand the listing requirements.  
 
It was RESOLVED to note and that the CHTL will ascertain if Bailey 
Partnership require additional information liaising with the Chairman 
and Vice Chairman. 
 
 

48/21/22 TO RECEIVE A PRIORITY LIST OF LIBRARY REFURBISHMENT 
WORKS AND CONSIDER ANY ACTIONS AND ASSOCIATED 
EXPENDITURE. 
 
The Chairman informed Members of a potential priority list of works 
contained within the proposed refurbishment plan as a consequence of 
the increase in material cost due to the pandemic. 
 
Members agreed to revisit the priority list of works upon the results of 
the tender process.  
 
It was RESOLVED to note. 
 
 

49/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960: 
 
Pursuant to Section 1(2) of the Public Bodies (Admissions to Meetings) 
Act 1960, it was resolved that the public and press leave the meeting 
because of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted. 
 
 

50/21/22 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE MAIN PART OF 
THE AGENDA. 
 
None. 
 
 

51/21/22 PUBLIC BODIES (ADMISSION TO MEETINGS) ACT 1960: 
 
It was resolved that the public and press be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 

Page 216



118 

52/21/22 TO CONSIDER URGENT NON-FINANCIAL ITEMS AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN. 
 
For information only; 
 
The Chairman requested Members to further consider the idea and 
suitable promotions following the refurbishment to assist in changing 
the perception of the library to a Hub for Community Activities and 
Information. 
 
The Chairman expressed wishes to assist in changing the view of many 
generations that a library isn’t just a place to access books and instead 
encourage the idea of an exciting Community Hub full of activity and 
inclusive of a library service contained within.   
 
 

53/21/22 TO CONFIRM ANY PRESS AND SOCIAL MEDIA RELEASES 
ASSOCIATED WITH ANY AGREED ACTIONS AND EXPENDITURE 
OF THE MEETING. 
 
None. 
 
 

 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To be confirmed. 
 
Rising at: 6.52 pm 

 
 

Signed:  

 Chairman 
 

Dated: 
 
 

Page 217


	Agenda
	5 Chairman's Report
	6 Monthly Crime Figures
	7 Report by Community Enterprises PL12
	11 To receive a report from Saltash Chamber of Commerce
	12 To receive a report from the Climate Change and Environmental Working Party
	16 To receive and approve the Minutes of the Full Town Council Meeting held on 3rd February 2022 and the Extraordinary Full Town Council meeting held on 10th February 2022 as a true and correct record
	Minutes of Previous Meeting

	17a To advise the following receipts in:
	17b To advise the following payments in:
	18 To receive and approve a Notice between Saltash Town Council and First Greater Western Ltd confirming the lease will be excluded from the security of tenure provisions of the Landlord & Tenant Act 1954.
	19 The Mayor to announce the call for written nominations for the Office of Mayor and Deputy Mayor for the year 2022/23.  An Extraordinary meeting of the Town Council, to elect the Mayor elect and Deputy Mayor elect, is set for Thursday 15th March 2022 at 6.00 p.m.
	Nomination form - Office of Mayor of Saltash
	Nomination form - Office of Deputy Mayor of Saltash

	20a Saltash Baptist Church - Letter of thanks.
	20b Regatta Committee - Civic Parade to be held on Saturday 3rd September 2022.
	23 To receive and consider approving funding applications.
	STC Report and Criteria Tresorys Kernow

	24 To receive and consider approving the draft design Town Council Annual Report.
	27a Joint Burial Board held on Tuesday 8th February 2022
	27b Services held on Wednesday 9th February 2022
	27c Extraordinary Policy and Finance held on Tuesday 22nd February 2022
	Minutes
	161/21/22 Annual Business Continuity Plan
	162/21/22 Annual Internal Audit and Business Risk Assessment
	163/21/22 Annual Reserves Policy
	164/21/22 Annual Statement on Internal Control
	165/21/22 Annual Treasury Management Strategy
	166/21/22 Anti Bribery Policy Statement and Anti Fraud and Corruption Strategy
	167/21/22 Finance Schedule and Precept Plan
	168/21/22 Financial Regulations
	169/21/22 Receipting of Income and Banking Procedures
	170/21/22 Risk Management Plan Statement
	171/21/22 Risk Management Strategy
	172/21/22 Scheme of Delegation

	28 To receive and note the minutes of the Library Sub Committee held on Wednesday 23rd February 2022 and consider any recommendations.

